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"This version of our report is a free translation of the original, which was prepared in Spanish. All possible
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in
all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report
takes precedence over this translation.”

AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

To the Shareholders of CIE Automotive, S.A.:

‘We have audited the consolidated annual accounts of CIE Automotive, S.A. (parent company) and its
subsidiaries (the group), consistiug of the consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2013, the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated cash flow statement and related notes to
the consolidated annual accounts for the year then ended. As explained in Note 2.1, the directors of the
compauy are responsible for the preparation of these consolidated annual accounts in accordance with
the International Financial Reporting Standards as endorsed by the European Union, and other
provisions of the financial reporting framework applicable to the group. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the consolidated annual accounts taken as a whole, based on the work
performed in accordance with the legislation governing the andit practice in Spain, which requires the
examination, on a test basis, of evidence supporting the annual accounts and an evaluation of whether
their overall presentation, the accounting principles and criteria applied and the estimates made are in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated annual accounts for 2013 present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of CIE Automotive, S.A. and its subsidiaries at 31
December 2013 and the consolidated results of its operations and the consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as endorsed by
the European Union, and other provisions of the applicable financial reporting framework.

The accompanying consolidated directors’ Report for 2013 contains the explanations which the parent
company’s directors consider appropriate regarding the group’s situation, the development of its
business and other matters and does not form an integral part of the consolidated annual accounts. We
have verified that the acconnting information contained in the consolidated directors’ Report is in
agreement with that of the consolidated annual accounts for 2013, Our work as auditors is limited to
checking the consolidated directors’ Report in accordance with the scope mentioned in this paragraph
and does not include a review of information other than that obtained fromn the accounting records of
CIE Automotive, S.A. and its subsidiaries.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L.

Original in Spanish signed by Francisco Javier Domingo
Audit Partner

28 February 2014

PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L., Plaza de Euskadi, 5, 48009 Bilbao, Espafia
Tel.: +34 944288 800 / +34 902 021 111, Fax: +34 944 288 8oz, wivw.proc.com/es
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CLASE 87
CIE AUTOMOTIVE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012
(Thousand euro)
At 31 December
Note 2013 2012

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment B 784,759 680,753
Goodwill 7 380,106 308,215
Other intangible assets 7 35,400 29,857
Non-current financial assets B 27,859 38,236
Investments in associates B 10,853 383
Deferred tax assets 23 223,142 162,404
COther non-current assets 9 4,133 5,133

1,466,352 1,224,991
Current assets
inventories 11 226,138 189,884
Trade and other receivables 10 188,540 181,379
Other current assets - 6,384 2,920
Current tax assets - 41,6818 43,276
Other current financial assets 8 85,996 651,914
Cash and cash equivalents 12 329,468 471,692

878,144 851,175

Disposal group assets classified as held-for-sale 13 24,950 38,813
Total assets 2,369,446 2,214,979

The accompanying notes to the annual accounts set out on pages 7 to 85 form an integral part of these

consolidated annual accounts
1.-
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CIE AUTOMOTIVE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012

(Thousand euro)

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to the parent company’s

shareholders :
Share capital

Treasury shares

Share premium

Retained earnings

Interim dividend

Cumulative exchange differences
Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Deferred income

'LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Non-current provisions
Non-current borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

Cther non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Current borrowings

Trade and other payables
Other current financial abilities
Current tax liebilities

Current provisions

Other current liabilities

Dispasal group liabilities classified as held-for-sale

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

0L7054849

At 31 December

Note 2013 2012
14 29,705 28,500
14 - (53,230)
14 61,467 33,752
15 435,875 401,528
15 {(10,684) [8.345)
15/16 {85,400) £54,730)
18 141,880 161,340
562,833 507,816
19 19,358 22,255
25 B6,108 45,163
20 648,122 545,078
23 B2,438 55,809
22 103,488 97.261
881,157 843.311
20 332,743 281,322
21 441,732 439,088
8 B,051 1,488
22 41,294 37,900
25 9,214 8.210
22 70,733 70,776
903,767 838,794
13 2,331 2,803
1,787,255 1,684,908
2,369,446 2,214,979

The accompanying notes to the annual accounts set out on pages 7 to 95 form an integral part of these

consolidated annual accounts
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012

(Thousand euro)

Year ended

31 December
Note 2013 2012
OPFERATING REVENUE 1,830,818 1,705,871
Revenue 26 1,760,253 1,645,705
(Other operating income 26 68,957 68,840
Changa in invantories of finished goods and work in progress 11/26 1,608 {4,574)
OPERATING EXPENSES (1,680,38°) {1,568,594]
Consumption of rew materials and secondary materials 11 {(1.012,679) (963,112)
Employee benafit axpense 28 [381,721) (343,979)
Oepreciation and amortisation 5 {89,690) (82,683)
Othar operating expenses a7 [196,292) (178,820)
OPERATING PROFIT 150,436 141,377
Finance income 29 18,639 41,004
Finance costs 29 {80,236} (81,274)
Net exchange differences 29 11,876 4,179)
Change in fair valua of assets and liabilities taken to income statament 29 {16,369] -
Share of profit/(loss] of associates 8 (297) (168)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 84,089 96,762
Income tax 30 3,418 15,688

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 87,507 112,450

LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 13 [9,6251 (36,482)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 77,886 75,968

PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 18 (17,761) {14,940)

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT 60,125 61,028

Earnings per share from continuing and discontinued operations attributable to

owners of the parant {expressed in euro per share}

- Basic earnings par share: 31 0.56 0.57
From continuing operations 0.65 0.90
From discontinued operations (0.09) {0.33)

- Ofluted earnings per shara: 31 0.56 0.57
From continuing operations 0.65 0.90
From discontinued oparations (0.09} [0.33)

The accompanying notes to the annual accounts set out on pages 7 to 95

consolidated annual accounts

form an integral part of these

3.-
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0L 7054851

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER

2013 AND 2012
[Thousand euro)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Entries that may be reclassified to profit or loss:

- Cash flow hedges
- Net investment hedge
- Currency translation differences
- Available-for-sale financial assets
- Other comprehensive income for the year
- Tax effect

Tatal entries that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Entries that may not be reclassified to profit or loss:
- Actuarial gains and losses
- Tax effect
Total iterns that may not be reclassified to profit or loss
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX
Attributable to:
- Owners of the parent
Continuing operations
Discontinued aperations

- Non-controlling interests

Year ended
31 December

Note 2013 2012
77,886 75,968
8 (7.659) (154}
2.11/4 (32,283) (5.861}
16/18 (51,167) (39,774)
8 (12,095) -
(2,146) {1,392)
23 16,791 2,002
(88,559} (45,179)
24 (108) -
32 -
(76) -
(10,749) 30,789
15 {10,010) 31,209
(389 67.691
13 (9,621) (36,482)
18 {739) (420)
(10,749) 30,789

The accompanying notes to the annual accounts set out on pages 7 to 95 form an integral part of these

consolidated annua! accounts
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

AND 2012
(Thousand euro)

First-time
IFRS-EU
application
reserve and
other Cumulative Non-
Share Treasury Shere restatement axchange Retained Interim controlling
capital shares premium reserves differences earnings dividend interests
[Niote 14) (Note 14} [Note 14) [Note 15) [Note 18] [Note 15) [Note 15} {Note 18} Total equity
Balance at 31 December 2011 28,500 [22,697) 33,752 53,053 [30,B08) 329,983 [9,847) 143,579 525,517
Total comprehensive income for
2012 - - - (4,795) (25,024) 61,028 - {420} 30,789
Distribution of 2011 profit - - - - - {19,525} 9,847 - (9,678)
Interim dividend 2012 - - - - - - [9.345) - (9,345)
Acquisition/sale of treasury
shares - (30,533 - - - - - - (30,533)
Acquisition /sale of nor-controfling
interests - - - - 1,100 3.745 - 13,407 18,252
Business combinetions {Nate 35) - - - - - [18,6/0) - 20,441 1,771
[Other mavements [*) - - - - - {3.290) - (15,667} {18,957)
Balance at 31 December 2012 28,500 [53,230) 33,752 48,258 (54,730} 353,271 (9,345) 161,340 507,816
*) Basically relates to the distribution of dividends to non-controlling interests.
First-time
1IFRS-EU
application Cumulativ
reserve and e
Share Treasury Share ather exchange interim Non-
capital shares premiums  restatament  difference Retained dividend controlling
[Note [Note {Note reserves s [Note earnings [Naote interests Total
14 14) 14) {Mote 15} 16) {Note 15) 15) [Note 19) equity
Balance at 31 December 2012 28,500 (53,230) 33,752 48,258 [54,730) 353,271 (9,345} 161,340 507,816
Total comprehensive income for
2013 - - - (29,494) [40,641) 60,125 - (739} (10,749)
Distribution of 2012 profit - - - - - (18,622) 9,345 - {8,277}
Interim dividend 2013 - - - - - - (10,694) - [10.694)
Acquisition of treasury shares
{Note 14) - [6,079] - - - - - - {6,079)
Sale of treasury shares (Note 14} - 59,309 - - - 7.981 - - 67.290
Increase in capital (Note 14) 1,205 - 27,715 - - - - - 28,920
Consolidation scopa changes {Note
1} - - - - - 7,713 - [11,049) (3,336}
Business combinations [Note 35) - - - - (609} 9,743 - (1,952) 7.182
Other movements [*} - - - - 580 (3.100) - (5.720) (8,240}
Balance at 31 December 2013 29,705 - 61,467 18,764 (95,400) 417,111 (10,694} 141,880 562,833

{*]

The accompanying notes to the annuaf accounts

consolidated annual accounts

Basicaily relates to the distribution of dividends to non-controliing interests (Note 18].

set out on pages 7 to 95 form an integral part of these
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012

(Thousand euro)

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from continuing and discontinued operations
interest paid

Interest received

Income tex paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition /disposal of subsidiaries, nst of cash acquired /transferred

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of intangible assets

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible

assets

Acquisition /disposal of other financial assets

Payments arised from investments in associates
Acquisition /disposal of other assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Acquisition of treasury shares

Sale of treasury shares

Increase in capital

Sale of interest in a subsidiary to non-controlling interests
Proceeds from borrowings

Income [net of reimbursements} from high-ratation borrowings
Loan repayments

Grants received [net)

Dividends paid to shareholders of the parent company
Other payments/income to/from non-controling interests
Net cash [used in})/from financing activities

Exchange gains/[losses) on cash and cash equivalents

Net (decrease)/increase in cash, cash equivalents and bank

overdrafts
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at beginning of year

Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at end of year

Year ended
31 December
Note 2013 2012

33 187,860 169,569
{44,370} (69,590)
16,410 38,589
{16,404} (17,663)
153,498 120,805
B/35 {119,083} [17.814]
6 {91,643) {78,214}
7 {18,564} (6,811}
7,069 4,776

8 {45,339)
8 {9.148) -
- £18.337) (10,751)
[285,045) (108,814]
14 (6,0739] {30,533)
14 67,280 -
14 28,920 -
- 18,955
20 257,367 320,036
20 (24,967) (19,788)
20 {279,581) (289.015)
19 176 898
15 (18,6221 (19,525])
{6,854] (15,730}
17,650 (33,702}
(18,325) (37,040)
(142,224) (58,651}
12 471,892 530,343
12 329,468 471,692

The accompanying notes to the annual accounts set out on pages 7 to 95 form an integral part of these

consolidated annual accounts

G.-
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CIE AUTOMOTIVE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE 2013 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in thousand eurao)

1. General information and Regulatory Framework

1.1 CIE Automotive Group and activities

Activity
The CIE Automaotive Group carries out its activities in three different sectors: the Automotive sector, the Biofuel sector and the
Technological Services and Salutions & EPCs sector, each of which described below:

- Automotive

The automotive business is carried out through an industrial group formed by several companies that are mainly engaged
in the design, manufacture and sale of automotive components and sub-assemblies on the worid automotive market,
using complementary technologies — aluminium, forging, metals and plastics - and several associated processes:
machining, weiding, painting and assembly.

lts main facilities are located in Europe: Spain (Alava, Barcelona, Cadiz, Guiplzcoa, Orense and Vizcaya), Germany,
France, UK, Portugal, Czech Republic, Romania, Morocco, Lithuania, NAFTA (Mexico and the US), South America
(Brazil}, India, the People’s Republic of China and Russia.

- Biofuel

The biofuel business encompasses several companies engaged in the production and distribution of biofuels. Note 1.2
below summarises the main lines of the regulatory framework governing this developing business.

The principal faciities from which this activity is carried on are located in Spain (Alava, Madrid and Vizcaya) and
Guatemala.

- Technological Services and Solutions & EPCs (T35)

The Group, which has an international presence, develops its activities in the hightech services and solutions end of the
market and carries out cuttingedge technology projects, operating in various sectors and industries including the
Telecommunications, Transport, Healthcare, Banking, Energy and Government/Public sectors, its main facilities are
located in Spain, Mexico, Brazil, Argentina, Chile and Peru.

In 2012 the Group decided to discontinue its virgin oitbased biodiesel project, including the refated raw material plantation
activity (jatropha), and to sell Biosur Transformacion, S.L.U. The continuing operations in this segment, therefore, are the
activities related to the production and supply of biodiesel made from recycled oils {Note 13).

Also in 2012, the Group decided to abandon a single line of activity, namely the design, manufacture and supply of certain
automative parts for the ‘engine equipment’ market, in which Group subsidiary Tarabusi, S.A.U. [merged in 2013 into Alcasting
Legutiano, S.L.U.} acted as TIER 1 supplier, with a direct relationship with the OEMs {Nate 13}.

On 3 July 2013, the Board of Directors of the parent company resolved to move its registered office within the city of Bilbao to
“Calle Alameda Mazarredo 63, B2 piso”.

Group structure

CIE Automative, S.A. [publicly fisted) currently holds a direct 100% stake in CIE Berriz, S.L. {CEE Inversiones e Inmuebles S.L.U.
and CIE Automative Bioenergia, S.L. merged with CIE Berriz, S.L. in 2012]}; a 75% stake in CIE Automotive Nuevos Mercados,
S.L.; a B0% stake in R.S. Automotive, B.V; a 100% stake in Autokomp Ingenieria, S.A.U. and, laslly, an 94.43% [2012:
84.95%] stake in Global Dominion Access, S.A., holding companies to which the Group’s productive companies reparts.

The list of subsidiaries and associates at 31 December 2013, together with the information concerning them, is set out in the
Appendix to these consolidated financial statements.

All of the subsidiaries under the cortrol of CIE Automotive Group have heen consolidated using the full consolidation method
while joint ventures have been consolidated using the proportionate method (Nate 37].
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CIE AUTOMOTIVE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE 2013 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in thousand euro)

The associates consolidated under the equity method are as follows:

% interest
2013 2012

Belgium Forge, N.V. [1) 100% 100%
Biocombustibles de Zierbana, S5.A. (1) (2] 20% 20%
Biocombustibles La Seda, S.L. (1) [2] 40% 40%
Galfor Edlica, S.L. (2] (3) ' 50% 50%
Advanced Comfort Systems Meéxico, S.A. de C.V. - 50%
Gescrap — Autometal Comercio de Sucatas, Ltd. (2] 30% 30%
Aritoline CIE Czech Republic (2] 30% -
CIE Hispamoldes Plastiques, S.A.R.L. (1] (2] 50% -
Gescrap Autometal de México, S.A. de CV.[2) 30% -
CIE Automotive Rus, LLC. [3) 100% -
Berca Thermal Energy, S.L. (2] 22.72% -
(1) In fiquidation,/dormant

2] No control

(3] Company launching its installations.

Listing on the stock market in Brazl

One of the Group’s subsidiaries, the Braziian company Autometal S.A., which is 74.78%owned by the Group, trades on the
Brazlian stock exchange (BMFSBOVESPA — Novo Mercado) since 7 February 2011. The Appendix itemises the subsidiaries of
Autometal 5.A..

In 2012 and pursuant to commitments acquired with the Brazilian stock exchange, 2.146% of Autometal, S.A.'s shares were
sold in a series of transactions. As a result, at yearend 2012 (iam at yearend 2013), the Group's shareholding in this
subsidiary stood at 74.76%.

Autometal, 5.A.'s share price on the Brazilian Stock Exchange at 31 December 2013 was 17.40 real.

Strategic alliance with the Mahindra group

On 15 June 2013, CIE Automofive, S.A., through its Brazilian subsidiary Autometal, 5.A. and several of the latter company's
subsidiaries, entered into a strategic agreement to integrate Mahindra & Mahindra's automobile component manufacturing
business with CIE Automative, 5.A.s forged steel component manufacturing business, which will result in the creation of the
MAHINDRA CIE Group, parerted by the Indian company Mahindra CIE Automotive, Ltd and listed on the Bombay Stock
Exchange.

Mahindra Systech is Mahindra & Mahindra's automobile component business unit; its portfolio includes cast iron parts, forged
stael parts, stamped parts, gear assemblies, magnetic products and composites. it has a network of plants and sales offices in
India, Gerrnany, United Kingdorm and ltaly serving custormers located in North Arnerica, Burope and Asia, comprising the
following five subgroups: Mahindra Forgings, Ltd. [company listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange, its name having been
changed to Mahindra CIE Automotive, Ltd.}, Mahindra Composites, Ltd. {company listed on the Bormbay Stock Exchange),
Mahindra Ugine Stee! Company, Ltd. (company listed on the Bormbay Stock Exchange), Mahindra Hinoday industries, Ltd.
{unlisted company] and Mahindra Gears & Transmisions Pvt, Ltd. (unlistad company). Mahindra Systech's consolidated revenue
totalled approximately €580 miion in the latest financial year closed at 31 March 2013.

In June 2013, in a first phase of the operation, Autometal, 5.A. integrated [through a purchase and sale transaction hetween
CE Group companies) CIE Automotive, 5.A.'s European forged steel component manufacturing business, which includes the
companies CIE Galfor, 5.A. and CE legazpi, 5.A. [Spanish companies] and UAB CiE LT Forge [Lithuanian company), with
aggregate revenue totalling appraximately €150 million in the latest financial year closed at 31 December 2012.




OL/7054856

CLASE 8.

CIE AUTOMOTIVE, 5.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE 2013 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in thousand euro)

On 4 October, after obtaining authorisation from the competition authorities in India, Germany and Brazil, as well as other
regulatory approvals, CIE Automotive, S.A. completed this first phase by acquiring a controlling interest in Mahindra CIE
Automotive, Ltd. and in Mahindra Composites, Ltd., through subsidiaries of its Braziian subsidiary Autometal, S.A., by means of
takeover hids in the Bombay Stock Exchange and direct acquisitions, and a controlling interest in Mahindra Hinoday Industries,
Ltd. through a private transaction. The total price paid was INR B.B03 billion (equivalent to approximately Euros 110 million).

The sharehoiding acquired by Autometal, S.A. in those companies through its subsidiaries is a 79.16% stake in the case of
Meahindra CIE Automotive, Ltd., a 61.74% stake in the case of Mahindra Compasites, Ltd. and a 64.96% stake in the case of
Meahindra Hinoday Industries, Ltd.

In a second phase, Mshindra CIE Automative, Ltd. [controlled at the time by CIE Automotive, S.A. through Autometal} initiated a
merger by absorption of Mahindra Composites, Ltd. [company listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange), Mahindra Ugine Sleel
Company Ltd. [company listed on the Bombay Stock BExchange], Mahindra Hinoday Industries, Ltd. [unlisted company} and
Mahindra Gears & Transmisions Put, Ltd. [unlisted companyl], as well as Participaciones Internacionales Autometal Tres, S.L.,
the holding company of CEE Automotive, S.A.’s european forged steel component manufacturing business, in order to integrate
all these businesses.

As mentioned previously, the final outcome of this process in 2014 wil be the creation of the MAHINORA CIE Group, which will
be parented by the Indian company Mahindra CIE Autormnotive, Ltd., listked on the Bombay Stock Exchange, in which CIE
Automnotive, S.A. will hold a controlling interest (around 53% of share capital} through its Brazifian subsidiary Autometal, S.A.,
and in which Mahindra & Mahindra will hold a 20% steke.

As part of the global operation, Mahindra & Mahindra {through Mahindra Overseas investment Company Mauritius Limited} has
acquired a 13.5% interest in CIE Automotive, S.A., through the following transactions: (a) acquisition from CIE Automotive, S.A.
of a 9.44% intarest in share capital [postincrease} which the Company recognised as treasury shares at that date; and (b)
subscription in the capital increase of a 4.06% (postincrease), at the price of €6 per share in both cases, for a total price of
€96,244,236.

The Mahindra & Mahindra operation was ratified by the General Meeting of Autometal, 5.A. held on 8 July 2013, pursuant to
Article 256 of Law 6,404 /76, as amended by Law 10,303/01.

The share prices at 31 December 2013 of the companies currently listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange are as follows:

. Mahindra CIE Automotive, Ltd [formerly Mahindra Forgings, Ltd.}: 48.85 INR.
. Mahindra Ugine Steel Company, Ltd: 118.15 INR.
. Mahindra Composites, Ltd.: 42.3 INR.

This business combination is described in detail in Note 35.

Changes in the scope of consolidation
2013
a) Automotive segment

CIE Hispamoldes Plastiques, S.A.R.L. O'AU, a Moroccan company, was formed on 9 January 2013 with a share capital of 100
thousand dirham (€10 thousand) held entirely by the Group through the -company CE Automotive Hispamoldes, S A,

On 25 February 2013 the Group entered into an agreement with Grupo Antolin frausa under which both parties agreed to
incorporate a joint venture called AntolinClE Czech Republic, s.r.o., in the Czech Republic, which core business is tw make and
sell metallic structures and subassemblies for assembly in car seats.

AntolinCIE Czech Republic, s.r.o. has initial share capital of €1 million, of which Grupo Antolin Irausa has subscribed for 70%
(€700 thousand) and CIE Automotive, 30% (€300 thousand].

On 2 Aprit 2013 the Group incorporated a Spanish company called Participaciones Internacionales Autometat Dos, S.L. with a
share capital of €112,330 thousand that is wholly-owned by Participaciones Internacionales Automnetal, S.L., incorporated in
2012, as subsidiary of the Group's Brazilian subsidiary Autometal, S.A.. Subsequently, on 10 June 2013, this company's share
capital was increased by €102,070 thousand to €214,400 thousand. This equity issue was subscribed for by Participaciones
Internacionales Autometal, S.L. [€42,070 thousand) and by CIE Berriz, S.L. {Appendix ] {€60,000 thousand). As a result, the
company ceased tn be a sole-sshareholder company.
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On 6 May 2013, the Group made a capital contribution of USD 3D2 thousand, thrbugh the Mexican subsidiary CIE Autometal
de México, S.A. de C.V., representing 30% of the share capital of the Mexican company Gescrap Autometal México, 5.A. de
C.V.

On 28 May 2013 the Group incorporated a Spanish Company called Participaciones Internacionales Autometal Tres, S.L. with
a share capital of euro 3 thousand, that is wholly-owned by Participaciones Internacionales Autometal Dos, S.L. Subsequently,
on 11 June 2D13, this company increased its equity by euro B0 million; this equity issue was subscribed for in full by
Participaciones Internacionales Autometal Dos, S.L.

On 10 June 2013, within the framework of the stratagic operation signed with Mahindra Group, the company CIE Galfor, S.A.
acquired the Spanish company CIE Legazpi, S.A., formerly wholly-owned by the Group through CE Berriz, S.L., and Lithuanian
company UAB CIE LT Forge, formerly wholly-owned by CE Automative Nuevos Mercados, S.L., which is in turn 735%-owned by
CIE Autormotive Group. This transaction, that individually has been made to market value, had no effect on the Group's financial
statements with the exception of the increase in shareholding in UAB CIE LT Forge, from 75% to 100%, which generated a
decrease in retained earnings increasing the balance in noncontrolfing interests in €3 million.

On 12 June 2013, under the scope of the strategic agreement with the Mahindra Group, the wholly-owned Group subsidiary
CIE Berriz, S.L. signed with Participaciones Internacionales Autometal Tres, S.L., a purchase agreement encompassing 100%
of the shares of CIE Galfor 5.A., a company which in turn owns 100% of the shares of CIE Legazpi S.A. and UAB CIE LT Forge.
In the wake of this transection, and by virtua of the Group’s effective shareholdings in these companies, subsidiaries of the
Group listed in Brazl, Autometal, which is 74.76%-owned by the Group, the Group ended up with an 82.B2% shareholding in
the Galfor subgroup. The only accounting effect of this transaction, that individually has been made to market vaiue, at the
Group level is an increase in retained earnings and dacreasing the balance in noncontroling interests in 017 million.

On 1 July 2013, the Group split the chroming operating unit then part of Braziian company Autometal SBC Injecao, Pintura
Cromacéo de Plasticos, Ltda. [SBC1), whollyowned by Group subsidiary Autometal, S.A., incorporating a new company, also
domicfied in Brazil, called Autocromo Cromacao de Plasticos, Ltda. (SBC2), a whollyowned subsidiary of SBC1. This transaction
has no impact whatsoever at the consolidated level.

The merger of Alcasting Legutiano S.L.U. {transferee) and Tarabusi S.A.U. {transferor), both Spanish domiciled companies, was
recorded in the Companies Register on 7 August 2013. This merger has no impact whatsoever at the consolidated level.

Russian company CIE Automotive RUS, LLC, 100%owned hy Group subsidiary CIE Automotive Nuevos Mercados, S.L., was
incorporated on 29 August 2013. The Group's effactive shareholding in this newlyincorporatad company is 75%.

Spanish company CIE Automotive Nuevos Mercados, S.L. sold all of its shares in Doga Aviokom CIE LLC (DAC, LLC] for RUBB.2
miflion {€187 thousand) on 4 Septamber 2013. This transaction implied a loss at the Group level of €57 thousand.

As detailed in previous section, in October Perticipaciones Internacionales Autometal Dos, S.L. acquired 79.16% of Mahindra
CE Automotive, Ltd. {forrmerly Mahindra Forgings Limited), 61.74% of Mahindra Cormposites Limited and 64.91% of Mahindra
Hinoday Industries Limited.

b) Teéhnnlugical Services and Solutions & EPCs [TSS) segment

Visual Line, S.L. was incorporated in 2013 with a share capital of suro 3,100 with Global Dominion Access, S.A. taking a 55%
interest. Additionally, in August 2013 Dominion Instalaciones y Montajes 5.A.U. acquired a 50% stake in Dominion Networks,
S.L. to hold all its share capital.

With effect for accounting purposes from 1 January 2013, Dominion Instalaciones y Montajes, S.A.U. [DIMSA} segregated in
favour of its wholrowned subsidiaries Dominion Networks, S.L. and Dominion Centro de Gestion Personalizada, S.L.,
respectively, its telecommunications services related activities consisting of the deployment of resources for customers
Telefonica and Vendors, on the one hand, and the centralised monitoring and control of its customers’ telecommunications
networks, on the other.

The idea of this transaction is to have better align business activities with customer needs and to enhance strategic visihility in
the telecommunications market for future projects and operations. This transaction had no accounting impact whatsoever at
the consolidated level.
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In December 2013, prior to the two capital increases carried out by the maijority shareholder CIE Automotive, S.A., the
company Global Dominion Access, S.A. purchased, in two transactions, 3,731 and 7,587 treasury shares which, added to the
4,188 treasury shares acquired in priar years, totalled 15,508 shares at the year end, representing 2.077% of share capital.

With respect to the two capital increases of 19 December, the company CE Automotive S.A. paid a total amount of €60 miflion
in order to subscribe for 373,142 new shares (€4,485 thousand relating to their par value and €55,515 thousand to the
share premium). As a resuit of these operations, its shareholding increased from 84.95% to 92.47% ([94.43% net of the
effect of reasury shares).

On 20 December 2013, the Group subscribed for a capital increase in the Spanish company Beroa Thermal Energy, S.L. in the
amount of €10,000 thousand, through the subsidiary Global Dominion Access, S.A., to acquire a 22.72% stake. Additionally, a
purchase option agreement; was concluded whereby the Group reserved the right to acquire an additional 50% stake in Beroa
Thermat Energy, S.L. during 2014. If the purchase option is exercised, the Dominion Group wili pay, over three years, an
amount equal to the Beroa Group's BBITDA for each of the three years (2014, 2015 and 2018) multiplied by 7.5x, reduced by
the correspaonding financial debt. Both operations are carried out at market value in accordance with independent expect
report.

The group parented by Beroa Thermal Energy, S.L. is engaged in the building of industrial facilities and related projects,
technical assistance and advice for companies, particularly in relation to refractory and similar materials, as well as the
construction of chimneys, preparation of plans and projects, and building of related industrial facilities, including the fitting of
components in such facifities. It also prepares studies on the creation, structure and feasibility of companies and holds interests
in trading companies through the acquisition of shares or interests, particularly in companies engaged in the assembly of
refractory materials in facilities of all kinds.

The company's main facilities are located in Europe (Spain, Germany, France, ltaly, United Kingdom, Poland and Denrmnark), as
well as in Saudi Arabia, Persian Guff countries (Oman, Qatar, UAE], United States, Latin America {Chile, Mexico and Argentina),
and South Africa.

2012

a) Automotive segment

On 31 March 2012, Group company Investigacion, Innovacion y Desarrollo Grupo Recyde, A.LE., owned by Group companies
Naova Recyd, S.A.U. [25%), Recyde, S.A.U. [25%), Componentes de Automocion Recytec, S.L.U. {20%), Alfa Deco, S.A.U.
(15%4, Alucery, S.A.U. (10%0) and Tarabusi, S.A.U. (5%), was liquidated (Appendix).

On 10 Aprit 2012, the Group acquired 15% of Russia's ClE-Avtocom, LLC through CIE Automotive Nuevos Mercados, S.L.,
thereby increasing its shareholding in this investee from 35% to 50%.

On that same date, through CE Automotive Nuevos Mercado SL. and ClE-Avtocom, LLC, the Group subscribed for equity
issued by Russian company CIEAvtocom Kaluga, LLC, thereby increasing its shareholding in this investee by 15% to 50%.

On 7 August 2012 the Group incorporated Participaciones Internacionales Autometal, S.L., with share capital of 03 thousand.
This newly created cormpany is domiciled in Spain and 100%-owned by the Group’s parent company, CIE Automotive, S.A. On
21 September 2012, pursuant to a share purchase agreement between CIE Automotive, S.A. and Autometal, S.A., the latter
took a 100% shareholding in Participaciones Internacionales Autometal, S.L.

In September 2012, through its Braziian subsidiary Autometal, S.A., the Group set up a joint venture with China's Donghua
Automotive Industrial Co., Ltd. Under the terms of the joint venture agreement, Autometal would invest, by subscribing an
increase in share capital, in Chinese company Nanjing Autormative Forging Co., Ltd,, a company in which Donghua Automotive
industrial Co., Ltd. held a 96.75% shareholding. The share capital increase amounts, this financial contribution allows
Autometal, S.A. to take control of Nanjing Automotive Forging Co. Ltd., through agreements that give Autometal, S.A. more
than 90% of rights to vate with a share of its share capital. The main purpose of the joint venture is to develop and
manufacture of autormotive parts using stamp forging and complementary technologies at Nanjing Automative Forging Ca. Ltd.
and, particularly, to develop and make crankshafts. CIE Group has direct experience making this product in its European facilities
{Note 35).
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Through its US subsidiary, CIE Automotive USA, Inc. [an investment held by CIE Automotive, S.A. through its Brazilian subsidiary,
Autormnetal, 5.A.), the Group acquired a 65% sharehalding in US company Century Plastics lic. in October 2012, This company
is located in Detroit [Michigan). It makes car parts using plastic injection moulding technology. The transaction price was
USD23.5 milion (€18.7 milion}; the seller granted the buyer a call option on the remaining 35% interest.

On.1 October 2012, the CE Automotive Group, through CIE Autometal de Mexico 5.A. de C.V. and Pintura, Estampado y
Montaje, S.AP.I. de C.V., incorporated Celaya, S.A. de C.V,, as a whollyowned subsidiary. The new company’s share capital
amounts to MXP 100 thousand.

CEE Inversiones Inmuebles, S.L. and CE Automnotive Bioenergia, S.L. {transferor companies] merged into CIE Berriz, S.L.
(transferee} with affect from 27 December 2012, This merger did not have any effect on the consolidated figures.

b) Biofuels segment
On 4 January 2012, the Group acquired 51% of Spanish company Recogida de Aceites y Grasas Maresme, S.L. [REMA]

through its subsidiary Bionor Transformacion, S.A.U. The acquiree commercializes and recyocles raw materials for
transformation into biodiese! {Note 33).

c) Technological Services and Solutions & EPCs (TSS) segment

On 22 February 2012 a Peruvian company was incorporated, Oominion Perd Saluciones y Servicios, 5.A.C. The new company
is 99.99%-owned by Global Dominion Access, S.A.

On 1 July 2012, Mexican company Dominion Tl, 5.A. de CV sold all its shares in Grupo DRCC, 5.A. de CV for a sum equivalent
to their accounting carrying amount. This transaction did not, therefore, have any impact on the consolidated figures.

On 1 July 2012, Dominion México, S.A. de C.V. (subsequently merged with Mexicana de Electronica industrial, 5.A. de C.V.
/MEXEL)) sold its shares in DM Informatica, S.A. de C.V. for a sum equivalent to their accounting carrying amount; the
transaction did not have any impact on the consolidated figures.

The deeds of the reverse merger of Dominion Méxco, S.A. de C.V. {transferor company) and Mexicana de Elactronica
Industrial, S.A. de CV. {transferea) were registerad in September 2012, This merger did not have any effect on the
consolidated figures.

In 2012 Global Dominion Brasil Participacoes Ltda. sold its 50% shareholding in GES Dominion Brasil, S.A. to GES Espafia, 5.A.
for a sumn aquivalent to the carrying amount of this investment, so that this transaction did not have any impact on the
consolidated figures.

Sharcholders of the Group's parent company

The companies holding a direct or indirect shareholding of more than 10% in CIE Automotive, 5.A. at 31 December 2013
and 2012 ara as follows [Note 14

% interest
2013 2012
Corporacian Gestamp, S.L. {(*124.871% {*125.923%
Mahindra & Mahindra, Ltd {(**1 13.500% -
Elidoza Promocién de Empresas, S.L. 10.424% 10.865%
(*} 10.648% directly and 14.223% indirectly through Risteel Corpotation, B.V. {yearend 2012: 11.098% directly and 14.825%

indirectly through Risteel Corporation, B.V.).
**] indirectly through Mahindra Overseas Investment Company (Mauritius), Ltd.

Settlement of guarantees under the agreement to integrate the Technological Services and Solutions & EPCs
business into the CIE Automotive Group

Having regard to the Technological Sarvicas and Soiutions & BPCs businass integrated into the CIE Autormotive Group in 2011,
and in accordanca with tha agreament concluded on 20 September 2010 between CE Automative, INSSEC (Group's majority
shareholder) and the shareholders of INSSEC DOS (countarparty in the transaction}, in addition to the usual guaranteas covaring
damage to the assets contributed that could arise in the CIE Automotive Group as a result of acts or omissions prior to the
effactive date of the merger {1 January 2011}, in tha event that the arithmatic average for the normalised EBITDA [as this ratio
is defined) of the Technological Services and Saolutions & EPCs  business (Dominion Group} that was integrated into the CE
Automotive Group, for 2011 and 2012, differed by more than 10% from the figure stated in the Business Plan [€10.280
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milion}, CE Automotive, S.A. or INSSEC DOS would pay compensation {based on whether the difference was positive or
negative] in an amount celculated by applying a multiple of 5.35 to the difference, plus 8% interest. The agreement also
envisaged the calculation of this compensation in advance in the event of the divestment of the Dominion Group before the
guarantee period commences, stipulating in this case the sale value as a reference for and a limit on the compensation payable,
irrespective of the result of the above-mentioned calculation.

In 2013, following the analysis of the busiess results obtained in 2011 and 2012, the guarantee calculation was performed,
resulting in the payment of compensation by CIE Automotive to the counterparty in the amount of €16.4 million; this liability was
recognised during the year [Note 23). This amount was settled during the year by offsetting the guarantees included in balance
sheet assets (Note 8).

Authorisation for issue

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 February 2014,
Consalidated annual accounts are pending to be ratified by the Group parent company's shareholders. However, management
expects them to be approved without madification.

1.2 Regulatory Framewaork
The Biofuel business is subject to a specific regulatory framework which covers several aspects of the business.

Buffer inventories

Royal Decree 1716/2004 came into effect on 27 August 2D04, enacting the Hydrocarbons Act in relation to the
obligations to maintain minimum inventory levels in the oil and natural gas sectors and to diversify natural gas supplies. This
legistation defines the parties subject to these obligations, the content of the same, the amount, form and location of these
inventories, reporting obligations and administrative competences relating to the inspection and control of these inventory
obligations. This Royal Decree also regulates the operation of Corporacion de Reservas Estratégicas de Productos
Petrofiferas {hereinafter, CORES) and fossil fuel supply shortages.

In this respect, Group subsidiary VIA Operador Petrolfero, S.L.UL., as an ofl product operator, in accordance with Royal
Decree 1716,/2004, as amended by Royal Decree 1766,/2007 (28 December), is subject to the obligation to maintain
minimum inventory levels of oil products. Oil product operators are required to maintain minimum inventory levels equivalent,
to the days' sales stipulated by law, (92 days to the current date] of which CORES covers a mandatory 42 days and the
operators the rest, of which 35 are maintained by CORES through a lease agreement concluded by the respective parties,
Inspection and control of compliance with this obligation are handled by CORES, which was set up on 7 July 1935.

Mandatory annual certification of biofuel sales/consumption

Order ITC/2877/2008 stipulates that the parties bound by the terms thereof certify annually the certification entity
ownership of the minimum number of biofuel certificates required to enable thermn to comply with the hinding biofuel targets
{as modified by several decrees, those currently prevailing being Royal Decree 453/2011 (2 Aprill and Royal Decree
4,/2013 (22 February)). Said certficates are understood to mean the document issued at the request, of the party subject
to the Order certifying that the latter has accredited sales or consumption of a tonna of oil equivalent (toe} of bicfuels in a
given year. Failure by these parties to certify the levels of consumption shown in the teble below triggers a penalty of €350
per biofuel certificate not presantad.

As noted above, Royal Decree 4339/2011 was published on 2 April 2011, replacing Royal Decree 1783,/2010; in the
wake of the legislative amendments passed in 2013, this body of legislation astablishes the following targets for biofuels in
general and as substitutes for diesel in particular:

2013 2012
Biofuel targets 4.1% 6.5%

2013 2012
Biofuel mix targets for diesel 4.1% 7%
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Sustainability

Royal Decree 1537/2011, published on 4 November 2D11, regulates the sustainability criteria for biofuels and
bioliguids, the National Sustainability Verification System and the double counting of some biofuels for computation
purposes. This Royal Decree, which deems the CNE, Spain's energy regulator, the system manager, provides for the
double couriting of certain biofuels in terms of compliance with biofuel consumption and sales targets and the 1D%
renewable energy target for transportation for 2020,

Legislative developments, 2012

Order {ET B22/2012 was published in the Dfficial State Journal on 20 April 2012. This ministerial order reguiates the
allocation of biodiesel quotas for binding bicfuel target calculation purposes. The order established the basic aspects of a
procedure to allocate biodiesel output volumes for the calculation of the objectives, up to a maximum of 5.5 million tonnes
per annum, for a twayear period extendible for an additional two years.

The purpose of this legislation is to serve as a license so that only European plants applying for biodiesel quotas will be
assigned the fuel and, with respect to the calculation of the binding targets, only those amounts acquired from
authorised biodiesel producers will compute. From the market standpoint, the proposed system has the effect of
restricting supply by guaranteeing that biodiesel does not come from a mere re-mix of imported biodiesels.

Ministerial Order TET 2188,/2012, published in the Official State Journal on 16 October 2012, amends the Order of
20 April in several ways:

It increases the amount to be allocated by 5 million metric tonnes.

It requires requests for licenses to be processed by digital means.

it allows biodiesel to be requested from companies from all around the world.

it eliminates the requirement of being oil operator to request any amount.

it requires the Secretary of State for Energy to issue a ruling to stert the term for applying for biodiesel
quotas,

gbhwn =

Legislative developments, 2013

Foliowing submission of the corresponding allocation applications, the Secretary of State for Energy [(Ministry for Industry,
Energy and Tourism) ultimately issued its resolution on 8 February 2013, effectively calling the new tender for allocating
biodiesel quotas. The draft definitive list was published in the Officiel State Journal on 6 November 2013, triggering the
period for presenting claims upon completion of which the definitive list will be published.

Elsewhere, Royal Decree 4,/2013 on measures to support entrepreneurs and stimulate growth and job creation, published
in the Official State Journal on 22 February 2013, reduced the bicfuel target for 2013 to 4.1% but left the longerterm EU-
imposed targets intact, implying significant growth in mandatary biofuel consumption in the years to come.

Furthermore, cn 4 February 2014, the Ruling of 24 January 2014 from the Secretary of State for Energy was published in
the Official State Gazette, containing the definitive list details of the biodiesel production plants or units, showing the volumes
allocated for the calculation of mandatory - biofuel objectives. In Appendix [, Biosur Transformacion, S.L.U. and Bionor
Berantevilla, S.L.U. were assigned an annual capacity of 240,000 tonnes and 60,000 tonnes, respectively.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
Except as indicated in Note 2.1.1 below, these policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

2.1 Basis of presentation

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 have been prepared in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards adopted for utilisation in the European Union (IFRSEU} and approved
under European Commission Regulations in force at 31 December 2013,

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities {including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.
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The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with [FRSEU requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimatas. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting palicies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

The effectiveness of certain International Financial Reporting Standards from 1 January 2013 has prompted the Group to
adapt its consolidated financial staterments for those standards on a prospective basis; accordingly they do not affect the
comparison of the figures presented. The standards taking effect in the year beginning 1 January 2013 are detailed below.

The consolidated financial staterments are not affected by aspect that may contravene applicable filing bases.

2. 1.1 List and summary of standards, amendments to standards and interpretations published to date

a) Standards, amendments and interpretations mandatory for afl financial years commencing on 11_January
2013

1AS 1 [Amendment) "Presentation of financial stataments - Presentation of items of other comprehensive income™

This amendment changes the presentation of the other statement of comprehensive income, requiring that the items
included in other comprehensive income be grouped in two categories based on whether or nat they will be taken to the
income statement. The items that will not eventually be taken to the income statement must be presented separately from
the items that will affect the income statement in the future.

The option of presenting itams before taxes in other comprehensive income, provided by the previous version of I1AS 1, is
maintained. f an entity applies this option, the tax effect of both groups of items must be shown separately. 1AS 1 has also
changed the name of the "statement of comprehensive income” to "statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive
income”. The possibility of using alternative names is maintained.

This amendment is mandatory for alt financial years starting on or after 1 July 2012.
The amendment has been taken into consideration in the presentation of the Group's 2013 consolidated annual accounts.

IAS 19 (Amendment) “Employee henefits™

The amendment to IAS 18 significantly changes the recognition and measurement of defined benefit pension costs and
of termination benefits, as weil as disclosures of all employee benefits. The following aspects of IAS 19 have been
changed, among others:

o Actuarial losses and gains (now called “recalculations”) may only be recognised in other comprehensive income. The
options of deferring actuarial losses and gains through the corridor approach and of recognising them directly in
the income statement have been eliminated. Revaluations recognised in other comprehensive income may not be
taken to the income statement.

o The cosl of past services must be recognised in the period in which the plan is modified and benefits not vested in a
service period may not be deferred to future periods. Reductions only occur when the number of employees
included in the plan falls significantly. Losses and gains derived from reductions must be recognised in the same
way as past service costs.

o This annual expense of a financed benefit plan must include the net interest expense or income, caiculated by
applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit asset or liability.

o Benefits requiring the provision of future services will not be treated as termination benefits.

The amended IAS 189 is mandatory for all financial years starting on or after 1 January 2013.

Since significant employee benefits were included in 2013 as a result of business combinations, the changes brought. in by
this amendment have already been taken into account in the measurement and breakdown included in the annual accounts,
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IFRS 1 (Amendment) “Severe hyperinflation and removal of fixed dates for first-time adopters”

The emendments related to severe hyperinfiation provide guidelines on how to present for the first time, or summarise
when presenting financial statements under IFRS, following a period during which the entity was unable to fuffil [FRS
reguirements becausa its functional currency was subject to sever hyperinflation.

With respact to the elimination of dates stipulated in IFRS 1, the stendard substitutes references to the date 1
January 2004" for "the IFRS transition date”. Consequently, first-time adopters are not required to restate transactions
that took place prior to the IFRS transition date.

Although this amendment was mandatory for all annual periods commencing on or after 1 July 2011, as per the
effective date stipulated by the IASB, for European Union purposes the effective date refers to periods commencing on
or after 1 January 2013.

The amendment has had no impact becausa the Group does not operate in hyperinfiationary economies.

IAS 12 (Amendment) “Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets”

The amendment to IAS 12 provides a practical approach to the measurement of defarred tax assets and kabilities
related to investment properties carried at fair value, one of the measurement options providad by IAS 40 "Investment
property”. As regards the measurement of these deferred taxes, the amendment brings in the refutable presumption
that the economic benefits inharent in investment properties carried at fair value will be recovered through the sele of
the properties rather than through use. The amendment brings the guidelines previously included in SIC 21 "Income
Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-Oepreciable Assets" into 1AS 12, clarifying that its requirements do not apply to
investment properties carried at. fair value,

Although this amendment was mandatory for eil annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2012, as per the
effective date stipulated by the IASB, for European Union purposes the effective date refers to periods commencing on
or after 1 January 2013.

This amandment does not affect the consolidated annual accounts.

IFRS 13 "Fair value measurement™

IFRS 13 is a result of the joint projact of the IASB and the FASB (US Financial Accounting Standards Board). It explains
how to measure elements at fair value and is designed to improve and extend fair value disclosure requirements. This
standard does not establish which elements must he measured at fair value or add any new fair value measurement
reguirements.

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date {(an exit price). Fair value is a market-based
measurement, not an entityspecific measurement. A 3-evel hierarchy is established, as in [FRS 7, for fair value
measurement, based on the input type and valuation technigues employed. Disclosure requirements undar the new
standard relate to the measurement methods applied, data used in the valuations and any changes in valuation
techniques employed.

This amendment is mandatory for all financial years starting on or after 1 January 2013.

The new standard is applied prospectively as from the start of tha financial year in which it is adopted for the first time.
The disclosure requirements do not apply to the comparative information presented for periods prior to the period of
first-time adoption of IFRS 13.

The Group has included this information and disclosure in the required items, although the application of this standard
has not had a relevant impact on the Group's consolidated annual accounts.

IFRIC 20 "Stripping costs in the production phase of a surface mine”

This interpretation is the result of a reguest to clarify how and when to account for costs relating to the waste
elimination process in a surface mine in order to obtain access to mineral deposits.

This interpretation is not currently applicable to the Group.
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IFRS 1 [Amendment] "Government loans”

The IASB has amended IFRS 1 "Firsttime adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards™ to allow first-time
adopters to apply the provisions of IAS 20 “Accounting for government grants and disclosure of government
assistance”, applicable to entities already applying IFRS, in connection with government loans at below-market interest
rates.

This amendment does not affect the consolidated annual accounts.
improvement project 2009-2011

« IFRS 1 “Firsttime adoption of IFRS”

The amendment clarifies that IFRS 1 may be applied more than once by the same entity in certain
circumstances. In cases in which an entity that previously presented its financial statements under IFRS but
ceased to do so and subsequently applies IFRS once more, a new application of IFRS 1 is permitted but is not
mandatory. If this circumstance were relevant, a disclosure is required of why the entity discontinued the
presentation of its financial statements under IFRS and the reasons for returning to IFRS.

This amendment is applicable retroactively and mandatory for all financial years starting on or after 1 January
2013.

This interpretation is not currently applicable to the Group..

« IFRS 1 “First-time adoption of IFRS”

This clarifies that first-time adopters must maintain unadjusted in their opening balance sheet any borrowing
costs capitalised under their previous chart of accounts. Conversely, 1AS 23 "Borrowing costs” is applicable to
the accounting treatment of borrowing costs incurred following transition to IFRS, even in the case of qualifying
assets under construction at the transition date. The reguirements of IAS 23 may be applied as from a date
prior to the IFRS transition date in relation to qualifying assets the initial capitalisation date of which was that
date or a later date.

This amendment is applicable retroactively and is mandatory for all financial years starting on or after 1 January
2013.

This interpretation is not currently applicable to the Group.

. IAS 1 “Presentation of financial statements”

This amendment clarifies that the comparative information required by IAS 1 forms part of a full set of financial
statements. It also clarifies the minimum requirements for the disclosure of comparative financial information
when an entity changes an accounting policy or performs a retroactive restatement or a reclassification of
items in its financial statements. !n this case, a statement of financial position at the start of the required
comparative period must be presented {a "third balance sheet”), but the notes to that statement of financial
position need not be disclosed. Conversely, if management were to disclose additional comparative information
voluntarily in the financial statements (e.g. an income statement for a third period, a third balance sheet], the
relevant notes must be included in the notes to the accounts. This improvement has also amended IFRS 1
"Firsttime adoption of IFRS” to clarify that a first-time adopter of IFRS must disclose the notes relating to all the
main stalements presented.

This amendment is applicable retroactively and is mandatory for all financial years starting on or after 1 January
2013.

This amendment does not affect the consolidated annual accounts.

« [IAS 16 "Property, plant and equipment”

This clarifies that spare parts and auxiliary equipment must be classed as property, plant and equipment, and
not as inventories, where they fuifil the conditions to be classed as property, plant and equipment. As a result of
this amendment, auxiliary equipment that is expected to be used for more than one period must be classed as
praperty, plant and equipment, instead of as inventories.
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This amendment is applicable retroactively and is mandatory for all financial years starting on or after 1 January
2013.

The Group has studied this amendment and has identified no significant impact on the consolidated annual
accounts.

. IAS 32 "Financial instruments: Presentation”

The amendment resolves a confiict between [AS 32 and IAS 12 “Income taxes”. [t clarifies that tax incentives
reiated to distributions to the holders of an equity instrument and tax incentives related to transaction costs
pertaining to any equity item must be recognised in accordance with IAS 12. Accordingly, tax incentives related
to distributions are recognised in the income statement and tax incentives related to transaction costs
pertaining to equity instruments are recognised in equity.

This amendment is applicable retroactively and is mandatory for all financial years starting on or after 1 January
2013.

This amendment does not affect the consolidated annual accounts.
. IAS 34 “Interim financial reporting”

This amendment has brought into line the disclosure requirements of 1AS 34 and IFRS B "Operating segments”.
It clarifies that an entity preparing interim financial information under |AS 34 must only disclose segment
information on assets and liabilities if such information is regularly furnished to the maximum operating-decision-
taking authority, where a significant change has been recognised with respect to the amounts stated in the
latest annual financial statements.

This amendment is applicable retroactively and is mandatory for all financial years starting on or after 1 January
2013.

The amendment does not affect the consolidated abridged interim financial statements for the six-month period
ended 30 June 2013,

IFRS 7 (Amendment) “Offsetting financial assets and financial liahilities”

in December 2011, the IASB issued an amendment to |AS 32 “Offsetting financial assets and financial fiabilities”, and
an amendment to IFRS 7 “Oisclosures - Offsetting financial assets and liabilities™.

In the amendment to 1AS 32 "Financial instruments: Presentation”, the Application Guidance is modified to clarify some
of the requirements for offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities in the balance sheet. The amendment does
not affect the offset model already provided in 1AS 32, which is stiil applicable when, and only when, an entity currently
has the legally enforceable right to offset the amounts recognised and the intention to settle the net amount or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The amendment to IAS 32 is mandatory for alf financial years
starting on or after 1 January 2014 and is applicable retroactively. Early adoption is permitted.

The amendment to IFRS 7 requires disclosure of quantitative information both on recognised financial instruments that
have been offset in the balance sheet and on financial instruments subject to master netting arrangements,
irrespective of whether or not they have been offset in the balance sheet. The amendment to IFRS 7 is mandatory for
all financial years starting on or after 1 January 2013 and is applicable retroactively,

This amendment does naot affect the consolidated annual accounts,

h) Standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet in force but may be adopted prior to periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2013 [IAS 8.29)

At the signing date of these consolidated annual accounts, the IASB and the IFRS Interpretations Committee has publishad
the following standards, amendments and interpretations that become mandatory in 2014, although the Group has not early
adopted them.
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IFRS 10 "Consolidated financial statements”

IFRS 10 brings in changes to the concept of control, which is still defined as the factor determining whethar an entity must
or must not be included in the consolidated financial statements. IFRS 10 replaces the control and consolidation guidance
pravided by IAS 27 “Consolidated and separate financial statements” and eliminates SIC 12 “"Consolidation - Special
purpose entities”, which is repealed.

In order for control to exist, there is no need for the concurrence of these two elements: power over an entity and variable
returns. Power is defined as the capacity to direct the activities that significantly affect an entity's performance. The
concept of unity of the parent entity and its subsidiaries for the purposes of the consolidated financial statements, and "the
consolidation procedures, have not changed with respect to IAS 27,

Although this standard is mendatory for all annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013, as per the effectve
date stipulated by the IASB, for European Union purposes the effective date refers to periods commencing on or after 1
January 2014.

It mey be adopted early provided that IFRS 11 "Joint arrangements”, IFRS 12 “Disclosure of interests in other entities”, 1AS
27 (amended in 2D11) “Separate financial statements™ and IAS 28 (amended in 2011} “Investments in associates and
joint ventures” are simultaneously adopted.

The new standard is not expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated annual accounts.

IFRS 11 "Joint arrangements™

IFRS 11 provides accounting treatment for joint arrangements, based on the rights end obligations arising from the
agreement rather than on its legal form. There are only two types of joint arrangements: joint operations and joint
venturas, |n joint operations, the member has direct rights to the assets and obligations arising from the agreements and
thus recognises its proportional interest in the entity's assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. in joint ventures, the
member has s right to the entity's resuits or net assets and therefore recognises its interest using the equity method.

Interests in joint ventures can no longer be recognised using the proportionete consolidetion method.

Although this stendard is mandatory for all annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013, as per the sffective
date stipuiated by the ASB, for European Union purposes the effective date refers to periods commencing on or after 1
January 2014. The changes in accounting treatment required by [FRS 11 are reflected at the start of the earliest pericd
reparted in the financial statements.

IFRS 11 may be early adopted provided that IFRS 10 "Consolideted financiel statements”, IFRS 12 "Disclosure of interests
in other entities”, IAS 27 (amended in 2D11) "Separate financial stetements” and |IAS 28 [amended in 2011) "Investments
in associates and joint ventures” are simultanecusly adopted.

The new standard is not expectad to have a significant effect on the consolidated annual accounts.

IFRS 12 "Disclosure of interests in other entities”

IFRS12 conteins the disclosure requirements for entities reporting under the new [FRS 10 "Consoclidated financial
statements” and the new IFRS 11 "Joint arrangements”. It also replaces the disclosure requirements previously included
in the former 1AS 28 "Investments in associates” and |AS 31 “Interests in joint ventures”. Under IFRS 12, disclosures
must allow users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature, risks and financial effects associated with the entity's
interests in subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangerments and non-consolidated structured entities.

Although this standard is mandatory for all annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013, as per the effective
date stipulated by the IASB, for European Union purposes the effective date refers to periods commencing on or after 1
Januery 2014.

In order to encourage the inclusion in the financial statements of the new disclosures required by IFRS 12 prior to its
effective data, the standard clarifies that the disclosure of a part of the information required by IFRS 12 does not force the
entity to fuifil all the provisions of this standard, or to simultaneously adopt IFRS 10 "Consolidated financial statements”,
IFRS 11 "Joint arrangements”, 1AS 27 (amended in 201 1) “Separate financial statements” and 1AS 28 {amended in 2011]
“Investments in associates and joint ventures”.

The Group is analysing the impact of the new standard on the consolidated annual accounts, which is not expected to be
significant.
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IAS 27 [Amendment] “Separate financial statements™

The reguirements previously contained in 1AS 27 relating to the preparation of consolidated financiel statements are
included in the new IFRS 10. The scope of IAS 27 is therefore reduced to the recognition of investments in
subsidieries, jointly-controfied entities and associates in the investing entity's individual financial statements under IFRS,
no changes having been made with respect to the previous standard (i.e. recognition at cost or at fair value as per
[FRS 9).

Although the amended IAS 27 is mandatory for all annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013, as per the
effective date stipulated by the IASB, for European Union purposes the effective date refers to periods commencing on
or after 1 January 2014.

It may be adopted early provided that IFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements™, [FRS 11 "Joint arrangements”, |AS
12 “Disclosure of interests in other entities” and IAS 28 {amended in 2011) “Investments in associates and joint
ventures” are simuitaneously adopted.

The new amendment is not expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated annuaf accounts.

IAS 28 [Amendment] "Investments in associates and joint ventures™”

IAS 28 has been updated to include references to joint ventures, which must be recognised using the equity method
under the new IFRS 11 "Joint arrangements”. Information has also been added on the following aspects:

. Accounting treatment of instruments that pravide potential voting rights;

. Measurement of interests in associates and joint ventures in the hands of venture capital entities, mutual entities
and other similar entities;

. Accounting treatment when the interest in an associate or joint venture decreases but the equity method is still
applicable; and

. Accounting treatment of the contribution of a non-monetary asset to an associate or joint venture in exchange for
an equity interest in the entity.

Although the amended IAS 28 is mandatory for all annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013, as per the
effective date stipulated by the IASB, for European Union purposes the effective date refers to periods commencing on
or after 1 January 2014,

it may be adopted early provided that IFRS 10 “Consclidated financial statements”, IFRS 11 “Joint arrangements”, |AS
12 “Disclosure of interests in other entities” and 1AS 27 [amended in 2011} “Separate financial statements" are
simultaneously adopted.

At the closing date of these consolidated accounts, the Group has 50% interests in two joint ventures: the RS
Automative Group and the CIE Avtocom Group. In February 2014 (Note 40), the remaining S0% of the first joint
venture was acquired, meaning that it will be fully consolidated in the future,

The investment in the Russian group CIE Avtocom will be equity consolidated, without any significant impact on the
consolidated annual accounts, except the presentation of the balance sheet and income statement.

IFRS 32 [Amendment) “Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities”
in Oecember 2011, the IASB issued an amendment to [AS 32 "Offsetting financial assets and financial labilities”, and
an amendment to IFRS 7 "Disclosures - Offsetting financial assets and liabilities”, as already indicated.

IFRS 10 (Amendment), IFRS 11 [Amendment) and IFRS 12 [Amendment) "Consolidated financial statements,
joint arrangements and disclosure of interests in other entities: Transition guide {(amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 11 and IFRS 12)"

The |ASB has amended the transitional provisions of IFRS 10 "Consolidated financial statements", IFRS 11 "Joint
arrangements” and IFRS 12 "Disclosure of interests in other entities” to clarify that the date of first-time adoption is the
first day of first annual period in which IFRS 10 is applied for the first time. See the comments above on the
amendments to IFRS 11 and [FRS 12.
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IFRS 10 [(Amendment), IFRS 12 [Amendment) and IAS 27 [Amendment) ‘;Inuestment entities”

In certain circumstances, the amendment to IFRS 10 means that funds and similar entities will be exonerated from
consolidating the entities over which they exercisa control. Instead, they must be carried at fair vaiue through profit or
loss. These amendmants thus provida an exception for entities that meet the definition of an "investment entity” and
that have specific charactaristics. Amendments have aiso baen made to IFRS 12 to bring in reporting requiremants
that an entity of this kind must include in its consolidated annual accounts.

The amendment of these standards mandatory for all financial years starting on or after 1 January 2014, Thay may
be early adopted, provided all the abave-rmentioned amendments are adopted at the same time.

The new amendment is not expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated annual accounts.
c] Standards, amendments and interpretations of existing stendards that cannot be early adopted or have not
been adopted by the European Union:

At tha date these consolidated annual accounts were prepared, the IASB and IFRS Interpretetions Committee had published
the following standards, amendmants and interpretations that have not yet been adopted by tha European Union,

IAS 19 [Amendment] “Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions”

This amendment applies to contributions by employaas or third parties to defined benefit plans, The purpose is to
simplify the accounting treatment of contributions that are unrelated to the number of years of service, e.g. employee
contributions calculated based on a fixed percantage of their salary.

IAS 19 (revised in 2011) distinguishes between employee contributions related to and not related to service, The
current amendment also distinguishes between contributions related to service only in the period in which they arise
and contributions related to service over mare than one period. The amendment allows contributions linked to service
that do not change based on the duration of the employee's servica to be deducted from the cost of benefits accrued
in the period in which the relevant service is provided.

Contributions linked to service and which vary based on the duration of the employee's service must be apportioned
over the service provision period using the same allocation method applied to the benefits; this means either applying
the pension plan formula or, where the plan provides a significantly higher level of benefit for service in later years,
applying a straight-line method.

This amandmant is applicable retrospectively in financiat years beginning on or after 1 July 2014. Early adoption is
permitted.

IAS 36 [Amendment) “Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets”

The IASB has published a limited scope amendment to IAS 36 “Impairment of assets” in connection with disclosures of
the recoverable amount of impaired assets where the recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs to sell or
otherwise dispose of the assets. The resulting amendments to IAS 36 disclosure requirements were made through
IFAS 13 "Fair value measurement”. One of these amendmenls was more extensive than expected. The amendment
corrects this situation and also raquires the presentation of supplementary information on fair value measurements
made in the event of impairment or a reversal of impairment.

This amendment is applicable ratrospectively in financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2014. It may be early
adopted but cannot be adopted before IFRS 13 is adopted by the entity.

IAS 39 [Amendment) “Financial instruments - Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedge accounting”
(June 2013)

Under IAS 39 an entity is required to interrupt hedge accounting where a derivative designated as a hedging
instrument is novated to a Central Counterparty Clearing House [CCP), since the original derivative caases to exist. The
new derjvative with the CCP is recognised at the novation date.

The IASB has amended IAS 39 to provide a restricted-scope exemption to the interruption of hedge accounting when
the novation of a hedging instrurment to a CCP fulfils certain requiremants.
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Spacifically, such changes will not result in the expiration or tarmination of the hedging instrument if:

. As a result of a law or specific regulation, the parties to the hedging instrumant agree that a CCP, or an entity {or
entities) acting as a counterparty in order to perform the clearing like a CCP, replaces the original counterparty;
and

. Other changes, if applicable, to the hedging instrument are Emited to changes necessary for the replacement of
the counterparty,

These amendment will be applicable to financial years commencing on or after 1 January 2014 and may be early
adopted.

IFRS 9 "Financial instruments”

The issuance of IFRS 9 “Financial instruments” in Novernber 2009 was the first step in the |ASB's comprehensive
project to replace 1AS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement”. [FRS 9 simplifies the accounting
treatment of financial assets and brings in new classification and measurement requirements. Financial assets held
mainly to caollect cash flows representing principal and interest payments must be carried at amortised cost, while all
other financial assets, including assets held for trading, must be measured at fair value. Consequently, an impairment
model is required aonly far financial assets carried at amortised cost. In October 2010 the IASB updated IFRS 9 to
include the recognition and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities and derecognition of financial instruments,
The previous requirements of IAS in this respect have not been amended, except for the subsequent recognition af
financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss.

In this case, fair value changes derived from the evaluation of the entity's own credit risk are recognised as income and
expense directly in equity. The amounts recognised in equity are not recycled to the income statement, although they
may be reclassified to other equity items. MNonetheless, if at the initial recognition of the liabifities it is observed that
this accounting treatment would cause a mismatch with the measurement of associated financial assets, all value
changes must be taken to the income statement. The current requirements of IAS 39 with respect to the impairment
of financial assets and hedge accounting remain applicable,

This standard is applicable to financial years commencing on or after 1 January 2013 and may be early adopted,

IFRS 9 (Amendment) and IFRS 7 [Amendment) “Mandatory effective date and transition disclosures”

The IASB has published an amendment delaying the affective date of IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, which is now
mandatory for annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2015. Under the original transitional provisions, IFRS
9 was to come into force on 1 January 2013. The early adoption of IFRS 9 is still permitted.

The IASB has also extended the time frame for the completion of the rest of the phases of the project to replace IAS
39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement” [recagnition of impairment losses and hedge accounting].
This amendment highlights the importance of allowing the simultaneous application of all the phases of the new
standard.

It should also be noted that the amendment to IFRS 8 brings in changes affecting comparative information and

additional disclasures that must be provided after adopting the new standard, based on the date of firsttime adoptian,

as explained below.

. If IFRS 9 is applied to periods commencing pricr to 1 January 2012, the comparative figures need not be
restated and additional disclosures need not be included at the initial application date of the standard;

. If IFRS 9 is applied to periods commencing an ar after 1 January 2012 and prior to 1 January 2013, the entity
must opt between restating the comparative figures and including the additional disclosures at the initial
application date of the standard;

. if IFRS 9 is applied to periads commencing on or after 1 January 2013, the comparative figures need not be
restated but additional disclosures must be included at the initial application date of the standard.

IFRS 9 (Amendment) "Financial instruments: Hedge accounting and amendments ta IFRS 9, IFRS 7 and IAS

39]!

As part of the IASB's project to replace 1AS 39 entirely by IFRS 8, the document “IFRS 39: Financial instruments -

Hedge accounting” has been published, entailing the inclusion in IFRS 9 of hedge accounting requirements. These
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amendments to [FRS 9 represent a substantive reform of hedge ac:c:ountihg, bringing it more into line with risk
management; this should result in information that is more useful for decision-taking by the users of financial
statements.

These new requirements also establish an approach based more on principles instead of rules for hedge accounting
and address inconsistencies and weaknesses in the current 1AS 38 mode.

The most significant changes affect to:

. Hedge effective testing and possibility of applying hedge accounting.
. Hedged iterns

«.  Hedging instruments.

. Recognition, presentation and disclosures.

Other amendments to IFRS 9, though unrelated to hedge accounting, allow entities to early adopt the requirement to
recognise, in other comprehensive income, fair value changes attributable to changes in the entity's own credit risk [for
financial liabilities carried at fair value). This may be applied without adopting the rest of IFRS 9.

Finally, the effective date of IFRS 9 (1 January 2015] has been eliminated, although entities may still opt to apply IFRS 9
immediately [not for IFRSEU purposes, since IFRS 9 has not yet been approved by the European Union).

FFRS 9 is applicable retroactively, However, hedge accounting is applicable prospectively (with certain exceptions].

IFRIC 21 “Levies™

IFRIC 21 “Levies” is an interpretation of IAS 37 "Provisions, contingent assets and contingent fiabilities” that addresses
the accounting treatment of levies imposed by public administrations, other than income tax and fines or penaities
imposed due to the infringement of legistation. The main issue raised is when the entity must recognise a liabifity due to
the obligation to pay a levy recognised under 1AS 37. IAS 37 stipulates the conditions for the recognition of a liability,
one of which is that the entity must have a present obligation as a result of a past event. The interpretation clarifies
that the event requiring and giving rise to a liability for the payment of a levy is the activity described in the relevant
legislation that causes the payment of the fevy.

This interpretation is mandatory for all financial years starting on or after 1 January 2014. Early adoption is
permitted.

2.2 Consolidation principles

a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities {including specialpurpose companies) over which the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. When assessing
whether the Group controls a company, the existence and effects of potential voting rights which may be currently exercised or
converted are taken into account. The Group also assesses existence of control where it does not have more than 50% of the
voting power but is able to govern the financial and operating policies by virtue of defacto control. Defacto control may arise in
circumstances where the size of the Group's voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of other shareholders
give the Group the power to govern the financiel and operating policies, etc.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration paid for the acquisition of a
subsidiary consists of the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred also includes the fair value of any asset or liability that originates from a contingent
consideration agreement. Acquisitionrelated costs are expensed as incurred. [dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree on an ecquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controliing interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisitionrefated costs are expensed as incurred.

If the husiness combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through profi or loss.
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Any contingent compensation to be transferred hy the Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent setlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measurad as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount of any noncontroling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisiion-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
Group's share of the net identfiable assets acquired and #abiliies assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

[ntercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also efminated. The accounting policies followed by subsidiaries have been modified where necessary to
ensure uniformity with policies adopted by the Group.

The accompanying Appendix sets out the identification particulars of subsidiaries,
31 December is the year-end for all the annual financial statements used in the consolidation process.

h) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control

The Group recognises transactions involving non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control as transactions with
the owners of the Group's equity in their capacity as owners. In acquisitions of nonrcontrolling interests, the fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to nonrcontrolling interests are also recorded in equity.

c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes aof subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive: income in respect of that entity are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or foss.

d) Joint ventures

The Group's interests in jointly controlled entities are proportionately consolidated. The Group combines its share of the joint
ventures’ individual income and expenses, assets and ligbilities and cash flows on a linebyine basis with similar tems in the
Group’s financial statements. The Group recognises the partion of gains or losses on the sale of assets hy the Group to the joint
venture that is atirbutable to the other venturers. The Group does not recognise its share of profits or losses from the joint
venture that result from the Group's purchase of assets from the joint venture untit it resells the assets to an independent
party. However, a loss on the transaction is recognised immediately if the loss provides evidence of a reduction in the net
realisable value of current assets, or an impairment loss,

For more detailed information on these jpint ventures, see Note 37.
e] Associates

Associates {Note B.c] are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but nat control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 3D% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised al cost and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group's investment in associates includes any goodwill {net of impairment} identified on acquisition {Note 2.7.a)). Note 2.8
outlines the impairment policy in respect of nonfinancial assets, including goodwil.

if the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit ar loss.

The Groups share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognized in the income statement and its share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in other comprehensive income. The cumulative post-acquisition
movemnents are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment.
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When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recagnise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

At each reporting date, the Group determines if there is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired.
If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of the impairment loss as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate and its carrying amount and recognises the amount adjacent to “share of profit/{loss} of associates” in the
income statement.

Profits and losses resuiting fram upstream and downstream transactions bebween the Group and its associates are recognised
in the Group's financial staterments only to the extent of unrelated investor's interests in the associates. Unreslised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. The accounting poficies of
associgtes have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains or losses arising in associates are recognised in the income statement.
2.3 Segment information

Operating segments are reparted in @ manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The highest decision-making body, which is responsibla for allocating resources to and assessing the performance of the
operating segmenits, has been identified as the Executive Steering Committee.

Segrment information is analysed in Note 5.

2.4 Foreign currency translation
a} Functional and presentation currency

fterms included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). All Group companies use the currency of their
country of domicile as their functional currency, except, basically, for the Mexican companies in the autornotive segment
(Appendix], whose functional currency was defined on 1 January 2008 as the US dallar.

The consolidated financial staterments are presented in euro, which is the Group's functional currency and presentation
currancy.

h) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevadling at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlernent of such transactions and from the translation at
yearend exchange rates of monetary assets and fiabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income
staternent, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net invesbment hedges.

Exchange gains and losses are presented in the income statement under “Net exchange differences”.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securiies denominated in foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amounit of the security. Translation differences related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other
changes in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabiliies such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on norHmonetary financial assets,
such as equities classified as available for sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

c) Group companies
The results and financial pasition of afl the Group entities {none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy] that
have a functional currency different from the presantation currency are translated into the presentetion currency as follows:

fi} Assets and liabiliies for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;
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{il) Income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(i} Alt resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, any exchange differences arising from the translation of net investments in foreign operations and ioans and

other instruments in foreign currency and designated as hadges of such investments are taken to equity. When realised, or

when the investment ceases to be classified as a net investment, in a foreign operation, these differences are recognised in the
income staternent as part of the gain or loss on the sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the fareign
entity and translated at the closing rate.

The Group has defined net investment bedges at 31 Dacember 2013 and 2012 {Note 3.2).

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

lterns of property, plant and equipment are recognised at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses, except for land, which is presented net; of impairment losses.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also inciude transfers
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.
Subsequent custs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset only when it is probable that
the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured refiably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of other non-productive assets is calculated using the straightline method to allocate their
cost or revalued amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Estimated useful

lives;
Buildings 10-50
Vehicles 3-15
Furniture, fittings and equipment 3-15

The depreciation policy historically applied by CEE Automative Group to productive assets (plant, machinery and tools) is to
systermatically apply depreciation based on the useful lives of the assets concerned, which ara estimated in accordance with the
actual production levels attained by the assets (i.e. in accordance with the units of production method based’ on the
understanding that this best reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied by the
assets)] and their residual value, as well as a maximum usefut life for each asset.

By using the units of production method, annual depreciation charges adapt to significant changes in production levels.
Production levels are considered lower than normal when the components produced are fower than a number set by the
Technical Management at each CE Automotive Group company. In cases where production levels vary significantly, the Group
companies depreciate each asset based on the number of components produced, while taking into consideration their
maximum useful lives, Regardless of the number of years of useful life of each asset based on normal production
circumstances, in the event of significant declines in production levels there is a maximum useful life that sach of the assets
cannat exceed, due to bath physical wear and tear and the passage of time.

The useful lives and depreciation rates for assets under normal production circumstances are as follows:
Annual rate Useful life (*)

%
Machinery 10% 10 years
Plant 10% 10 years
Toals 15%33.33% 36.7 years

™) Years of useful life in accordance with estimated normalised units of production.

26.-




0L7054874

CLASE B

e

]

CIE AUTOMQTIVE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TQ THE 2013 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[Expressed in thousand euro)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appr‘opriate,'at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount. if the asseb’s carrying amount. is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount [Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on the sale of items of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount and are recognised within “Other income” {Note 26).

When revalued assets are sold, the amounts inciuded in other reserves are transferred to retained earnings.

2.6 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, consbruction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cast of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.7 Intangible assets
a) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of acguisiion cost over the Group's interest in the acquisition-date fair value of the net
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the subsidiary acquired. Goodwill arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and is carried at cost less cumulative Impairment. Josses;
goodwill impairment cannot be reversed in the future. Gains and losses on the sale of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill allocated to the entity sold.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwil acquired in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (CGUs}, or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units
to which the goodwill is aliocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwilt is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level [Note 2.8).

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment, The carrying amount of goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently
reversed.

b} Research and development expenses

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred. The costs incurred in development projects {associated with the
design and testing of new products or product upgrades} are recognised as an intangble asset when the success of the
davelopment is deemed probable taking into account its technical and commercial feasibility, managernent intends to complete
the project and has the technical and financial resources to do so, has the ability to use or sell the asset and generate potential
economic benefits and the costs involved may be reliably estimated. Other development expenditures are recognised as an
expense as incurred, Development. costs previously recognised as an expense are notb recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period. Development costs with a finita useful life that have been capitalised are amortised from the start of commercial
production of the product on a sbraightline basis over the period in which it is expected to generate economic benefits, which
does not exceed five years.

Any intangible assets so recognised are subject to impairment testing under IAS 36.

c) Trademarks and licenses

Trademarks and licences acquired from third parties are presented at cost. Those acquired through business combinations are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks and licences have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Armortisation is calculated using the straightline method to allocate the cost of trademarks and
licences over their estimated useful lives.

d) Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software.
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Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programs are recognised as an expense when incurred.
Costs that are directly associated with the production of identifisble and unique software products controlied by the Group, and
that are deemed likely to generate economic benefits in excess of costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets.
Directly atiributable costs include software developer costs and an appropriate portion of refevant overheads,

Computer programs acquired from third parties or developed inthouse that are capitalised are amortised over their estimated
useful livas, which do not exceed five years,

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets thak have an indefinite useful life are not subject ko amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are
subject to amortisation are reviawed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount. may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceads its recoverable amount. The recaverable amount is the higher of an asset's- fair value less costs to sell and value in
usa. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows [cash-generating units).

Non-financial assets other than goodwilf that have suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporting date.

2.9 Non-current assets (disposal groups) held for sale and discontinued operations

The Group classifies a norcurrent asset [or disposal group) as held for sale when their carrying amount. is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. Norrcurrent assets (or disposal groups) classified
as heldforsale are measured at the lower of thair carmying amount and fair value less costs to sell, if the carrying value will be
recovered primarily through the sale rather than through continuing usa.

2.10 Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following categaries: fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
investments held to maturity and available for sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determinas the classification of investments at the time of initial recognition.

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this
category if it was acquired principally for the purpose of salling it in the short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges, Assets in this category are classifiad as current assets if expected to be settfled
within 12 months, otherwise they are classified as noncurrent.

b) Loans and receivables

Loans and recaivahles are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are nat quoted in an active
market. They arise when the Group provides money, goods or senvicas directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the
receivable. They are included in current assets, except for amounts maturing more than 12 maonths after the end of the
reporting period, which are classified as norrcurrent assets. Loans and recevables are included in trade and other recevables
in the balance sheet (Note 10}

c¢) Held-tomaturity financial assets

Held to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assats with fixed or determinabla payments and fixed maturities
which Group management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. if tha Group disposes of a significant amount:
of the heldtomaturity assets, the entire category is raclassified as availablefor-sale. Fnancial assets held to maturity are
included under noncurrent assets, except for those that mature within ‘12 months of the reporting date.

d) Available-fur-sale financial assets

Availableforsale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
ather categories. They are included in noncurrent assets unless management intends to dispose of the investment within 12
months of the balance sheet date.
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2.10.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried al fair value through profit or foss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss are initially recognised at
fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Availablefor-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and heldtomaturity financial assets are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented in
the income statement within ‘Net gains/losses on financial instrurments at fair value’ in finance income/costs in the period in
which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the income statement
as part of other income when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as avaitable for sale are analysed
between differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of
the security. Translation differences on monetary securities are recognised in the income statement. Changes in the fair value
of monetary and nor-monetary securities classified as available for sale are recognised in equity.

Unrealised gains and losses resulting from changes in the fair value of norHmonetary instruments classified as available for sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as avallable for sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustiments recognised in equity
are included in the income statement as gains and losses from investiment securities.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active {and for
uniisted securities], the Group establishes fair value using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions between knowledgeable, wiling parties, benchmarking of other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models, making maximumn use of market inputs and relying as lite as possible
on ertityspecific inputs.

2.10.3 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

2.10.4 |mpairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired.

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment: losses are incurred if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a loss event) and that loss
event [or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

In the loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows [excluding fulure credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate, The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement. f a loan or heldto-maturity investment has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment foss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an cbservable market
price.
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If, in & subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be refated objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an impravement in the debtor's credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assats, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impeirment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from aquity and recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated income stetement,

Impairment testing of receivables is described in Note 2.13.

2.11 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to fair value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated
as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either:

a) Hedges of the fair value of recognised liabiliias (fair value hedgel;

b) Hedges of a particular risk associated with & recognised asset/ liability or a highly probable forecast transaction (cash
flow hedye]; or

cl Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation (net investment hedge).

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the refationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as
well as its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedging transactions. The Group also documents its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions
are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair valuas or cash flows of hedged items.

The fair values of various derivative instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosad in Note 8, Movernents on the hedging
reserve in equity are shown in Note 15. The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a noncurrent asset or fiability
when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 manths, and as a current asset or liability when the residual
maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 mornths. Trading derivatives are classified as a current asset or liability.

a) Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives thet are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are racorded in the income
statement, together with any changes in the fair valua of the hedged assat or fiability that are attributable to the hedged risk.
The Group only applies fair value hedge accounting for hedging fixed interest risk on borrowings. The gain or loss relating to the
effective portion of interest rate swaps hedging fixed-rate borrowings is recognised in tha income statement within finance
income,/costs’. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised in the income statement within ‘Gains,/losses on
financial instruments at fair value’ in finance income /costs. Changes in the fair value of hedged fixedrate borrowings attributable
to intarest rate risk are recognised in the income statement within finance incoma/costs.

If a hedge ceases to meet the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged itemn for which
the effective interest method is used is amartised to profit or loss over the pariod to maturity.

b) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are dasignated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognisad
in equity. The gain or loss refating o the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement within
‘Bains/losses on financial instruments at fair value' in finance income/costs.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss (for
example, when the forecast sala that is hedged takas place}. The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of interest rate
swaps hedging floatingrate borrowings is recognised in the income statement within finance income/cost. The gain or ioss on
the effective portion of foreign currency forward contracts which hedge export sales is recognised in the income statement
within revenue. Howaver, when the forecast transaction that is hedgad results in the recognition of a nonfinancial asset (for
example, inventory or fixed assets), the gains and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and inciuded in
the initial measurement of the cost of tha asset. The deferrad amounts are ultimately recognised in cost of goods sold in the
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case of inventory or in depreciation in the case df fixed assets.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sald, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is
ultimately recognised in the income statement. VWhen a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occour, the cumulative gain
or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the income statement.

c) Net investment hedges

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the
hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in equity. The gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement in the heading corresponding to the hedged underlying,

Gains and losses accumulated in equity are included in the income staternent when the foreign operation is sold.

d) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivatives do not qualify for hedge accounting and are recognised at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the fair
value of any derivative instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the income
statement.

2.12 Inventories
Inventories are meesured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is basically determined as fofiows:

a) Automotive segment

- Items purchased for resale: at acquisition cost, including certain direct costs incurred on the purchase.

- Raw materials and other supplies: at the everage weighted acquisition price.

- Finished goods and wark in progress: at preset costs, which do not differ significantly from actual costs incurred.
These costs include raw materfals, direct labour and direct and indirect manufacturing expenses (based on normal
operating capacity). They do not include borrowing costs,

Obsalete or slow-moving iterns are written down to their realisable value.
Net realisable value is the estimatad selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable seling expenses.

b) Biofuel segment

inventories of raw materials and other supplies are measured at acquisition cost in accordance with the FIFO method, a
measurement which does nat exceed their market value. The acquisition price includes the amount stated on the invoice plus all
additional costs incurred until the goods are stored in the warshouses.

Finished goods and work in progress are stated at actual average cost, which includes materials, direct labour and
manufacturing costs,

Group company Via Operador Petrolifero, S.L.U. [Note 1.2) is registered in the operator register which permits it to carry out
the wholesale distribution of oil products in its capacity as an oil product operator and, in accordance with Royal Decree
1716,/2004, of 23 July 2004, modified by Royal Decree 1766,/2007 of 28 December and Directorate of Energy and Mining
Palicy Ruling of 30 March 2003, this company is required at all times to keep minimum buffer stocks equivalent to 92 days of
annual diesel sales, of which 42 days' sales are held by Corporacion de Reservas Estratégicas de Productos Petrolferos
(CORES). CORES maintains an additional 35 days of Via Operador Petrolifero, S.L.U.’s strategic buffer obligation, as agreed
under the lease agreement concluded by both parties. The remaining 15 days are maintained by Via Operador Petrolifero,
S.L.U. In order to maintain these buffer stocks, this company entars into, when necessary, product leases with other operators
or with Group company Bionor Berantavilla, S.L.U. These transactions are recognised as operating leases (Note 2.25).

The net realisable value of these inventories is the re-estimated salling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
applicable seling expenses.

c} Technological Services and Solutions & EPCs segment
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. When the net realisable value of inventories is less than

cost, the corresponding impairment charges are recognised as an expense in the income statement. If the circumstances that
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caused the impairment cease to exist, It is reversed and the reversal is recognised as income in the income statement.
The net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimatad selling expenses,

2.13 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is recognised when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due under the original terms of the receivables. Indications of
impairment are deemed to exist when the debtor is in serious financial difficulty, it is probable that the borrower will eriter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and in the event of payment default or delinquency. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimatad future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate. The carrying amaount of the asset is reduced as the provision is used and the loss is recognised in the
income statement. When a receivable is deemed uncollectable it is written off against the provision for impairmernt of
receivables. Any subsequent recovery of previously written-off amounts is recognised in the income staterment,

Financing through the discounting of bills of exchange is not written off from trade receivables until they are collected and is
reflected as bank financing. In order to hedge certain custormer collection risks, collection insurance contracts are arranged
that cover the risk of default through the payment of insurance premiums.

Financing by means of nonrecourse factoring or the sale of trade receivables triggers the derecognition of the receivable as all
associated risks are transferred to the financial institution in question.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other shortterm highly fiquid investments
with original maturities of three moniths or less and bark overdrafts. In the consclidated balance sheet, bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current fiabilities.

2.15 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

fncremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

When a Group company acquires shares of the parerit company [treasury shares], the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental cost (net of income tax] is deducted from equity attributable to the parent's equity owners until the
shares are cancelled, reissued or sold, When these shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received, net
of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to
the parent's equity owners.

2.16 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with afl attached conditions.

Government. grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the income statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in deferred incorme as deferred government grants
and are credited to the income staterment on a straightline basis over the expected lives of tha related assets, Tax credits in
respect of R&D investment, deemed equivalent to grants relating to costs under IAS 20, are recognised as grants in the
income statement to the extent they relate to R&D expenditure that has not been capitalised (Nota 2.20.bJ).

The gain on a loan granted by a government body at below market interest rates is measured as the difference bebween the
instrument’s carrying amount in accordance with 1AS 39, Fnancial instruments: Recognition and measurement, and the
amount received; a grant is recognised in the amount of this difference and is recorded in the income statement or in liabilities
as a defarred government grant depending on whether the loan finances current expenses or investments in property, plant
and equipment.
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2.17 Trade payables

Trade psyables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabifities if payment. is due within one year or less.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carvied at
amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
income staterment over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer their settlement for at ieast
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or alt of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment
for liquidity services and amaortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

2.19 Compound financial instruments

A compound financial instrument is a nonderivative financial instrument that includes both liability and equity components
simultaneously.

When the Group [the parent campany or any of its subsidiaries) issues a compound instrument. its components are recognised,
measured and presented separately, The initial carrying amount of the liabfity component is determined as the fair value of a
similar fiabflity that does not have an associated equity companent, while the equity component is stated at the difference
between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whale and the fair value of the liability component. Any directly
attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts,

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method. The eguity component is not remeasured subsequent to initial recognition except on
conversion or expiry.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlernent for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

a) Corporate Income tax

Corporate income tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax and is calculated on the basis of profit before
tax, adjusted for any permanent and/or temporary differences contemplated in the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at
the halance sheet date regarding the calculation of taxable income in the countries where the company and its subsidiaries
operate. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tex is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriata on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Tax credits and deductions and the tax effect of applying unused tax losses that have not been capitalised are treated as a
reduction in income tax expense for the year in which they are applied or offset.

The parent company is taxed under the tax consolidation systern in the regional territory of Bizkaia together with the subsidiaries
listed below:

- CIE Bérriz, S.L.
- Autokomp Ingenieria, S.A.
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- CIE Mecauto, S A.U.

- CEE Udalbide, S.A.U.

- Egara 2, S.L.

- Gameka Fabricacion de Cormpanentes, S.A.

- Inyectametal, S.A.

- Leaz Valorizacion, S.L.

- Orbelan Plasticos, 5.A.

- Transforrnaciones Metallrgicas Norma, S.A.
- Alfa Deco, S.A.U.

- Alurecy, S.A.U.

- Carnponentes de Automocion Recytec, S.L.U.
- Nova Recyd, S.A.U.

- Recyde, S.A.U.

- Tarabusi, S.A.U. {merged into Alcasting Legutiano, S.L.U. in 2013}
- Alcasting Legutiano, S.L.U.

- Bionor Transforrmacién, S.A.U.

- Bionor Berantevilla, 5.L.L.

- Via Operador Petrolifero, S.A.U.

- Mecanizaciones del Sur - Mecasur, S.A.U.

- CIE Autornative Nuevos Mercados, S.L.

- Gestion de Aceites Vegetales, S.L.

- Reciclados de Residuos Grasos, S.L.

- Reciclados Ecologicos de Residuos, S.L.U.

- Biodiesel Mediterraneo, S.L.U.

- Global Dorninion Access, S.A.

- Dominion Investigacién y Desarrallo, S.L.U.

The Group company CIE Legazpi, S.A. no longer meets requirements to form part of the tax group, with effect in the 2013 tax
period.

The other Group companies file individual returns.
b) Deferred taxes

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the fiability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidatad financial statements. However, deferred income tax is nok
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liahility is settled, Oeferred income tax is provided an
temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates end joint ventures, except when the Group can control
tha timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets deriving from the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit wil be available against which the tax assets can be utilised. In the case of tax
allowances in respect of investments, the tax credit is accrued as a decrease in expense over the period during which the items
of praperty, plant and equiprment that generated the tax credit are depreciated {Note 2.5); this right is recognised with a credit
to deferred income [Note 19). Tax deductions in respect of R&D investment are classified, depending on the nature of the
subsidy, upon recognition as grants relating to costs so long as the RED costs have not been capitalised (Note 2,16).

Deferred tax assets corresponding to utlised or racognised tax credits relating to R&D activibes are racognised in profit. ar loss
on a systematic basis over the periods during which the Group companies expense the costs associated with these activities,
based on management’s assessment that trestment as a grant best reflects the economic substance of the tax credi.
Accordingly, in keeping with 1AS 20, the Group treats the tax credit recognised or used as other income.
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Deferrad income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the amounts recognised
under these headings and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on sither the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where thers is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.

2.21 Employee benefits

a) Pension ohbligations

The Group’s plans are funded through payments to insurance companies or externalyadministered funds, determined by
periodic actuarial calculations, The Group has defined benefit plans. A defined benefit plan defines the amount. of benefits that an
employee will receive, normally on the basis of one or mare factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

A defined benefit plan is a plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions to a fund and is required to pay additional
contributions if the fund does not have sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits related to the services provided in the
currenl year and prior years.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in connection with defined benefit plans is the present value of defined benefit
commitments at the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by
independent. actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the obligation is calculated by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using the interest rates of high quality corporate bonds denominated in the currency in which
the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related obligation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited
ta equity (in other comprehensive income) in the period in which they arise in the case of postemployment benefits and in the
income statementt in the case of longtertn employea bensfits.

Under amended IAS 19, pastsenvice costs are recognised immediately in the income statement.

b) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are paid to employees as a result of the Company's decision to terminate employment contracts before the
retirement age or when employees voluntarily agree to resign in return for benefits offered by the Company. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either terminating the employment of current employees
according to a detailed formal plan without passhility of withdrawal or as a result of an offer of termination benefits made to
encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits faling due mare than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted
to their present value.

c) Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liabiity and an expense for bonuses based on a formula that takes into consideration the prafit
attributable to the parent companys shareholders after certain adjustmerts. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

2.22 Share-hased payments

The Group operates several share-based payment plans settled in equity instruments of the following subsidiaries: Autometal,
S.A., MahindraCIE Automaotive Ltd. (formerly Mahindra Forgings Ltd.) and Mahindra Composites Ltd., all of which are listed on
either the Brazilian or Indian stock markets [Appendix).

Under these plans, the Group receves services from tha plan beneficiaries in exchange for equity instruments {options) in the
aforementioned subsidiaries.

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as employee benefit
expense. The total amourt to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:

« Including any market performance condiions;
» Bxcluding the impact of eny service vesting conditions {for example, remaining an employee of the entity over a specified
time period).

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in the assumptions about the number of options that. are expected

35.-




GL7054883

CLASE 8.

B e e

CIE AUTOMOTIVE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE 2013 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in thousand euro]

to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period during which all the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its eslimates of the number of options that are expectad to vest based
on the nonmarket vesting conditions, It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The tatal cost of the services rendered by the beneficiaries is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which
all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied {continuad service at the company].

The balancing entry for the employee benefit expense recognised is a credit to Group equity untll the shares in the various
subsidiaries are delivered, at the end of the term of the related plan. Delivery of the aforementioned equity instruments gives
rise to the corresponding charge against the Group's equity.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions for specific liabilities and charges are recognised when:

(i) The Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
(i} It is probable that an outfiow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
(i) The armount has been reliably astimated.

Restructuring pravisions include employee termination paymants. Provisions are not recognised for future operating lossas.

Where there ara a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is datarmined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the probability of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expendituras axpected to be required to settle tha obligabion using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is racognised as interest expense.

2.24 Revenue recognition

Bevenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable on the sale of goods and services in the
ordinary course of the Group’s businass activities, stated net of discounts, returns and value added taxes and after the
elimination of intragroup sates. The Group recognises revenue when the amount. of revenue can be refisbly measured; when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, The amount of revenue cannat not be reliably determined until afl of the contingencies associated with the sale have
been resolved. Revenue is recognised as follows:

a) Sales of goods - wholesale

Sales of goods are recognisad when a Group company has delivered the products to the custarmer, the customer has accepted
the products and it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the seller. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate and provide for returns at the time of sale.

b) Sales of services

The Group selfls telecommunication systemn integration services and network and automation related IT consultancy senvices,
carrying out alt phases of the project, including engineering, supply, installation and start-up, for public and private enterprises.
These services are rendered in accordance with a specific data and materials, or a fixad price contract.

Revenue from specific date and materials contracts, which normally relata to the rendering of telecommunication system

integration services, are recognized at the rates stipulated in the contract as the related man hours are worked and direct
expenses incurred.

Revenue deriving from fixed-price contracts relating to engineering maintenance work and network installations is recognised
using the percentage of completion method. In accordance with this methed, revenue is generally racognised on the basis of
services performed to date as a percentage of total services to be performed.

if unfolding circumstances change the initial estimates of revenue, costs or the percentage of completion, management
proceeds to review these estimates. Revisions may result in increases or decreases in estimated revenue and costs which are
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recognised in the income statement in the period in which the circumstances giving rise to the revisions are known by
management,

c) [Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. VWhen a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective interast rate
of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognised
either as cash is collected or on a costrecovery hasis as conditions warrant.

d) Royalty revenue

Revenue from royalties is recognised on an accruals basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.
e)] Dividend income

Dividend incomne is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

2.25 Leases

Finance leases

L eases of property, plant and equipment in which the Group retains substantially alf the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance |leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’'s commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is apportioned between the
reduction of the outstanding ligbility and the finance charge so as to produce a constant rate of interest on the outstanding
liability. The corresponding lease obligation, net of finance charges, is included in longterm payables. The interest element of the
finance cost is charged to tha income statemant over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liabfiity for each period. The property, plant and eguipment acquired under finance leases are
depraciated over the sharter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating laases

lLeases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are reteined by the iessor are classified as operating
leases., Payments made under operating leases [net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straightline basis over the period of the leasa.

2.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the parent company’s sharehaolders is recognised as a lisbility in the Group's consalidated financial
statements in the period in which tha dividends are approved by the parent company's shareholders.

2.27 Environmental disclosures

Costs incurred by tha Group as part of its business activitias that are intended to protact the environment and/or improve its
environmentsl record are expansed currently. These costs are capitalised when the expensas represent additions to items of
property, plant and equipment intended to make tham more environmentally-friendly and minimise their mmpact on the
environment.

2.28 Current and noncurrent balances

Ara considered as non current balances, assets and liabilitias, those amounts with longar maturity to 12 months from the
closing date of fhe period.

3. Financial risk management

3.1. Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, cash flow interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk, The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. The Group uses
darivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.

In the broadest sense, the goal of the management of financial risk is to control the incidents genarated by fluctuations in
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exchange and interest rates and the price of raw materials, Management of these risk factars, which is the responsibility of the
Group's Finance Department, focuses on the arrangement of financial instruments in order to build, as far as possible,
exposure to favourable trends in exchange and interest rates, subject to compatibility with the mitigation, in part or in whole, of
the adverse effects of an unfavourable environment.

a) Market risk
@ Forsign exchange risk

CE Autcmotive Group's presence in international markets obliges it to articulate an exchange rate risk management policy. The
overriding objective is to reduce the adverse impact on its activities in general and on the income statement in particular of the
variation in exchange rates so that it is possible to hedge against adverse movernents and, if appropriate, leverage favourable
trends.

In order to articulate such a policy, CIE Automative Group uses the Managerment Scope concept. This concept encompasses afl
collection / payment flows in a currency other than the euro expected to materialise over a specific time period. The
Management Scope includes assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency and firm or highly probable commitments for
purchases or sales in a currency other than the euro. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currancy are subject to
management, irrespective of timing, while firm commitmants for purchases or sales that form part of the Management Scope
are also subject to management if they are expected to be racagnised on the balance sheet within a period of no mare than 18
months.

Having definad the Management Scope, the Group uses a series of financial instruments for risk management purposes that in
some instances permit a certain degree of flexibility. These instruments are essantially the following:

- Forward currency purchases/sales: these contracts lock in an exchange rate for a specific date; the timing can be
adjusted to match expacted cash flows.

- Other instruments: othar hedging derivatives may also be used, the arrangement of which requires specific appraval by
the relevant management body. This body must be informad beforehand as to whether ar npot it complies with
requiremenits for consideration as a hadging instrument, tharefore qualifying for hedge accounting.

The Group pratects against loss of value as a resuit of movements in the exchange rates other than the euro in which its
investments in foreign operations are denominated by similarly denominating, to tha extent possible, its borrowings in the
currency of the countries of these operations if the market is sufficiently deep or in a strong currency such as the dollar, insafar
as dollar correlation to tha local currency is significantly higher than that of the suro. Correlation, estimated cost and depth of
the debt and derivative markets determine policy in each country.

The Group has several investments in foreign operations whose net assets are denominated in US dollars, exposing it to foreign
exchange translation risk. The exchange risk on the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations is mainly managed through
natural hedges achieved by denominating borrowings (foans) in the corresponding foreign currency.

The exposure on the rast of the assets denominated in other foreign currencies in respect of aperations in countries outside the
Eurozone is mitigated basically by denominating borrowings in these currencias.

In 2013 the Group acquired majority shareholdings in companies located in India, so that from this year on, the trend in the
Indian Rupee will be monitored in the same manner as cther international Group investments denominated in currencies other
than the euro.

if at 31 December 2013, the euro had depreciated/appreciated by 10% with respect to all other functional currencies, all
other variables remaining constant, equity would have increased,/ decreased by auro 58,138/45,831 thousand, respectively
(2012: increased/decreasad by euro 63,644,/€52,072 thousand} due to tha impact of the net assets contributed by the
subsidiaries operating in a functional currency different from the euro.

If the averaga rate of exchange of the euro had depreciated/appreciated by 10% in 2013 with raspect to all functional

currencies other than the auro, ali other variables being equal, profit after tax for the year would have been euro 3,206/2,623
thousand higher/lower, respectively (2012: euro 4,766,/3,899 thousand higher/lower), mainly as a result of the exchange
gains/losses on the translation of accounts receivable denominated in currencies other than the euro.

fii Price risk

The Group is exposed o equity securities price risk because of investments that are classified on the consolidated balance shest
sither as available-for-sale or at fair value through profit or loss. However, the scant weight of these securities as a percentage
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of total Group assats and equity means that this risk factor is not material.
(iii) [nterast rate risk

The Group’s borrowings are largely benchrarked to variable rates, exposing it to interast rate risk, with a diract impact on the
income statement. The general objective of interest rate risk management strategy is to raduce the adverse impact of
increasas in interest rates and to leverage as far as possible the positive impact of potential interest rate cuts.

In order to attain this objective, the risk management strategy materialises in the arrangement. of financial instruments designed
to provida such flexibility. The strategy exprassly contemplates the possibility of arranging hedges for identifiable and measurable
portions of cash flows, which enables hedge efficiency testing as required to evidence that the hedging instrument reduces the
risk of the hedged itemn in the portion designated and is not incompatible with the established strategy and objectives.

The Management Scope encompasses the borrowings recognised in the balance sheet of the Group and any of its companies,
On occasion, hedges are armranged to covar loans committed and in the final steges of arrangement the principal on which
needs to be hedgad against rate increases.

in order to manage this risk factor, the Group uses financial derivatives that may qualify as hedging instruments and therefore
hedge accounting. The corresponding accounting standard (IAS 39) does not specify tha type of dervatives that may be
considered hedging instruments except for options issued or sold. & does, however, specify the prerequisites for consideration
as hedging instruments. In line with the management of foreign exchange risk, the arrangement of any financial derivative which
is suspected not to comply with the prerequisites for consideration as a hedging instrument requiras the express approval of
the relevant management hody, By way of example, the basic hedging instruments are the following:

- Interest rate swaps: through these derivatives, the Group's segments convert the benchmarked variable interest rate on
a loan to a fixed benchmark with respect to all or part of the loan and affecting all or part of the term of the loan.

- Interest rate caps: through these derivatives, the Group’s segments convert a variable interest rate into a rate that is
cappexd, [n this way, it curtails the adverse impact of an unfavourable trend,

- Other instruments: as discussad in the section on foreign exchange risk management, other hedging derivatives may
also be used, the arrangement of which requires the specific approval of the relevant management body. The
management body must be informed heforehand as to whether the instrument meets the prerequisites for qualifying as
a hedging instrument and, by extension, hedge accounting.

If during 2013 the average interest rate on borrowings denominated in euro had been 10 basis points higher/iower, all other
variables being equal, profit after tax for the year would have been euro 930 thousand {2012: euro 832 thousand]
tower/higher, largely as a result of an increase/decrease in the interest expense on floatingrate loans.

Specifcally, in relation to the valuation of the derivatives, a 10 basis point increase /decrease throughout the interest rate curve
taken into consideration when measuring the hedging and norrhedging derivatives would have increased /decreased equity by
euro 61,/363 thousand, respectively (2012: a euro 186,/226 thousand increase/decrease, respectively) due to the impact
on prafit for the year. The impact on profit for the year would have been null (2011 2: euro O thousand) lower/higher.,

b) Liquidity risk

The prudent management of liquidity risk entails maintaining enough cash and available financing through sufficient cradit
facilties. In this raspect, the Group's strategy, articulated by its Treasury Department, is to maintain tha necessary financing
flexdbility by maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities. Additionally, and on the basis of its
figuidity needs, the Group uses liquidity facilities (nonrecourse factoring and the sale of receivables, transferring the related risks

and rewards}, which as a matter of policy do not exceed roughly onethird of trade receivable balances and other receivables, in
order to preserve the level of liquidity and working capital structure required under its business plans.

Management monitors the Group’s forecast liquidity requirements together with the trend in net debt. Liguidity and net debt at
year-end, being 2013 and 2012 as follows:

2013 2012
Cash and cash equivalents [Note 12) 329,468 471,692
Other current financial assats (Note 8) 85,9596 61,914
Undrawn lines of credit {Note 20) 95,481 48,886
Liquidity buffer 510,945 583,492
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Bank borrowings [(Note 20} 981,865 926,400
Other current financial #abilities (Note 8) 8,051 1,488
Cash and cash equivalents {Note 12) [329,468) (471,692}
Other current financial assets (Note 8) (85,996) (61,814)
Net current debt 574,452 394,282

The main raason for the variation in net debt in 2013 is due to the debt taken on as a result of the firsttime consolidation of
the companies acquired from Mahindra & Mahindra (Notes 1 and 35J.

The Group's Treasury Department believes that the initistives will prevent liquidity shortfalls. In this respect, management
expects that the cash generated in 2014 will be sufficient to service the Group's payment obligations for the year without having
to increase net debt, other than the increase in debt that will result from the first-tima consofidation of the debt of the Mahindra
Group companies in the process of being merged with Group company, Mahindra CIE Automotive, Ltd. (Note 1 describes this
transaction in detail).

The Group's Finance Department monitors the Group’s forecast fiquidity regquirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meat
operational needs while maintaining enough headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing faciiities at all imes so that the
Group does not breach borrowing fimits or covenants on any of its borrowing facilities.

In addition, the Group is strategicafly diversifying the financial markets and financing sources it taps as a tool for eliminating
fiquidity risk and retaining financing flexibility in light of the situation prevaifing in the European financial markets; this strategy has
opened up access to the Braziian, Mexican and Indian financial markets.

There are no restrictions regarding the use of cash/cash equivalents with the exception of the guarantees described in Note
20 and the commitments described in Note 34.

Amaounts payable to credit institutions in the short term include recurring loans:

- eurc 35.4 million originating from the recurring discounting of commercial paper issued by Group customers (auro
41.6 million at 31 December 2012] [Note 20).
- eura 6.3 milion originating from recurring import financing {suro 8.8 milion at 31 Dacember 2012) (Note 20].

Although both components of bank debt are presented as current liabilities for accounting purposes, they are stable and are
genarated in the ordinary course of business and tharefore provide financing that is aquivalent to fongterm funding,

MNote the existence at 31 December 2013 of eurc 95.5 milion of undrawn credit lines and loans (31 December 2012:
eurodS.9 milion).

The following table shows a breakdown of working capital in the Group's consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2013 as
compared with 31 December 2012, stating the relative significance of each item:

2013 2012
fnventories 226,138 189,994
Trade and other receivables 188,540 181,379
Other current assets 6,384 2,92D
Current tax assets 41,618 43,276
Current operating assets 462,680 417,569
Other current financial assets 85,996 61,914
Cash and ather liquid assets 329,468 471,692
CURRENT ASSETS 878,144 951,175
Trade and other payables 441,732 438,098
Current tax liabilities 41,284 37,8900
Current provisions 8,214 8,210
Other current liabilties 70,733 70,776
Current operating liabilities 962,973 555,984
Current bank borrowings 332,743 281,322
Othar financial liabilities: 8,051 1,488
CURRENT LIABILITIES 803,767 838,794
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NET WORKING CAPITAL ' (25,623} 112,381

Although the standalone figure for working capital is not a key parameter for the understanding of the Group financial
statements, the Group actively manages working capital through net operating working and short- and longterm net
borrowings, on the basis of the solidity, quality and stability of relations with customers and suppliers, and comprehensive
monitoring of the situation with respect to financial institutions, many credit lines being automatically renewed.

One of the Group's strategies is to ensure the optimisation and maximum saturation of the resources assigned to the business.
The Group therefore pays special attention to the net operating working capital invested in the business. In this regard, as in
previous years, considerable work has been performed to control and reduce collection periods for trade and other receivables,
as well as to minimise inventories through excellent, lagistic and industrial management, allowing JIT (just in time) supplies to our
custormers, We also constantly optimise supplier payment periods by unifying policies and conditions throughout, the Group. As a
consequence of the previously indicated, there are no risks affecting the Company's liquidity situation.

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payable). Balances payable within 12 months of the balance sheet date are shown at their carrying
amounts, as the effect of discounting is not significant.

Less than Between 1 and More than
1 year S years 5 years

At 31 December 2013

Bank borrowings (Note 20} 332,743 684,508 35,047
Trade and other payables 512,485 89,747 30,218
Oerivatives 8,051 - -
At 31 December 2012

Bank borrowings [Note 20) 281,322 728,393 1.244
Trade and other payables 509,874 83,720 33,662
Oerivatives 1.488 - -

Derivative financial instruments qualifying as hedges are settled net; their maturities are detailed in Note 20 for interest rate
swaps; the related cash flows are mainly expected to be settled in the short term [Nate 8.b]].

c) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed by customer groups. Credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments
and bank depaosits is considerad immaterial in view of the creditworthiness of the banks the Group works with. If managernent
detects liquidity risk in respect of its banks under certain specific circumstances, it recognises impairment provisions as
warranted {Note 8.aj].

In addition, each segment has specific policies for managing customer credit risk; these policies factor in the customers’
financial position, past experience and other custormer-specific factors.

In order to minimise credit risk in respect of Urade receivables, the Group's strategy is to arrange customer credit insurance
policies and set customer credit fimits. With respect to customer credit limits, it should be noted that Group policy is not to
concentrate more than 10% of business volurmes with individual custormers or manufacturing platforms,

Gwven the characteristics of the Group's customers, particularly in the automotive segment, management has historically
deemed that receivables due within 60 days present no credit risk. The Group continues to consider the credit quality of these
outstanding balances to be strang.

An analysis of the age of assets that are past due but are not impaired is provided in Note 10.
d) Market and commodity price risk [Biofuel segment)

The results of the biofuel segment are axposed to volatifity in petrol prices and the prices of the raw materials needed to
produce bicfuels. To reduce exposure to this risk factor, Group policy is to purchase and sell these products simultaneously,
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thereby avoiding the risk posed by open positions.
Note additionally that the biofuel sector is at an uncertain stage of development and depends on governments for the provision

of incentives, through adeqguate regulation, for the consumption of biofuels so that the market can develop in a profitable and
sustainable manner.

Ta adequately manage this risk, the Group continually analyses the new regulations introduced in the markets in which it
operates and the degree of compliance by stakeholders, factoring in their impact on the business and taking appropriate
decisions. As a result of the sector's performance in 2012, as indicated in Note 1, the Group decided to discontinue the
manufacture of biodiesel from virgin oil, including the related raw material (jatropha] plantation activity (Note 13).

3.2. Hedge accounting
IAS 39 is very strict about the need for documenting hedge refationships.

To this end, the Group has established clear and specific guidance for preparing the documentation setting out all the necessary
aspects for identifying and monitoring hedging relationships under this standard. At the inception of the hedge there s formal
designation and docurmentation of the hedging refationship, including identification of the hedging instrumnent, the hedged itern or
transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the entity will assess the hedging instrument's effectiveness. A hedge
is expected to be effective if at the inception of the hedge and in subsequent periods it is expected to achieve offsetting changes
in cash flows attributable to the hedged risk within a range of 80% - 125%.

The treatment and classification of the Group's hedging transactions are described below:

a) Fair value hedges of a recognised asset or liability or a firm commitment

Changes in the fair value of these derivatives are recognised in the income statement together with any change in the fair values
of the assets or liabiities hedged which is attributeble to the hedged risk.

b) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised
in equity. The gain ar loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income staterment.,

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to the income statement in the period in which the hedged item affects profit or
loss {for instance, when the forecast sale that is hedged takes place]). However, when a hedge of a forecast transaction
subsequently results in the recognition of a nonfinancial asset or liability, the gains or losses previously deferred in equity are
removed from equity and included in the initial cost of the asset or liabifity.,

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative gain or loss that remains recognised in equity remains in equity and is reclassified to profit ar loss when the forecast
transaction occurs.

Occasionally, despite the goal of achieving a perfect hedge, mismatches may arise between the characteristics of the hedges
and the debts hedged. Once a mismatch is detected, and provided that this does not entail disproportionate costs, the
derivative is finetuned in arder to adapt it to the new characteristics of the underlying.

This circumstance may arise in the case of a hedge arranged in anticipation of a highly probable underlying which, when
confirmed, requires the readjustment of the derivative to adapt it to the underlying to which it is designated. This situation may
arise whether or not the derivative is designated as a hedge at inception i.e., if the underlying has been defined as a highly
probable transaction.

c) Net investment hedges

The Group, through its Brazillan subsidiary Autometal, S.A., has several investments whose net assefs are exposed to foreign
exchange translation risk as they are denominated in currencies other than the latter's functional currency (US doflars and
2urgs).

Foreign exchange exposure arising on the net assets of these foreign operations is partly managed by means of loans
denominated in US doflars and euros, which are arranged by Autometal, S.A. and CIE Autometal, S.A. [Appendix], as well as by
arranging specific derivatives, as warrantad.

d) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
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Changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are racognised immadiately in
the income statement.

e] Effectiveness testing and estimate of the fair value of hedging derivatives

Effectiveness testing: the valuation method used by the Group relates to its risk management. strategy. If the main terms of the
hadging instrument and hedged underlying match, the changes in cash flows attributable to the hedged risk may be entirely
cffset.

The Group uses cne of three available methods to measure the effectiveness of its hedges. The most common is the offset
method {dollar offset}, which is used to measure the effectiveness of cash flow hadges on both a retrospective and prospactiva
basis.

Based on the underlying asset and the type of hedge, the Group alsoc uses the variance reduction method and the linear
regression methods, The only condition is that the method applied to each hedge to measure its effectiveness must be
maintainad throughout the fife of the hedge.

Measurement of the hedging derivative: the Group uses saveral tools to measure and manage derivativerelated risk. The
valuation of derivative instruments is carried out internally; these valuations are crosschecked against valuations provided by
independent advisors not related to any financial institution. Professional market tools provided by platforms licensed from
Reuters and Bloomberg and specialisad financial analytics libraries are used for this purpose.

3.3. Fair value estimation

IFRS 13, Fair value measurements' explains how to estimate far value when other international accounting standards so
require. This stendard stipulates the fair value disclosure requirements applicable to nonfinancial assets and liabilities.

IFAS 13 defines fair value as the value that would ba received or paid, in an orderly transaction on the measurement date, for
an asset or liability, regardless of whether this value is directly observable or has been estimated using valuation techniques. To
this and the date used must be consistent with the assumptions that market participants would use in considering such a
transaction.

Although [FRS 13 leaves the principles set down in other standards intact, it does esteblish the overall framework for measuring
assets and liabilities at fair value when doing so is mandatory under other standards and stipulates additional fair value
disclosura reguirements,

The Group complies with [FRS 13 requirements in measuring its assets and liabilties at fair value when such fair value
measurement; is required under other international financial reporting standards.

On the basis of tha contents of IFRS 13 and in accordance with IFRAS 7 on financial instruments measured at fair value, the
Group reports on how it estimates fair value by level using the following fair value hierarchy:

- Quated prices {unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets and liabiliies {Level 1).

- Inputs other than Level 1 gquoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {for example, as
prices) or indirectly ffor example, derived from prices] (Lavel 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) {Level 3).

The foliowing table presents the Group's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 Decembar 2013 and 31
December 2012 (Note 8):

2013

Level 1 Level 2 2013
ASSETS
- Awailabfe-for-sale financial assets 25477 - 25477
- Derivatives - 118 118
- Financial assets at fair value with change in income statement 6,105 - 5,105
TOTAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 31,582 118 31,700
LIABILITIES
- Derivatives - [(8,051) {8,051)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE - (8,051) (8,051)
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2012

Level 1 Level 2 2012
ASSETS
- Available-for-sale financial assets 13,246 - 13,246
- Derivatives - 5,142 5,142
TOTAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 13,246 5,142 18,388
LUABILITIES
- Derivatives - {1,488] [1,488)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE - (1,488) {1.488)

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during 2013 and 2012.
a) Level-1 financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments raded in active markets is based on market prices at the batance sheet date. The listed
market price used for financial assets is the current bid price. A market is considered active if quoted prices are readiy and
reguiarly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions effected on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used
for the financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included in Level 1.

The financial instruments included in Level 1 are mainly Brazilian government securities with inflatiorHinked interest rates
fNational Treasury Notes - NTN), classed as availablefor-sale financial assets {Note 8) and as financial assets at fair value with
changes in income statement.

b) Level-2 financial instruments

The fair value of financial instrumenits that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. The
Group uses a variety of methods such as estimated discounted cash flows and makes assumptions that are based on market
conditions existing at each balance sheet date. K all the significant inputs required to calculate an instrument’s fair value are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Specific financial instrument valuation techniques include:

+  Fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows.

+  Fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates guoted at the balance sheet
date.

+ |tis assumed that the carrying amounts of trade receivables and payables approximate their fair vajues.

s  Fair value of financial liabilities for financial reporting purposes is estimated by discounting future contractual cash flows at
the current market interest rate available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on data observable in the market, the financial instrument is included in
Level 3.

The Gompany at 31 December 2013 and 2012 has no Level-3 financial assets or agreements to offset financial assets against
financial liabilities,
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3.4 Capital risk management

The Group's abjectives when managing capital are to safeguerd its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for othar stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital. :

in order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group can adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the leverage ratio. This ratio is calculated as
net debt divided by total capital employed. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings plus current financial liabilities less cash,
cash equivalents and current financial assets, all of which as shown in the consolidated financial statements. Total capital
employed is calculated as 'equity, as shown in the consalidated financial statements, plus net debt,

During 2013, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from prior years, was to maintain the gearing ratio at closa to 0.5%.
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

2013 2012
Borrowings [Note 20) 981,865 926,400
Current; financial abilities (Note B} B,051 1,488
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and current. financial assets (Notes B and 12} {415,464) {533.6006)
Net delt (Note 3.1.b]J) 574,452 394,282
Equity 562,833 507,816
Total capital employed 1,137,285 902,088
Gearing ratio 0.51 0.44

At 31 December 2012 and 2013, the Group has agreements formalized related with credit and bank loans that obiige it
comply with cartain covenants (Note 20},

4. Accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectstions of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group makes estimabes and judgements concerning the future. Tha resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results, The estimates and judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and lizbilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

a) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwilt has sufferad any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note
2.7. The recoverable amounts of cashgenerating units have been determined based on valuednuse calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates [Nota 7).

If the estimated rate used to discount the cash flows had been 10% higher than management’s astimates, the Group would still
not have needed to reduce the carrying amount of goodwill [Note 7).

With respect to the assumptions used to project the EBITDA [operating profit plus depreciation and amortisation, essential for
calculating free cash flow] of the CGUs and their future growth, management modelled the mast canservative scenario so that
underperformance in respect of EBITDA is considered unikely. Simulations using other growth rates and 1D% variations in
EBITDA do not indicate the need for impairment provisions in either 2013 or 2012 [Note 7).
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b) Estimated fair value of assets, liahilities and contingent liabilities associat;ed with a business combination

In business combinations, the Group classifies or designates, at the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed as necessary, based on contractual agreements, financial conditions, accounting policies and operating
conditions or other pertinent circumstances that exist at the acquisition date in order to subsequently measure the identifiable
assels acquired and liabilities assumed, including contingent liabilities, at their acquisition date fair values.

The measurement of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at fair value requires the use of estimates that depend on the
nature of those assets and liabifties in accordance with their prior classification and which, in general, are based on generally
accepted measurement methods that take into consideration discounted cash flows associated with those assets and liabilities,
comparable quoted prices on active markets and other procedures, as disclosed in the relevant notes to the annual financial
statements, broken down by nature. In the case of the fair value of property, plant and equipment, fundamentally consisting of
buildings used in operations, the Group uses appraisals prepared by independent experts.

¢] Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in humerous jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. The Group recognises deferred taxes which, in accordance with prevaiing legislation in different tax
jurisdictions, resuit from multiple temporary differences in respect of assets and liabilities. Nonetheless, there are certain
transactions and calculations with respect to which the ultimate calculation of the tax is uncertain in the ordinary course of
business, In prior years, the Group had recognised liabilities for possible tax contingencies based on estimates of potential
additional taxes due.

The calculation of income tax expense did not necessitate significant estimates except with respect to the amount of tax credits
recognised in the year. If the assumptions used to make this estimate differed by 102, the effect on profit for the year would
not be material.

Were the actual final outcome (on the judgement areas} would differ by 10% from management's estimates, the deferred
assets would decrease and income tax would increase by approximately €2.2 million, were the difference naot favourable, and
vice versa, by approximately €0.7 miflion, if the difference were favourable.

d) Fair value of derivatives or other financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in an active market (e.g. OTC derivatives]} is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group exercises judgement in selecting a range of methods and making assumptions which are based
primarily on prevailing market conditions at the reporting date. The Group has used discounted cash flow analysis to measure
several availablefor-sale financial assets that are not traded on active markets.

Note 3. 1.5} provides a sensitivity analysis for changes to the main assumptions with regard to the measurement of derivatives.

e) Pension benefits

The present value of the Group’s pension obiigations depends on a series of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis
using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income} for pensions include the discount
rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of pension obligations.

The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be used to
determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to sette the pension obligations. In
determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group considers the interest rates of highquality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the henefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the
related pension obligation.

Other key assumptions for employee benefits are based in part on current market conditions. Note 24 contains further
information and a sensitivity analysis for changes to the most significant estimates.,

f) Product warranties

Product warranty risks are recognised when there is a firm claim not covered by the relevant insurance palicy.

Due to the nature of its business, the Technological Services and Solutions & EPCs  segment does not. offer product warranties
other than those relating to due performance of the work for which it is contracted. Management. estimates the related
provision for future warranty claims based on historical warranty claim information, as well as recent trends that might suggest
that past cost information is not a good proxy for future claims.
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4.2. Critical judgements when applying accounting policies

The most significant judgements and estimates made in applying the accounting policies described in Note 2 relate to:

- The assumptions and calcutations used to test goodwill for impairment, as detailed in Notes 2.7.a), 4.1.a}and 7.

- Estimates in respect of the recognition and utilisation of tax credits, as outlined in Notes 2.20.b), 4.1.cl, 23 and 30.

- Estimation of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment {Note 2.5).

- In order to value financial derivatives and other assets, the Group uses valuation techniques that are widely used in the
financial markets. In general, the valuation of any financial derivative is based on discounted cash flow analysis, based on
the interest rate curve, from which the zero coupon curve is derived together with the discount factors and the implicit
forward rates. To value nstruments that include options, the Group uses the implied volatility priced in by the markets
and option pricing models, such as Black-Scholes for Plain vanilla options or Vanna-Volga for barrier options. The Group
uses professional market applications to this end and engages an independent external advisor when necessary.

- Estimation of the services provided by employees that are remunerated by means of share-based payments {Notes 2.22
and 28]}

5. Segment information

The Executive Steering Commilttee, consisting of six members of the Board of Directors, is the Group’s chief operating decision-
making body. The Executive Steering Committee reviews the Group's internal financial information for the purposes of evaluating
performance and assigning resources to segments.

Management has determined the operating segments based on the structure of the reports reviewed by the Executive Steering
Committee.

The Executive Steering Committee analyses the business of CIE Automotive Group from both a geographical and praduct
perspective.

The Group operates with three types of product families:

- Automotive

- Biofuel

- Technological Services and Solutions & EPCs (TSS)

Automotive segment

This segment refates to the production of parts and components for the automotive industry, operating as a TIER 2 supplier in
most cases. Although the Group supplies certain automobile manufacturers [OEMs) directly, on these occasions the Group
usually acts as a TIER 2 supplier with the OEMs assuming the role of the TIER 1 supplier.

The Group's business mode is based on two strategic focal points: muititechnology and the global market, implying the ability to
supply technology worldwide.
¢ Multitachnaology: command of different technologies and processes enables the Group to offer complex high value-added
products. The Group has the capacity to design and manufacture products using alternative or complementary technologies.
¢ Global market; worldwide industrialisation and supply cepacity. The Group’s customers are global and it has the ability to
supply them from difference geographic areas.
Following the inclusion in the Group of the companies acquired from the Mahindra & Mahindra Group, and the creation of the
Mahindra CIE Automotive, Ltd, Group, which is involved in the merger process described in Note 1, due for completion in
2014, the CE Autormotive Group has begun to analyse the automotive operating segment on the basis of its management
units, distinguishing the Autometel Group, without considering the new companies included in the Mahindra & Mahindra
operation; the Autometal Group basically encompasses the automotive businesses in Brazil and México, Mahindra CIE and the
other automotive companies, located mainly in Europe.,
In fact, subsegments within automotive segment, are as follows:
- Autometal ExMahindra

This segment includes, basically, Autormetal Group companies located in Brazil and NAFTA.
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- Mahindra CIE {without. Autometal)

In respanse to the new resglity of business and the organization of the group, this segment includes the business of
manufacturing forging components that existed in the group including the annual results of the companies CIE Galfar,
S.A. and CIE Lagazpi, S.A. {Spanish companies), and U.A.B. CE LT Forge (Lithuanian company}, also tha companies that
joined the group from 4 October 2013 {Note 35}, located in India and Europe.

- Hest of the Automotive segment

This segment includes all no dependent manufacturing businesses at 31 Oecember 2013 of Autometal group, basically
located in Europa.

Accordingly, the segments presented in December 2012 have been reorganised based on this new classification.

As indicated in Note 13, in 2012 the Group decided to abandon a single line of activity, namely the design, manufacture and
supply of certain automative parts for the ‘engine equipment’ market, in which Group subsidiary Tarabusi, S5.A.U. [merged in
2013 into Alcasting Legutiano, S.L.U.} acted as TIER 1 supplier, engaging directly with the OEMs. The earnings performance of
this ine of business is accordingly presented within profit/loss from discontinued operations.

Biofuel segment
The Group's strategy is to manage the biofuel value chain from end to end.
This segment covers raw material procuremnent and the production and distribution of biofuels.

* Raw materiels: the idea is to integrate activities that guerantee the competiive supply of raw materials, such as those
deriving from recycled ails, animal fats, oleins and other waste.

* Production: production of hiofuels from recycled and virgin oils.
» Distribution; sales, logistics and distribution netwark, both in Spain and abroad.

In 2012 the Group decided to discontinue its virgin oil-based biodiesel project, including the related raw material plantation
activity (jatropha), and to sell Biosur Transformacion, S.L.U. The continuing operations in this segment, therefore, ere the
activities related to the production and supply of biofuels made from recycled oils {Note 13).

Technological Services and Solutions & EPCs segment

This operating segment is active in the hightech services and solutions end of the market and cerries out projects entailing
cutting-edge technology. The Group aperates in various sectors including the telecommunications, transport, healthcere,
banking, energy and gavernment/public sectors.

The Executive Steering Commitiee assesses the performance of the continuing operations of its operating segments based
mainly on key financial metrics such as sales, EBITDA and EBIT {operating profit). The informetion received by the Executive
Steering Committee also inciudes a breakdown of finance income and costs, tex issues, and, overall profit/loss from
discontinued operations [Note 13). These items are analysed at the Group level since they are essentially managed in a
centralised manner.

a) Segment information
The earnings performance by segment:

2013
Automotive
Autometal Mahindra
ExMahindr  CIE (Rest of Rest of
a Autometal) Aatomotive Biofuel TSS Total

Revenue 727,525 245,491 510,242 120,706 156,289 1,760,253
Other operating expenses and income
(excluding deprecigtion and amortisation) {619,0058) (222,444} [418,588) (116,963) {143,127} (1,520,127}
Depreciation and amortisation {24,100) {11,687]) [(45,408) (3,498) {4,997] (89,690}
EBIT foperating profit] 84,420 11,360 46,246 245 8,165 150,436
EBITDA 108,520 23,047 91,654 3,743 13,162 240,126
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2012
Automotive
Autometal Mahindra
ExiViahindr  CIE (Rest of Rest of
a Autometal) Automotive Biofuel TSS Total

Revenue 640,957 - 150,380 517,122 198,921 138,325 1,645,705
Gther operating expenses and income
fexciuding depreciation and amortisation) {533,551) {139,270) (428,640} (194,940) (125,244} (1,421,645)
Depreciation and armortisation (22,837) {6,810} (45,264) {3,709) [4,063) [82,683]
EBIT (operating profit} 84,569 4,300 43,218 272 9,018 141,377
EBITDA 107,406 11,110 88,482 3,881 13,081 224,060

Transfers ar transactions between segments [which are not material) are carried out in the same terms and conditions as

usual commercial transactions with third parties.

Other profit and loss disclosures by segment:

2013
Automotive
Mahindra
Autometal CIE (Rest of Rest of
ExMahindra  Autometal) Automotive Biofuel TSS Total
Depreciation and amortisation: (24,100) (11,687) {45,408) [3,498) {4,9971 {89,690
Property, plant and equipment (£3,033) (11,435) [39,633) (3,164) {3,365) (B0,630)
Intangible assets (1,067) [252) [5,779) {334) {1,632) (9,060)
Impairment - - - - - -
2012
Automotive
Mahindra
Autometal CIE (Rest of Rest of
ExiVlahindra  Autometal) Automotie Biofuel TSS Total
Depreciation and amortisation: [22,837] {6,810} [45,264) {3,709) (4,063} {B2,683)
Property, plant and equipment (21,698] [6,635) (38,952} {3,235) (2,515]) (73,035)
Intangible assets {1.139; 175} (6,312} (4743 (1.548]) {9.648)
Impairment - - (183} - - (183}
The reconcifiation of operating profit to profit attributable to owners of the parent at December 2013 and 2012:
2013 2012
Dpera’ang profit 150,436 141,377
Financial income /{cost) {Note 29) {48,123} (48,787}
—  (ains/losses on financial instruments at fair value (Note 29) {1,598} 4,338
— Change in fair vaiue of assets and liabilities taken to income statement (Note 29) {16,369} -
~  Imterest in the result of cormpanies participation method (257} (166}
- lncome tax 3.418 15,688
— BGain/loss after tax from discontinued operations (Note 13) (9.621) (36,482}
Non-controlling interests (attributed profit) (17,7617 (14,940}
Pruﬁt attributable to owners of the parent 60,125 61,028
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Segment assets and liabilities at year-end and investments made during the year:

OL7054897

2013
Automotive
Mahindra
Autometal CIE [Rest of Rest of
ExMahindra Autometal) Automotive Biofuel TSS Total
Total assets {1) 810,062 501,413 727,520 135,584 169,907 2,344,486
Total liahilides 509,409 378,863 715,042 B0,6B4 120,976 1,784,924
Additions to non-current assets [Notes 6 and
7) 56,805 5,532 31,906 574 15,380 110,207
Disposal of assets net of depreciation and
amortisation (Notes 6 and 7} (6541} {102) 3,117 - (2.669) [6.429)
MNat investments for the year [Notes 6 and 7]
2 56,264 5,430 28,789 574 12,721 103,778
2012
Automotive
Mahindra CIE
Autometal {Rest of Rest of
ExMahindra Auwtometal) Automotive Biofuel TSS Total
Totel assets (1) 857,770 112,265 909,381 89,229 107,521 2,176,166
Totel liahilities 480,156 102,786 945,308 10,317 133538 1,682,105
Additions of assets [Notes 6 and 73 34,685 7.556 34,233 1,954 6,587 85,025
Disposal of assets net of depreciation and
amortisation
fNotes 6 and 7) (583) - {1,544} {1,908) 91 {4,126)
Net investments for the year (Notes 6 and 7)
2] 34,112 7,556 32,688 46 6,496 80,899
1} Does not include financial investments in companies included in the scope of consofdation.

[£24] Excludes movements in goodwilf,

Segment assets mainly include property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories, accounts receivable and cash.
Investments in investees included in the consolidation scope are excluded.

Segment liabilities include operating liabilities and longterm financing, excluding intragroup liabilides eliminated on consolidation.

investments in noncurrent assets include additions to property, plant and equipment (Note 5] and intangible assets {Note 7).

Revenue and norrourrent assets by geographic area:

AUTOMOTIVE
Spain (**}

Rest of Europe
Brazi

NAFTA

Asia [***)

Total Automotive

BIOFUEL
Spain
Total Biofuel

Revenue Non-current assets (*)

2013 2012 2013 2012
158,248 153,292 122.338 121,715
567.440 514,210 447,844 323,974
333.037 359,368 218,391 257,142
363,327 281,588 204,782 196,905
60,206 - 112,636 -
1,483,258 1,308,459 1,106,091 899,736
120,706 198,921 58.210 80,835
120,706 198,921 58,210 90,835
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TECHNOLOGICAL SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS & EPCS

Spain

Americas

Total TSS Solutions
TOTAL

0L7054898

67,760 61,883 22,880 17,294
B8,529 76,4862 17.217 16,093
156,289 138,325 40,097 33,387
1,760,253 1,645,705 1,204,398 1,023,958

(™) Noncurrent assets that are not financial instruments, deferred tax assets, assets relating to postemployment benefits and rights

deriving from insurance policies.

[(**)  Sales in Spain in the Automotive segrment mainly go to end custormers that are located abroad.
(***] This fne includes the Indian companies of the Mahindra Group thet joined the Group during the year (Notes 1 and 35); recognising the
European companies in a separate line, moreover the Chinese Autormetal Group cormpanies.

b) Customer information

The Group’s sales policy limits its credit risk. In no instance doas invoicing per customer or platform account for more than 11%

of total revenue (2012, 10%).

6. Property, plant and equipment

Set out below is a breakdown of property, plant and equipment showing movements:

2013
Additions due
to changes in
Balance at conaalidation scope (*) Transfers Balance at
31/12/2012 [Note 35) Additions Disposaals and other 31/12/2013

Cost
Land and buildings 302,060 78,749 2.531 2.677) [16,288] 364,375
Plant and machinery 1,004,370 241,276 23,669 {33,101] {8,365} 1,226,849
Other assets 175,663 58,340 5,485 [13,166) 4,983 231,311
Prepayments and assets under
construction 56,520 13,095 59,958 {589] (47.142) 121,842

1,578,619 391,460 91,643 (49,533} [67,812) 1,944,377
Deprocation and amortisation
Land and buildings {88,04986) [27,287] (9,258) 1,221 [1.688) (125,108)
Plant and mechinery (598,4496) (183,478) {60,240] 30,361 5,920 (B06,931)
Other PPE [207,730] [49,144) {1%,135] 12,796 29,612 [225,601)

({895,322] 259,907} {80,633} 44,378 33,044 {1,157,640)
Provisions
Fant and machinery (2.544) - 3 1,810 (1,247) (1976]

(2,544) - 3 1,810 {1,247) £1,978)

Carrying amount 680,753 784,759

*] Basically includes the effect of movements in the currencies in which the property, plant and equipment of foreign
denominated and transfers from property, plant and equipment in progress to PPE held for use.

subsidiaries are

2012
Additions due
to changes in
Balance at conaolidation scope [*] Transfers Balance at
31/12/2011 [Note 35) Additions Disposals and other 31/12/2012
Cost
Land and buildings 318,453 6,703 5,806 [3.806} (25,296) 302,060
Plant and machinery 984,138 31,2584 22,591 (10,670} (26,943) 1,004,370
Other essets 169,209 1,844 10,691 (1,872} (4,203) 175,669
Prepayments and assets under
construchion 112,500 - 39,126 [1,076} (54,030) 96,520
1,588,300 39,801 78,214 (17,224) (110,472) 1,578,619
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Depreciation and amortization
Land and buildings (80,093} (3.075) (7.549) 1,687 934 {88,098)
Piant and machinery 560,737} (13,779) (53,928) 10,364 18,564 [599,496)
Other assets (194,722} {539] [16,468) 1,115 2,884 (207,730)
{B35,552) {17,393) {77,945) 13,7186 22,382 {895,322)
Provisions
Plant and machinery 279} - (29,812) 208 27,339 [2,544]
[279) - (29,812] 208 27,339 (2,544)
Carrying amount 752,469 680,753

™ Basically includes the effect of moverments in the currencies in which the property, plant and eguipment of foreign subsidiaries are

denominatad, transfers from property, plant and equipment in progress to PPE hefd for use and the transfer of assets associated with
businesses classified as held for sale (Note 13).

a)
Set out below is a breakdown of property, plant and equipment by geographical location at 31 Decermnber 2013 and 2012:

Praperty, plant and equipment by geographical area

Million euro
2013 2012
Accumufated Accumulated
depreciation/ Carrying depreciation,/ Carrying
Cost Provisions amount Cost Provisions amount
Armericas 516 [256) 260 BbB (277) 279
Eurcpe 1.280 [E855) 435 1.023 (B21) 402
Asia 137 47) 80 - - -
1,943 (1,158} 785 1,579 (898) 581
b) Property, plant and equipment not in active use

At 31 December 2013 and 2012 no items of property, plant and equipment were not in active use.
c) Property, plant and equipment subject to restrictions on title

At 31 December 2013 items of property, plant and equipment (Jand and buildings) with a carrying amount of €95.8 million
{P012; €19.2 mifion) are pledged to guarantee debts with government bodies and financial institutions with outstanding
balances at yearend 2013 of €92.8 milion fyearend 2012: €16.4 milion} (Note 22).

d)

The Group has taken out a number of insurance policies to cover risks relating to its property, plant and equipment, The
coverage provided by these policies is considered sufficient.

Insurance

e) Finance leases

Plant and equipment include the following amounts in respect of finance leases under which the Group is the lessee:

2013 2012
Costcapitalised finance lease 18,358 19,013
Accumulated depreciation [4,855) [9,613)
Carmying amount 13,503 13,400

The amounts payable under finance leases are carried under Other liabilities {Nota 22).

f)

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

The Group did not capitalise any borrowing costs in 2013 or 2012.

7. Intangible assets

Set out below is an analysis of the main intangible asset classes showing movements in assets generated internally and other

intangible assets:
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2013:
Additions/ (changes) ™)
Balance at n scope Transfers Balance at
31/12/2012 [Note 35) Additions Disposals and other 31/12/2013
Cost
Goochwill 308,215 98,272 - - (27.381) 380,106
R&D [deveiopment] 57,602 - 3,161 (3.953) [1.731} 55,073
Computer sofovare 32,632 4,759 14,650 (3,14d] {730} 418,163
Prepayments and other B5.455 589 753 (114) {645} 7.038
404,904 104,620 18,564 {7,215) {30,487) 430,386
Accumulated amortsation (66,832} {4,757) {9,060] 4,131 1,638 {74,880}
Carrying amount 338,072 415,506
™ Mainly due to the impact of currency fluctuations.
2012:
Additions/ [changes) ()]
Balance at in scope Transfers Balance at
31/12/2011 {Note 35) Additions Disposals and other 31/12/2012
Cost
Goodwill 205,738 22,761 - - (10,284} 308,215
RE&D [development} &5,824 - 2,001 [543) 320 57,602
Computer software 29,682 B 4,358 {73) [F.381} 32,632
Prepayments and ather 4,981 42 412 [PB) 1,046 6,455
386,225 22,809 6,811 [642) (10,299) 404,904
Accumulated amortisation {57,954) 13) {9,680) 554 261 {66,832)
Carrying amount 328,271 338,072
£*) Mainly due to the impact of currency fluctuations and the transfer of assets classified as held for sale in PO12 (Note 13).
The additions to goodwill [Note 35} break down as follows:
Segment 2013 2012
Automotive 98,272 ~2,668
Biofuel - a3
99,272 22,761

a) Goodwill impairment testing

Goodwill has been assigned to the Group’s cash-generating units [CGUs) on the basis of the criterion of grouping together under
each CGU all the Group’s assets and liabiities that jointly and indivisibly generate cash flows in an area of the business from a
technology and/or geographical and/or customer viewpaint, on the basis of the synergies and risks shared.

As a result of the strategic operation with the Mahindra & Mahindra Group [Note 1], based on the new business reality and the
Group's own organisation, a new CGU called *Mahindra CIE" has been created, encompassing the forged steel component
manufacturing business that already formed part of the Group, which includes the companies CIE Galfor, S.A. and CIE Legazpi,
5.A. [Spanish companies), and UAB CIE LT. Forge (Lithuanian company}, plus the companies that joined the Group as from 4
October 2013 (Note 35), 1.e. Mahindra Forgings, Ltd. {now Mahindra CIE Automotive, Ltd) and its subsidiaries [Appendix],
Mahindra Composites, Ltd. and Mahindra Hinoday Industries, Ltd.

Accordingly, the goodwill relating to ClE's forging companies has been reclassified to the new CGU "Mahindra CIE” in both 2013
and 2012.

The breakdown of goodwill at the resulting CGU level is set out below:

Goodwill
Cash-generating units 2013 2012
Automotive segment:
Rest of Automative ([Europe) 86,649 90,238
Autometal — Brazil 85,959 98,617
Autormetal — NAFTA 75,353 78,039
MahindraCIE 84,677 3,497
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Biofuel segment

Biofuel business 16,601 16,631

Technological Services and Solutions & EPCs segment

TS5 20,867 21,193
380,106 308,215

The recoverable amount of CGUs is determined based on value-inuse calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a fiveyear pericd. Cash flows beyond the fiveyear period are
extrapolated on the basis of conservative estimated growth rates that are in all instences lower than the average long+un
growth rate for the business in which each of the CGUs operates.

b) Key assumptions used in the calculation of value in use

As in prior years, the pretax discount rate was determined on the basis of the weighted average cost of capitel (WACC) plus a
premium to reflect the tax effect. The WACC was determined using the capital asset pricing model (CAPM), which is widely
used for discount rate calculation purposes. In certain instances, the discount rate calculation additionally factors in a specific
risk premium to reflect the characteristics and the risk profile intrinsic to the cash flow projections of each CGU.

The discount rates applied to cash flow projections were as follows:

2013 2012

Automotive

Rest of Automotive (Europe) 8.17%12.76% 7.BB%-13.65%
Autometal - Brazil 11.02% 11.1%%
Autormnetal - NAFTA 8.03%-10.53% 9.81%12.62%
Mahindra-ClE 8.17%- 14.40% -
Biofuel B.33%-13.17% 8.62%-12.32%
TSS 9.78%11.99% 9.31%12.87%

These discount rates are aftertax and reflect the specific risks relating to the relevant operating segments; they have been
used for impairment testing purposes in 2013 and 2012.

The main changes in the discount rates used in 2013 with respect to those modelled in 2012 derive from changes in risk{free
rates.

Management determined budgeted EBITDA margins in preparing its business plans, taking into account operations with a
similar structure to current operations and based on prior experience. These margins vary by type of business as follows:

% of revenue

2013 2012
Automotive g% -31% 10%-35%
Biofuel 6% - 28% 5%
TS5 7% - 10% 7%12%

Other forecast net movements in cash and flows related to tax are factored in to obtain aftertax free cash flow for each year.
The result of using before-tax cash flows and discount rates does not differ significantly from the outcome of using aftertax cash
flows and discount rates.

Cash flows beyond the five-year period covered by the Group's forecasts are extrapolated applying prudent assumptions with
respect to the forecast future growth rate (between 0% and 3%j, based on GDP growth estimatas and the inflation rate in
each market, and evaluating the level of maintenance investment required to achieve the organic growth levels for these

growings.
c¢) Results of the analysis

The Group has verified that goodwill did not suffer any impairment loss in either 2013 ar 2012. Note 4 inciudes sensitivity
analysis with respect to the goodwill impairment calculation,
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The recoverable amount of the CGUs was determined based on valus-inuse calculat.iﬁns, which require the use of estimates. To
calculate value in use in 2013 and 2012, the assumptions used to project the related cash flows reflect the overall situation of
the Group's operating markets as well as factoring in their projected performance.

Note 4.1.a) includes data on the sensitivity of these calculations.

8. Financial assets
Financial
assets at fair
value with
Hehito-maturity  Availablefor- changes in Derivative
financial sate financial income financial Investments in
assets assets statement instruments associates Total
At 31 December 2011 70,2289 - - {**) 4,083 {***}(11,024) 63,298
Addtions 36,644 13.246 - - 291 50,181
Disposals [28,469) - - (3,846) - (32,315}
Transfers and other mavernents (*) 8,058 - - - 625 8,683
Fair value adustment
- Profit or loss (4,700 - - 4,337 - (363}
- Equity - - - (930) - (930}
Share of profit/{loss} of assocdates - - - - [166) (166}
At 31 December 2012 81,762 13,246 - {**} 3,654 {***)(10,274) 88,388
Addtions to/fchanges in) consolidation
scope 5,365 - - (293 - 4,972
Addtions 34,308 54,983 43,580 - 10,828 143,699
Disposals [14,064) [20,722) [32,502) (4,329 9,148 [62,469)
Transfers and ather movernents {*) [18,617) (9,935) 13,004 784 (28) (14,792)
Fair value adjustment -
- Profit or loss (6,599) - [17,977) 10 - (24,566)
- Equity - [12,088) - (7.659] - (15,7564)
Bhare of profit/(loss] of associates - - - - [257) 257)
At 31 December 2013 82,155 25,477 6,105 £ *) (7,933} (***) 9,417 115,221
2013
MNoncurrent 27,859 - - - - 27,859
Currert: 54,296 25,477 6,105 118 - 85,996
imvestments in associates - - - - 10,953 10,953
2012
Noncurrent 38,236 - - - - 38,236
Current 43,526 13,246 - 5,142 - 51,914
fmvestments in assodates - - - - 393 393

[*} Basically indudes the impact of currency fluctuations on the financial assets held by the Group's foreign subsidiaries and transfers,

[**) This total is presented net of €B.051 thousand [yearend 2012: €1,488 thousend] corresponding to derivetives recognised on the liablity side of the consolidated balance sheet

[Note 8.b)]

[***] Df this amount, €1.538 thousand [yearend 2012; €10,6867 thousand] from the Autometive Segment: is recorded as a nonurment provision on the fabifity side of the

consdlideted batance sheet in order to prevent a negative balance in respect: of the cost of the investment: in this segment (Note 25), Ouring 2013, the provision recognised
was applied in the arnount of €9,148 thousand. This application is presented as a disposal for the period.
All the assets recognised at fair value are traded in an active market from which the value is obtained at each date.

At 31 December 2013, all the Group's financial assets that did not mature or become impaired during the year are treated as
high guality and show no signs of impairment, except for the matter referred to in Note 8.a).

a) Loans and financial assets held to maturity

2013 2012
Term deposits 29,4861 45,070
Shortterm lbans [Nota 36) 37,321 36,692
Longterm loans (Nota 36) 15,373 -
82,155 81,762
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The term deposits and lbans bear market intarest rates in the countries in which the financial assets are held.

No held-to-maturity financial asset has been reclassified.

Financial assets held to maturity show an impairment loss of €11.3 milion generated in 2012 and 2013 by a liquidity issue in

one of the Brazilian financial institutions with which tha Group operated.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amount of the assats.

b) Derivative financial instruments

2013 2012
Assets Liabilities Assets Liahilitics

Swaps (interest rate and others)

-Cash flow hedges - {1,095) - (767)
- Trading 118 {373} 4,724 -
Foreign exchange forward contracts - cash flow hedges - - 418 -
Hedge of a net investrment in foreign operations - (6,583} - (721)
Total 118 (8,051) 5,142 {1,488)

Swaps [interest rate and others)

The notional principal on interestrate swaps (variable to fixed rate) outstanding at 31 December 2013
amounted to €47.5 million and USD40 million [yearend 2012: €35 million); they are classified as hedging
instruments.

At 31 December 2013, the fixed rates range between 0,62% and 4.48% (2012: between 0.62% and 1.30%)
while variable interest rates are indexed to EURIBOR and LIBOR.

Additionally, through one of its Brazilian subsidiaries, the Group records a USD loan for which an interest rate
swap has bean contracted. The notional principal of this contract is €775 thousand and it is classified as a non-
hedging instrument.

On 7 November 2012, the Group, through its Brazilian subsidiary, CIE Autometal, S.A., sold 2.5 million shares
of Autometal, 5.A., another Brazilian subsidiary. In conjunction with this sale the Group arranged a derivative
associated with the listed share price. As the Group retains the exposure to the share price risk, as prescribed
in IAS 38, management understood that the financial investment had to continue to be recognised on the
balance sheet until the earlier of the date of expiry of the derivativa contract (7 November 2013) or the date of
early settlement. In December 2012 and during 2013, this swap was settled in advance and there was no
balance remaining at 31 December 2013 (31 December 2012; swap balance equivalent to 2,020 thousand
sharas). The value {positive} of the derivative at 31 December 2012 was €2.5 million.

Foreign currency cash-flow hedges

At 31 December 2013 there were no forward currency purchase/sale contracts in force (2D12: USD 6,000
thousand to sell US dollars).

Hedge of net investments in foreign operations

As indicated in Note 3.1 aj(i), the Group, through its Brazilian subsidiaries, Autometal, 5.A. and CIE Autometal,
5.A., manages the foreign exchange exposure deriving from the net assets of its Mexican and European
autornative operations, which are denominated in US dollars and euros, respectively, through loan hedges and
foreign exchange derivatives,

Part of the Group's borrowings, in the amount of €62.8 million (denominated in US dollars), is designated as a
hedge of the net invastment in the Group’s subsidiaries in the NAFTA automotive segment (€174 million at 31
December 2012). Furthermore, of the Group's borrowings denominated in euros through swaps cantracted, the
amount of €89.8 million is designated as a hedge of the nst investmant in Autometal's subsidiaries located in
Europe, forming part of Mahindra CIE's automotive segment.

The negative effect of foreign exchange differences (€32.3 million) caused by the translation of the above-
mentioned debt at the balance sheet date is recognised in equity in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income {2012: €5.9 million).
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c¢) Investments in associates

Except for the companies set out below, all subsidiaries have been consolidated under the full or proportionate consolidation
methods.

The companies consolidated under the equity method are as follows:

Total
effective Carrying amount of
shareholding investment Share in profit/{loss) {100%]) Assets [100°%) Liahilitiea
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Gescrap — Autometal Comercio de 22.43
Sucatas, Lid. 22.43% % 326 EASK] (117) - 2,805 - 1,352 -
Gescrap - Autometat de México, S.A. de
cv 22.43% - 234 - 16 - 4,228 - 3,183 -
CIE Hispamoldes Plastiques, s.arl. dau 5000% - 5 - - - B74 - BG4 -
Antolin- Czech Republic, s.r.l. 30.00% - 171 - (120) - 2.812 - 2,246 -
CIE Automotive Rus, Lc. 7500% - 4 - - - 152 - - -
Beroa Thermal Energy, S.L. (**) 21.45% - 10,000 - - - 143,700 107,700
Other [*) - 103 102 (36} (166)
10,953 393 [(257) {166]

(*} Companies that are either not material or are in the process of being liquidated. The provision for the lbsses accumulated on
these investments in associates and the losses on commitments assumed by them, in the amount of €1,536 thousand (€10,667
thausand at year-end 2012), are included under non-current provisions on the liability side of the consalidated batance sheet.

[**]) Estimated consolidated data under IFRS

The carrying amount of investments in associates does not include goodwill, except for the investment in Beroa Thermal Energy,
5.L., which includes goodwill of approximately €1.5 — 2 million.

d) Available-for-sale financial assets

The amourt recognised in this item [€25.5 million) relates to Brazil government securities with inflatiorHinked interest rates
(National Treasury Notes - NTN].

8. Other non-current assets
This balance sheet heading includes loans to third parties toteling €2,450 thousand [€1,004 thousand in 2012] refating
basically to the automotive sector, as analysed below by maturity date:

2013 2012
Between 1 and 2 years 625 234
Between 3 and 5 years 1,232 770
More than 5 years 593 -
2,450 1,004

Loans to Group companies, associates and third parties accrue interest at variable rates benchmarked to Euribor. As a result,
their fair value does not differ significantly from their carrying amaourt. :

10. Trade and other receivables

2013 2012
Trede receivables 178,361 168,273
Less: Provision for impeirment of trade receivables (8,617) [6,130)
Trade receivables — Net 169,744 162,143
Cther receivables 18,/96 19,236
Total 188,540 181,379

The fair values of trade and other receivables arrived at by discounting the related cash flows at market rates do nat differ from
their carrying amounts.

At 31 December 2013, trade and other receivables amounting to €35.4 million had been discounted and monetised at banks
(€4 1.6 million at year-end 2012). These transactions have been accountad for as a bank loan (Note 20).
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The amounts covered by nonrecourse factoring or account receivable sales agreerhents et year-end have been derecognised
as the risks of ownership have been transferred to the financial institutions and the Group has no continuing involvement. At 31
December 2013 this balance totals €112.6 million {year-and 2012: €95.6 milion}.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables, as the Group has a large numbar of internationally
dispersed customers [Note 3].

Given the characteristics of the Group's customers, particularly in the automotive segment, management has historically
deemed that receivables due within B0 days present no credit risk, as they fall within the sector's normal collection cycle,
Despite the difficulties facing the sector, the Group continues to consider that the credit quality of these outstanding balances,
which it deems neither impaired nor non-performing, is strong. They mostly relate to payments associated with business
disagreements that are set to be resolved in the short tarm,

At 31 December 2013 receivables past due by more than B0 days totalled €19.4 million {yearend 2012: €19.7 milion};
however, most of these balances are not deemed impaired as they relate to a number of independent customers for whom
there is no recent history of default. In addition, many payments are related to industrialisation milestones or the degree of
project completion.

The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

2013 2012
Between 2 and 4 months 6,204 4,726
Between 4 months and 12 months 5,416 7,639
Over 12 months 7,825 7,330
19,445 19,695
(Impairment provision} [8,617) (6,130)
10,828 13,565

Trade receivables that are deemed impaired and have therefore been provided for mainly relate to balances that are past due
by more than 18 months. The Group expects to recover a portion of its provisions trade receivables. The other classes within
trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets.

The credit quality of trade receivables nat due or impaired is considered high and free of credit. risk.

The Group has arranged credit insurance in respect of a significant portion of its sales covering de facto insolvency, iegal
insolvency and business and political risk, Credit insurance pofcies are arranged through first class intarnational insurance
companies and cover between B5% and 88% of sales {in both 2013 and 2012].

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amount of each class of receivables mentioned
above.

The carrying amounts of the Group'’s trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies [thousand eura):

2013 2012
US daollar 41,627 39,764
Czech koruna a17 668
Mexican paso 6,945 1,732
Brazilian real 24,655 40,176
Chinese yuan renminhi 14,038 14,143
Romanian Lei 1,236 1,077
Russtan rouble 782 914
Indian rupee 12,457 -
Euro 72,039 659,053
Cther 3,665 746

178,361 168,273
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Moverments on tha Group provision for impairment of trade receivables ara as follows:

Opening balance

Changes in consolidation scope
Additions (Note 27]
Recoveries (Note 271

Profit/loss from discontinued operations

Receivables written off
Closing balance

11. Inventories

Inventories of goods for resale
Raw matenials and supplies

Work in progress and serniHinished goods

Finished goods
Prepayments to suppliers
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2013 2012
6,130 6,027
1,819 101
2,653 2,056

(678] {390)
(78] 23
{1.229) (1.6871
8,617 6,130
2013 2012
10.115 18,169
93,609 68,114
85,235 50,874
57.604 45,388
9,575 7,449
226,138 189,994

In its capacity as an oil product oparator, Group company Via Operador Petrolifero, S.L. is legally required to hold minimum
buffer stocks (Notes 1.2 and 2.12). No amount was leased at either year-end in order to maintain these buffer stocks (Note

1.2}

The Group has insurance policies to cover the risks affecting its inventories and considers the coverage provided sufficient.

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in the cost of goods sold breaks down as follows:

2013

Opening balance

Changes in consolidation scope
Purchases/changes in provisions
(ther movernents [*)

Closing balance

Cost of sales

2012

Opening balance

Changes in consolidation scope
Purchases/changes in provisions
Other maoverments [*)

Closing balance

Cost of zales

Goods purchased for Work in
resale, raw materials progress and
and supplies finished goods Total
86,283 96,262 182,545
16,841 34,269 51,110
1,015,984 {14,101} 1,001,883
(2,705 (5,199) {7.904)
(103,724) (112,839) [216,563)
1,012,679 {1,608) 1,011,071
Goods purchased for Work in
resale, raw materials progress and
and supplies finished goods Tatal
106,868 79,244 186,132
4,435 6,695 11,130
940,627 19,071 959,698
[2,555) (4,174) (6,729}
[B86,2B83) (96,262) (182,545}
963,112 4,574 967,686

(*) Corresponds basically to the effect of exchange rate fluctuations on the companies located abroad.
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The carrying amount; of work in progress and finished goods includes the following provisions for obsolescence, the movement in

which is presentad below,

Amount

At 31 December 2011 3,734
Additions 2,428
Result of discontinued operations 3,503
Balance write-offs /transfers 312
At 31 December 2012 9,977
Additions to/{changes in) consolidation scope 2,263
Additions 2,683
Balance write-offs/transfers (7.525)
At 31 December 2013 7,408
12. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and other cash equivalents at 31 December 2013 and 2012 break down as follows:

2013 2012
Cash at bank and in hand 167,086 125,082
Shortterm bank deposits 162,382 36,610

329,468 471,692

Short-term bank deposits relate to investments of cash surplus maturing in less than three months or available immediately.

These deposits earn interest at a market rate (country-specific) that ranged between 0.75% and 8.49% in 2013, depending

on the currency (2012: between 0.5% and 9.24% 1.
The carrying amount of cash at Group companies is denominated in the following currencies:

2013 2012
Brazéfian raal 121,197 271,960
Euro 132,188 125,165
US dollar 55,947 51,550
Mexican peso 10,076 5,070
Chinese yuan renminbi 5,046 15,473
indian rupee 491 -
Czech koruna . 1,062 768
Other 3,451 1,706

329,468 471,692

13. Disposal groups classified as held-for-sale and discontinued operations
a) Items classified as held for sale and discontinued operations in the biofuel segment

in December 2012 the Group decided to discontinue its virgin oitbased biodiesel production actwvities, including the related raw
material plantation activity (jatropha} and to sell Biosur Transformacion, S.L.U. At year end 2013 commitment of sales plan is
maintained because the delay was caused by circumstances beyond the Group. These activities can be clearly distinguished
operationally and for financial reporting purposes. Thay represent a separate line of business within the biofuel segment and

correspond to separate legal entities.

Assets of the disposal group classified as held for sale

2013 2012
Property, plant and equiprment 23,188 36,836
Inventaries 192 1892
Cther current assets 1,552 1,033
Cash and cash equivalents 18 752
Total 24,950 38,813
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Liabilities of disposal group classified as held for sale

2013 2012
Government grants 986 986
Deferred tax liabilities 423 423
Borrowings 204 372
Trade and other payables 510 458
Other current liabilities 208 564
Total 2,331 2,803

Estimated impairment losses were arrived at by estimating the recoverable amounts of each asset,

Until the previous year, the recoverable value of these net productive assets had been estimated by a discount of expected
business flows, as there was a business plan based on the obtainment of market shares. However, in view of market
uncertainty and doubts regarding the profit to be obtained from the market share achieved, the Group has decided to value the
business based on the value of the recovery company’s net assets.

A reputable independent expert has been commissioned to perform this study. Each of the assets included in the appraisal has
been classified based on its qualitative characteristics end sized based on its guantitative characteristics. After analysing thase
characteristics, the recoverable amount of the asset has been determined.

Identified assets value has been calculated according to quoted prices of the maost relevant markets in each case.

The independent expert study shows no significant limitations that could raise doubts as to the validity of the findings and was
performed in accordance with international appraisal standards,

The result of this analysis and the performance of sensitivity analysis, varying the key variable by +/- 10% yelded an impairment
loss of between €18.5 million and €34.5 million. The impairment loss recognised was €12.3 miflion.

b) Discontinued activities in the Automotive segment

In December 2012 the Group decided to abandon the only line of production, namely that devoted to the design, manufacture
and supply of certain automative parts for the ‘engine equipment’ market, in which Group subsidiary Tarabusi, S.A.U. [merged
into Alcasting Legutiano, S.L.U. in 2013) acted as TIER 1 supplier, with a direct relationship with the OEMs. This activity is a
separate identfiable activity within Tarabusi, S.A.U. [merged into Alcasting Legutiano, S.L.U. in 2013). Its net assets were
measured at their recoverable amount.

Analysis of the result of the discontinued operations detailed above, and the result recognised on the remeasurement of assets
or disposal groups, is as follows:

2013 2012
Revenue 2,918 5,226
Change in inventortes 9 [5,248)
Cither revenue 611 347
Total income 3,538 325
Expenses [343) (2,330}
Employee benefits expense (3,203} {10,734)
Depreciation and amortisation 92) (4,8942)
Asset impairment (11,514) [29,629)
Other expenses (1,451] (1,581)
Total expenses (16,603) [49,276)
Profit/{loss) before tax of discontinued operations [13,065) [48,951)
T 3,444 12,469
PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAX OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 9,621) [36,482)

B61.-




CLASE 8°

CIE AUTOMOTIVE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NDTES TD THE 2013 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Expressed in thousand euro)

Cash flows generated by these discontinued operations are as follows;
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2013 2012
Operating cash flows {2,678) 1,412
Investing cash flows 2,113 -
Financing cash flows {169] [1,163}
Total cash flows (734) 249
Cash flows from operating activities break down as follows:
2013 2012
Prafit/{loss) before tax [13,065) (48,951)
Taxes paid - -
Adjustments to profit,/{loss):
- [mpairmant provisions 12,300 28,629
- Depreciation and amortisation o2 4,942
- Gain an disposal of non-current assets (786]) 534
Changes in working capital 1.219) 15,258
Net cash flows fram/(used in} operating actiities (2,678) 1,412
14. Share capital and premium
No. of shares

(thousand) Share capital Share premium  Treasury shares Total
At 31 December 2011 114,000 28,500 33,752 {22,697) 39,555
Acquisition /sale of treasury shares - - - (30,533} (30,533}
At 31 December 2012 114,000 28,500 33,752 [53,230) 9,022
Increase in capital 4,820 1,205 27,715 - 28,920
Acquisition /sale of treasury shares - - - 53,230 53,230
At 31 December 2013 118,820 29,705 61,467 - 91,172

a) Share capital

On 25 April 2013, the General Shareholders' Meeting resolved to increase share capital by €1,205,011.50 by issuing and
circulating 4,820,046 ordinary assets with a par value of €0.85 each, with a share premium of €5.75 per shara; the capital
increase was paid up at 4 October 2013, the date of the public deed, through noncash contributions. The pre-emptive
subscription right was not applied to this share issue in arder to allow Mahindra & Mahindra, Ltd. to become a sharehalder of
CIE Automotive, 5.A.

In accordance with the above, the share capital of CIE Automotive, S.A. at 31 December 2013 is represented by
118,820,046 fully paid ordinary bearer shares with a par value of €0.25 each, all ksted on the Spanish stock market {year-end
2012: 114,000,000 ordinary shares with a unit par value of €0.25). The companies that, after the direct or indirect allocation
of shares as a result of the merger, hold an interest exceeding 10% are as follows:

% interest
2013 2012
Corporacion Gestarnp, S.L, £*}24.871% (*] 25.923%
Mahindra & Mahindra, Ltd [**313.500% -
Elidoza Promocién de Empresas, S.L. 10.424% 10.865%

(*] 10.648% directly and 14.223% indirectly through Ristee! Corpotation, 8.V. (yearend 2012: 11.088% directly and the remaining
14,825% indirectly through Risteel Corparation, B.V.).
(**] Indirectly through Mahindra Overseas Investment Cormpany Mauritius Limited.

The stack price of the parent company CIE Automotive, S.A. fisted in the Madrid Stock Exchange was €8 at 31 Oecember
2013.
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b) Share premium
This reserve is freely available for distribution.
c) Treasury shares

The moverment in treasury shares in 2013 and 2012 breaks down as follows:

2013 2012
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
Opening balance 10,164,617 53,230 4,573,071 22,697
Acquisitions 1,056,043 6,079 5,591,548 30,533
Disposals {11,220, 66D) (58,308) - -
Closing balance - - 10,164,617 53,230

The Company has no treasury shares at 31 December 2013.

CIE Automotive, S.A. held 10,164,617 treasury shares, representing 8.92% of share capital, at year-end 2012. Their market
value at 31 December 2012 was €52,586 thousand.

Over the year 2013, up untif 4 October, the Company acquired a total of 1,056,043 shares (0.926% of total voting rights in
existence prior to the equity issue undertaken with effect from 4 October 2013) and has sold to the Mahindra Group all
11,220,660 shares (9.843% of the aforementioned total voting rights] held as treasury stock at the time. As a result, CIE
Automotive, S A, has held no own shares as treasury stock since 4 October 2013.

Similarly, the mandate conferred at the Annual General Meeting of 30 April 2018, whereby the parent company's Board of
Directors is empowered to buy at any time and as often as it considers appropriate shares in CIE Automaotive, S.A, through any
legal means, including acquisitions with a charge to profic for the year and/or freely available reserves, and to subsequently
dispose of or redaem such shares, in accordance with article 146 et seq. of the Spanish Corporate Enterprises Act, is in effect
until 30 April 201B.

15. Retained earnings

Movements in retained earnings:

Retained earnings and first-time application of IFRS-EU reserve
Reserves in consolidated

companies and effect of Cumulative !
first-time apphlication of translation
Legal IFRS-EU Profit for differences
reserve {Note 17} loss Subtotal [Note 186) Total ;
At 31 Pecember 2011 5,700 316,759 60,577 383,036 [30,806) 352,230
Digtribution of 2011 profit - 41,052 {60,577} {19,525) - {19,525)
Income, /{expense] recognised directly in equity,
net - [4,795) 61,028 56,233 {25,024) 1,209
Additionat dividends to noncontrolling interests
[Autormotive segrment] [2.BB7} - [2,BB7) - [2,667)
Changes in cansalidation scope and business
cambinations {(Nate 35) (14,925} - (14,929) 1,100 £13,825)
Cther changes - (623} - [623) - [623)
At 31 December 2012 5,700 334,801 51,028 401,529 {54,730} 346,799

G63.-



OL7054911

CLASE 87
S

CiE AUTOMOTIVE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE 2013 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[Expressed in thousand euro)

Retained earnings and first-time application of IFRS-EU reserve
Reserves n consolidated

companies and effect of Cumulative
firsttime application of exchange
Legal IFRSEU differences
resene [Note 17) Profit for loss Subtois! [Mote 16} Total

At 31 December 2012 5,700 334,801 51,028 401,529 {54,730} 346,793
Distribution of 2012 profit - 42,408 {61.028) (18,622) - (18,622)
Income/{expense) recagnised directly in equity,
net - (29,494 60,125 30,631 (40,641} (10,010)
Prafit an disposal of treasury shares - 7.981 - 7,981 - /.981
Changes in consolidation scope and business
combinations {Nate 35) - 17,456 - 17.456 (609) 16,847
Other changes - {3,100} - {3,100} 560 (2,520}
At 31 December 2013 5,700 370,050 60,125 435,875 (95,4000 340,475

a) Legal reserve

In accordance with the consolidated text of the Spanish Corporate Enterprises Act, 10% of profits must be transferred to the
legal reserve each year until it represents at least 20% of share capital. At 31 December 2D12 this reserve was already
equivalent to 20% of share capital. Nevertheless, following the capital increase completed during the year, the reserve does not
reach this limit at 31 Oecember 2013.

The legal reserve may be used to increase capital in an amount equal to the portion of the balance that exceeds 10% of capital
after the increase.

Otherwise, until it exceeds 20% of share capital and provided there are no sufficient available reserves, the legal reserve may
only be used to offset losses.

b) Dividends paid

On 16 Becember 2013, the Board of Directors approved the payment of an interim dividend from 2013 prdfit of €0.09 per
share carrying dividend rights, implying a total payout of €10,694 thousand. Payment was made on 3 January 2014,

The amount to distribute did not exceed the profit obtained since the last financial year, deducting tax estimation, according to
article 227 of Spain's Corporate Enterprises Act.

The provisional accounting statament of 30 Novermber 2013 with has been formulated according to legal requirements and
shows the existence enough cashflow to distribute the dividend mentioned above, is as follows:

Provisional cash-flow statement Amaunt

Profit forecast:

- Awvailable net profit. of year 2013 38,6813
To deduct:

- Legal reserve -
Maximum amount to distribute 38,613
Amount distribution proposal {10,694]
Treasury forecast for one year 895,246
Treasury forecast before dividend payment 52,253
Interim dividend (10,694)

On 30 April 2013, the parent company’s shareholders in general meeting approved the mation for the distribution of 2012
profit. individual] as well as the distribution of a final dividend against 2012 profit of €0.09 per share carrying dividend rights,
amounting to a total payment of €3,277 thousand. The payment wes made on 3 July 2013,

On 19 December 2012, the Board of Directors approved the payment of an interim dividend from 2012 profit of €0.09 per
share, implying a total of €9,345 thousand, The payment was made on 3 January 2013.
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The distribution of profit motion approved at the Annual General Meeting of 25 Aprit 2012 included approval for a final dividend
against 2011 profit in the amount of €9,678 thousand. This dividend was paid on 8 May 2012,

On 21 December 2011, the Board of Directors approved the payment of an interim dividend from 2011 profit of €0.09 per
share, for a total payment of €9,847 thousand (excluding treasury shares). The payment was made on 3 January 2012,

c) Proposal distribution of profit

The proposal for distributing the parent company's 2013 profit, determined in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Spain [legislation applicable to the parent company), that will be presented to the shareholders at the General
Meeting, alongside the shareholder-approved distribution for' 2012, is as follows:

Under Spanish GAAP
2013 2012

Available for distribution
Profit for the year 37,110 41,336
Distribution
To voluntary reserves 15,481 21,731
To legal reserve 241 -
To the interim dividend 10,694 9,345
To the final dividend 10,684 10,260

37110 41,336

16. Cumulative exchange differences

The breakdown of cumulative translation differences by segment at year-end 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

2013 2012
Segment
Autormotive segrment {91,586) (53,359)
Biofuel segment 1,460 1,412
Technological Services and Solutions & EPCs segment {5,274) {2,783)
(95,400} (54,730)

17. Reserves in consolidated companies and effect of first conversion

The amount of the reserve in consolidated companies and the effect of firsktime application of IFRSEU stands at €370,050
thousand at 31 December 2013 [£334,801 thousand at 31 December 2012).

This heading records, in addition to the reserves in consolidated companies, the effects of the adjustiments made in conjunction
with transition to IFRS on the date of firsttime application, 1 January 2005, and the effect of valuing certain financial
assets/liabilities at market prices (Note 8).

Reserves and retained earnings pertaining to fullyconsolidated companies, the distribution of which is subject to legal
requirements, break down as follows:

2013 2012
Legal reserve 49,603 34,989
Restricted reserves in Brazi 23,618 27.6486
73,222 62,635
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18. Non-controlling interests

Movements in non-controffing interests:

0L7054913

2013 2012
Opening balance 161,340 143,579
Net income /[expense) recagnised directly in equity:
- Profit for the year 17,761 14,840
- Translation differences (10,528) {14,750}
- Cther [gross cashflow hedges, tax effect, etc.) {7.974) B103
[739) [4r0;
Dividends paid to noncontroling interests {4.420) (10,658)
Changes in consoclidation scope and business combinations {Notes 1 and 35} (13,001 29,711
Other changes £1,300) [B72)
Closing balance 141,880 161,340
The breakdown by segment is set out below:
ment 2013 2012
Automative 137,595 161,611
Biafue] 1,687 1,910
Technological Services and Solutions & EPCs [TSS) 2,598 {2,181}
141,880 161,340
19. Deferred income
The movement in deferred income is as follows:
2013
Additions/
[changes)
Balance at in scope Transfers Taken to Balance at
I1/12/2012 (Note 35) Additions Disposals (") profitor loss  31/12/2013
Tax credits arising from
investment: deductions 2,468 - - - - (312) 2,156
Government. grants 17,805 882 78 (3} 37D 3,178 15,960
Other deferred income 1,982 - 263 (162} (729) {116) 1,242
22,255 BB2 341 (165) [355) {3,600) 19,358
(*] Relates basically to tfransfer from deferred income to Gapital grents and to Disposal group classed as held for sale, plus the exchange rate
effect.
2012
Balance at Taken to profit  Balance at
31/12/2011 Additions Disposals Transfers (*) or loss 31/12/2012
Tex credits arising from
investrment deductions 2,885 - - - {4171 2,468
Government, grants 22,390 628 (142) (1.770) (3.301} 17,805
Other deferred income 4,664 588 {176) {835) (2,259} 1,982
29,939 1,216 (318) {2,605) {5,977) 22,255

{*] FEssertially reflects the transfer of deferred incorme as of 31 December 2012 to the dispasal group classifies as held for sales (Note 13).

The conditions relating to tax credits and grants have been met and therefore the Group does not expect to have to return

them.
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20. Borrowings

2013 2012
Noncurrent
Bank borrowings (*) 649,122 645,078
649,122 545,078
Current
Bank borrowings {*} 152,729 104,860
Current portion of noncurrent foans (*) 138,333 124,855
Import trade finance (*) 6,254 9,837
Discounted bills pending maturity and prepayments of expart, bills [Nate 10) 35,427 41,570
332,743 281,322
981,865 926,400
The Group’s policy is to diversify its financing sources. There is no concentration risk in respect of its bank borrowings as it
waorks with multiple entities.

The exposure of the Group’s bank borrowings (*] to interest rate changes is as follows:

Balance at year-end At 1 year At 5 years

At 31 December 2012
Tatal borrowings (*} 884,830 645,078 1.037
Effect of interest rate swaps [Note B) {35,000) {40,000) - !
Exposure 849,830 605,078 1,037
At 31 December 2013
Total borrowings (*) 546,438 648,122 29,206
Effect of interest rate swaps (Note B) (76,504} [(90.256) {8,668)
Exposure 869,934 558,826 19,538
MNon-current borrowings have the following maturities: [

2013 2012 £
Bstween 1 and £ years 345,943 186,948 5
Between 3 and 5 years 273,873 457,092 ;
Over 5 years 29,206 1,037 |

649,122 645,078 .

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet dates were the usual market rates {(benchmark rate plus a market spread) and |
there were no significant differences with respect to other companies of a similar size and with similar risk and borrowing levels, i

Bank borrowings carry interest at market rates, by currency, plus a spread that ranges between 250 and 550 basis points ; :f
(2012: between 250 and 500 basis points). I

The carrying amounts and fair values of current and noncurrent borrowings do nat differ significantly since a significant portion L
thereof has been arranged recently and, in all cases, they accrue interest at market rates; note additionally the effect of the B
interestrate hedges described in Notes 3.1.a) and 8.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

2013 2012
Euro 608,860 607,753
US dollar £36.149 176,731
Braziian real 116,656 137,709
Other 20,200 4,207
981,865 926,400

At 31 Decemnber 2013 the Group had drawn down bark facilities in the amaount of €153 milion (year-end 2012: €196 million).
The total limit on these facilities is €248 million [year-end 2012:; €246 million).
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The Group has the following undrawn credit lines:

2013 2012
Hoating rate:
- Expiring within one year 44,429 37,175
— Expinng beyond one year 51,052 12,711
95,481 49,886

During the first half of 2012, through its Braziian subsidiary, Autometal, S.A., the Group issued BRL250 million of non-
convertible bands. The unit par value of each bond will be paid in three consecutive annual inskalments, The first instalment. will
be paid in 2015 (33%)}, the second in 2016 [33%] and the third and final instalment in 2017 (34%). The balance at 31
December 2013 was equivalent to €80.4 million {€95 milion at 31 December 2012).

On 14 July 2011, CE Automotive, S.A. obtained a syndicated loan from 17 leading financial institutions for €350 million. The
financing raised, which was oversubscribed by more than 50%, effectively diversifies the Group’s pool of banks by bringing
Braziian and French financial institutions into the Group's creditor ranks. The loan was structured with a 5-year maturity date,
effectively extending the due date for a significant portion of the Group's debt at the time, on terms in line with prevailing market
conditions. This lean commits the parent company to complying with covenants related to Net Debt, EBITDA, Equity and Interest
Expense, as defined in the loan agreement, which are customary in agreements of this kind, The Company fuffiled the financial
ratios at 31 December 2013 and 2012. The balance at 31 December 2013 amountaed to €242.5 million (€341 million at 31
Decamber 2012),

At 31 December 2013 no assets were pledged to secure this loan, the initial share pledge having been cancelled in the course
of 2012,

Certain other financing is also subject to the fulfiment of ratios that are in line with common market practice for this type of
contracts. These ratios are fuffiled at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

The interest rates on the aforementioned financing arrangemerits are benchmarked to Euribor plus a variable spread based an
the net debt,/EBITDA ratio.

In the second half of 2013, the Group obtained a bilateral loan of USD 120 milion from a Mexican financial institution, through
the Mexican subsidiary CE Autometal de México, S.A.P.l. de C.V., for a sevenyear term and a onevyear grace period, at a
floating interest rate linked to the LIBOR, on conditions in line with current market price parameters. The balance at 31
December 2013 amounted to €86.7 million.

The Group also has a number of loans denominated in US dallars and Brazilian real for a total of €181 milion (€208 milion at
31 December 2012), maturing in 2017,

In 2013, the Group repaid €280 million in bank borrowings [2012: €283 million) and arranged new loans, in addition to those
detailed above, in the amount of €257 million, of which €79 million relates to the companies included in the consolidation scope
through the business combination completed during the year [Note 35).

These repayments fargely reflect a debt refinancing effort designed to extend and enhance the Group's debt maturity prafile.

21. Trade and other payables

2013 2012
Trade payebles 409,831 389,672
Other accounts payable 31,501 39,428

441,732 439,098

The fair values of these payables do not differ from their carrying amounts,

With respect to the disclosures required under Law 15,/2010 regarding supplier payment terms, the balance pending
payment at 31 December 2013 outstanding by more than 80 days was €11,038 thousand [yearend 2012: €10,403
thousand, past due by over 75 days), a figure that is equivalent to just 3% of total payables to suppliers of goods and services to
the Group companies subject to this legislative requirement and 2.4% of total payables at the consolidated level,
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The breakdown of trade payables settled during the year and thase pending payment at year-end in relation to the legally-
permitted payment terms stipulated in Spanish Law 15,/2010 is as follows:

Payments made and payments outstanding at

the balance sheet date
2013
Thousand euro %

Payments made during the year within the maximum legat imit 532,946 82%
Gther 44,032 8%
Total payments during the year 576,978 1005
Average period by which paymants were past due {days) 53

Balance pending payment at yearend that exceeds the meximum tegal imit (GO

days} 11,038

Payments made and payments outstanding at

the balance sheet date

2012
Thousand euro Yo

Payments made during the year within the maximum legal limit 590,116 92%
Other 51,447 B%
Total payments during the year 541,563 10004
Mverage pertad by which payments were past due (days} 34
Balance pending payment at year-end that exceeds the maximum legal limit (75
days} 10,403
22. Other liabilities

2013 2012
Naoncurrent
Fixed asset supplers 4,680 6.345
Peyeble to Public Administrations 5,858 10,462
Other non-current liabilities 91,950 80,454

103,488 97,261
Current
Current. tax fabilities 37,627 33,811
Payable to public authorities 3,667 4,089
Fixed asset suppliers 24,058 11,640
Payable to Pubfic Administrations 37,815 35,993
Other current. liabilities 2,885 16,281
Accruals and deferred income 5,975 6,862

112,027 108,676

The fair values of these liebilities do not differ significantly from their carrying amounts.

The balances included under ‘Payable to public authorities’ within current and non-current payables include liabilities generated by
the deferral of VAT, personal income tax and social security payments as well as several other items (repayment of grants,
court bonds and other].

Other noncurrent liabdities

This heading includes the outstanding discounted noncurrent portion of the preferred dividends payable to the other
shareholder in CIE Automotive Nuevos Mercados, S.L., namely Ekarpen, S.P.E., S.A., under the terms of the November 2010
agraement by which it invested in CIE Automotive Nuevos Mercados, S.L., for a total of €5,761 thousand (2012 €6,870
thousand]. A current liability of €1,814 thousand, payable in 2014, is recognised in this respect [yearend 2012: €1,577
thousand).
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In addition, this heading includes loans to finance investment projects received from public financing institutions totalling
€31,280 thousand (yearend 2012: €25,025 thousand] and the noncurrent portion [€8,005 thousand) of the loan grantad to
the Group by COFIDES in 2010, of which €10,000 thousand was drawn down at year-end 2013 {yearend 2D12: €12,000
thousand), repayable in 12 haffyearly instalments with a 2vyear grace period [untl 2018) and accruing interest at a rate
benchmarked to Euribor plus a market spread.

This heading also includes the liability arising fromn the right granted to noncontrolling interests in Century Plastics Inc., a
subsidiary acquired in 2012, by means of the grant of a put option valued at USD31.4 milion, equivalent to €22.8 million [year-
end 2012: USD 31.2 million equivalent to €23.3 million} (Note 35).

Other current fiabilities

The balance of €2,885 thousand in “Other current liabilities” (2012, €16,281 thousand) includes, in addition to the items
mentioned in previous paragraphs, the amount pending payment on acquisitions made by the CIE Automotive Group {Note 35),
recognised at fair value. In 2012 it also included the amount relating to the collection received from third parties for the sale of
shares in Automnetal, S.A. [€13,246 thousand), which was settied in 2013 {(Note 8.b]).

The: effective interest rate on norvrinterest. bearing liabilities is a market rate consistent with the rate applicable to financing of a
similar nature and with similar tarms,

Other non-current liabfities have the following maturities:

2013 2012
Between 1 and 2 years 21,662 11,272
Between 2 and 5 yeers 51,085 58,768
Over b years 30,741 27,721

103,488 97,261
23. Deferred taxes
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabifities is as follows:

2013 2012
Deferred tax essets:
- Deferred tax essets to be recovered after more then 12 months 162,606 120,981
- Deferred tax assets to be recovered within 12 months 60,536 41,423

223,142 162,404
Deferred tax liabilities:
- Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered after more than 12 months 59,707 53,227
- Deferred tax habiliies to be recovered within 12 months 2,731 2,882

62,438 55,809

Net 160,704 106,595
The gross mavemnent on the deferred income tax account is as follows;

2013 2012
Opening balance 106,595 53,277
Additions to/{chenges in} consolidation scope 2774 876
{Charged)/credited to the income staterment: (Note 30) 30,824 39,714
{Cherged) /credited to equity 16,823 2,002
Transfers and reclassifications (*) 234 (1,743)
Tax effect of discontinued operations (Naote 13) 3,444 12,469
Closing balance 160,704 106,595

(*) Includes moverments in deferred itemns due to foreign exchange fluctuations.
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The moverment in deferred income tax assets and fabilities during the year is as follows:

Impairment
Hedying fosses and
Deferred tax assets instruments other Tax b Tax credits Other Total
At 31 December 2011 4,403 30,194 39,625 28,548 1,683 104,453
{*]

[Charged]/credited to the income staterment - 5,771 16,709 36,254 - 58,734
[Charged) /credited directly to equity 2,002 - - - - 2,002
Changes /additions to consolidation scope - 876 - - B 876
Transfers and reclassifications {* *] [2,744] {762) [356) 201 - [3,661]
At 31 December 2012 3,661 36,079 55,978 65,003 1,683 162,404
[Charged)/credited to the income staternent - [4,050) 19,546 [*} 20,755 - 36,251
(Charged)/credited directly to equity 2.278 14,544 - - - 16,823
Changes /additions to consofidation scope - 10,809 - 3,770 - 14,579
Transfers and reclassifications [* *)] [3,5189) 733 [423) [2,023) [1,683) [6,915]
At 31 December 2013 2,421 58,115 75,101 87,505 - 223,142
*1 Tax credits related to B&D investments, in the amount of €5,435 thousand, are recognised as grants relating to costs, in accordance with 1AS 20. (2012:

£€0.,502 thousand},
**} Includes the effect of fluctuations in the exchange rates of the currencies in which foreign subsidiary balances are denominated and transfers due to the

reclassification of the assets and liabilities of businesses classified as held for sale {Note 13), among other items.

Accelerated
tax
Deducted Fair value gains Exchange depreciation
Deferred income tax liabilitiea goodwil *]1 differences and other Total

At 31 December 2011 13,718 24,3491 2,006 11,111 51,176
Charged /[credited] to the income statement 4,205 - 2.879) 5,225 5,551
Transfers and reclassifications (**} £1.455] [197] {151) {105} [1,918)
At 31 December 2012 16,468 24,144 {1,034) 16,231 55,809
Charged /[credited] to the income statement 7,261 - 21 {309) 1,973
Changes,/additions to consolidation scope (Note 35) - 11,805 - - 411,805
Transfers and reclassifications (* *) {2,677} 2,845) 168 £1,7958) [/.149]
At 31 December 2013 18,052 33,104 (845) 14,127 62,438
[*] Includes the effect of measuring assets at fair value on firsttime application of IFRSEU, the alfocation of fair value remeasurerment

gains on the acquisition of subsidiaries and loan revaluations.
**) Includes, among other items, the effect of foreign exchange fluctuations on these balances in the foreign subsidiaries and, in 2012,

transfers due to the reclassification of assets and liabiliies of the heldforsale businesses (Note 13).
Deferred tax liabilities,/fassets) charged/(credited) to equity in 2013 and 2012:

2013 2013
Fair value measurement reserves in equity:
- Reserve for hedging transactions and ather 16,823 2,002
16,823 2,002

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carryforwards and unused tax credits to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.

The deferred tax assets that were capitalised by the Group in 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

2013 2012
Tax losses Tax credits Tax losses Tax credits
Spain 60,685 76,840 43,085 55,285
Rest of Europe 573 6,131 1,340 9,474
Brazil 8,908 3786 8,529 245
Mexico 4,835 353 3013 -
Asia - 3,705 - -
75,101 87,505 55,978 65,004
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The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of €33.2 milion (2012: €414 million] in respect of losses generated
by certain Spanish and other European factories amounting to €113 million (2012: €130.5 million} that can be carried forward
against future taxable income.

Additionally, there are tax credits for unused deductions that. have not been recognised amounting to €28 million (2012: €44.5
million).
24. Commitments with employees

Provisions relating to employee benefit commitiments refate basically to benefits integrated due to the Mahindra & Mahindra
operation [Notes 1 and 35].

Set out below is a breakdown of employee benefit provisions, all relating to the automaotive segment, classified by country:

Breakdown by country 2013 2012

Spain [a} - -
Germany(b) 24,342 -
India [c) 1,734 -
Total [Note 25) 26,076 -

al Post-employment benefit plans and other post-employment benefits in Spain

Several automotive segment companies have externalised the pension fiability relating to certain retired and preretired
employees (22 people in 2013 and 2012) to the insurance company Biharko. Payments to this insurance company totalled
€33 thousand in 2013 (€90 thousand in 2012}. At 31 Decamber 2013 and 2012, no longterm amounts are recognised in
this respect.

2013 2012

Balance sheet commitments in respect of:
Retirement benefits - .

Charges in the income statement in respect of [Note 28):
Balance sheet commitments in respect of: 3 55

Retirement benefits

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet were calculated as follows:

2013 2012
Present value of commitments financed 1,582 1,670
Fair value of plan assets {1.592) (1,670}
Balance sheet liahility - -

Movements in the liability recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:
2013 2012

Opening balance - -
Additions/ disposals - -
Expense charged to the income statement 3 85
Profit./{loss) from discontinued activities 30 35
Continuing contributions paid (3 (o5}
Discontinued contributions paid £30) (35}
Closing balance - -
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The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

Technical interest rate
Expected annual return on plan assets

Expected annual return on reimbursements recognised as assets

Future annuat salary increase

0L7054920

2013 2012
3% %
2.5%3% 2.5%3%
2.5%3% 2.5%3%
0-2% 0-2%

Pension plan assets relate to the amounts contributed to the insurance company with which the commitments are externalised.

Actual return on plan assets was 7.51% {5.5% in 2012).

b) Postemployment benefit plans and other lang-term employee benefits in Germany

At 31 December 2013, several Group companies in Germany, acquired through the business combination with Mahindra &
Mahindra {Notes 1 and 35) record the following defined benefit commitments with certain employees:

- Postemployment benefits:

o Lifetime retiremerit pensions

- Longterm employee benefits:

o Lengthofservice awards
o Supplements under phased retirement arrangemenits

These commitments are not financed at 31 December 201 3.

Post-employment benefits:

Moverments in defined benefit commitments during 2013 are as follows:

At 1 January 2013
Scope additions

Cost of current. semvices
Interest expense./fincoms]

Recalculation of values:

- {Gains)/Losses due to changes in financial
assumptions

- {Gains)/Losses based on experience

Plan payments:
- Payment of benefits
At 31 December 2013

Long-term employee benefits:

Movements in defined benefit commitments and provisions during 2013 are as follows:

Opening halance

Scope additions

Cost, of services during the period
Borrowing costs

Actuarial gains and losses recognised in the income statement

Benefits paid
Closing halance

Impact of
Fair minimum asset
Present value value financing /financin
of of plan g limit

commitment assets Total requirement Tatal
22,240 22,240 22,240
161 181 161
568 568 568
22,969 22,969 22,969
85 55 55
B1 B1 81
136 136 136
{998) (998} {998)
22,107 22,107 22,107

2013

2,573

321

35

{58)

(B3B)

2,235
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The financiakactuarial assurnptions used in the actuarial valuations are set out below:

2013
Interest rate 1.13%-3.47%
Expected yield on plan assets -
Future salary increases 2.7ha
Future pension increases 1%2%
Mortality table RT 2006 G
Retirement age 65 years
Valuation method Projected credit unit

The curve used to determine the interest rate was the “Boxx €Corporates AA Subindices von Markit1”.

The weighted average duraﬁon of defined pension benefit commitments is 15 years for postemployment henefits and 9,47 for
longterm benefits.

Based on the mortality table employed, life expectancy for men and women is as follows:

2013

Life expectancy of a person that would retire at the year end:

-men 18.71
- wormen 22.79
Life expectancy of a person that would retire 20 years aftar the year end:

-men 21.39
- Women 256.34
Retirerment age 65 years

The sensitivity of the defined benefit commitrnent to changes in the miain assumptions weighted is as follows:

Change Increase Decrease
in assumption in assumption in assumption
Interest rate 0.25% [3.13%) 3.30%
Growth in pensions 0.25% 1.900% {1.85%}

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change affecting one assumption while the rest of the assumptions remain constant.

¢)] Postemployment benefit plans in India

At 31 December 2013, several Group companies in India, also acquired through the business combination with Mahindra &
Mahindra {Notes 1 and 35] record the following defined benefit commitments with certain employses:

- Post-employment benefits:

o Lifetime retirement pensions
o Retirement awards. This commitment is financed externally under insurance contracts.
o  Retirement awards in the event of the termination of the employment conbtract.

Movements in provisions recognisad in the consolidated balance sheet in 2013 are as follows:

2013
Opening balance -
Scope additions 1,990
Charged to the income statement 501
Contribution paid to insurance policy {711
Banefits paid [307]
Currency transiation differences {379)
Closing balance 1,734
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The financiakactuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuations are set out befow:

2013

Interest rate - B.ORL-B.30%

Expected yvield on plan assets 7.50%-9.00%

Future salary increases 5.0 - 7.00%

Mortality table L.LC. (189941996}

ULTIMATE

Retirement age B0 years

Valuation method Projected credit unit

25. Prouisions

The breakdown of the moverments in provisions del Grupo in 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Amount

At 31 December 2011 58,147

- Additions to consnlidation scope (Note 35) 1,884

- Additions 11,418

- Amounts used £11,785)

- Unused amounts reversed (3,228)

- Transfers and other movements [*) [3,059])

At 31 December 2012 53,373

- Additions to consolidation scope {(Note 35) 43,851

- Additions 10,114

- Amounts used (25,921)

- Unused amounts reversed (3.812)

- Transfers and cther movements {*) 2,482)

At 31 December 2013 75,323

Non-current provisions 66,109

Current provisions 9,214

{*1 Mainly relate to exchange rate effacts.

Non-current provisions at 31 December 2013 mainly include the following:

. A €8.84 million provision (2012; €12.1 milion} corresponding almost entirely to tax contingencies in Brazil, of which €6
miflion are on court deposit pending court rulings (2012: €4.1 million] (Note B},

. A €1.7 million provision established to guarantee the sale of assets and closure and winding up of companies (2012:
€1.7 milkon).

. Provisions for other personnel liabilities amounting to €34.6 milion {2012: €11.2 milion), including €26.1 milion relating
to pension plans {Note 24) of the German and Indian companies intagrated into the Group on 4 October 2013 [Note
38].

. A €20.9 milion provision (2012: €20.2 million] relating to the hedging of operational business risks expected to
materialise in the longterm.

Current provisions at 31 December 2013 relate basically to the streamlining of the Group’s productive structure in Spain (€1.7
million at yearend 2013 and €3.B million at yearend 2012), as well as provisions for operational business risks at several
Group companies that are expected to materialise in the short term [€5.7 million at year-end 2013 and €3.9 million at year-end
2012). This heading also includes provisions for tax contingencies and customer claims at certain subsidiaries [€1.9 miliion at
year-end 2013 and €0.5 million at year-end 2012].
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26. Operating income
2013 20312
Revenue 1,760,253 1,645,705
Changes in inventories of finished goods
and work in progress (Nota 11) 1,608 (4,574}
Other income 68,957 68,840
: 1,830,818 1,709,971

“Other income” basically includes the government grants relating to income and the transfer of grants relating to assets to the
income statement, as well as the sale of scrap metal and gains on the sale of assets totaling €641 thousand (€650 thousand
in 2012).

The breakdown by currency of revenue invoiced in foreign currency {equivalent amounts in thousand euro] is as follows:

2013 2012
Braziian real 373,782 390,232
US dolar 362,741 279,262
Indian rupee 21,976 -
Mexican peso 53,053 44,494
Chinase yuan renminbi 48,598 18,482
Other 25,635 13,377
885,785 746,837
27. Other operating expenses
2013 2012
Utifities 51,274 47,928
Transportation 21,660 18,806
Repairs and upkeep 22,211 19,588
Operating leases 16,490 17,148
Provision for impairment of accounts recevable (Note 10) 1,975 1,666
Provision for inventory impairment {obsolescence) 1,709 2,428
Cther operating expenses 80,873 71,256
196,292 178,820
28. Employee henefit expense
2013 2012
Wages and salaries 278,905 241,894
Share-based payments 567 1,670
Social security costs 56,098 53,777
Cther welfare expenses 39,059 41,156
Personnel restructuring costs 7.092 5,682
381,721 343,979
The average Group headcount by category is as follows:
Number
2013 2012
Consolidated Consolidated
Joint ventures Group Joint ventures Group
Category *) ™) *) **)
Executives 103 357 125 297
University graduates, specialists and administrative staff 285 5372 310 4,912
Semiskiled workers 436 13,209 480 0.666
824 18,938 915 14,875

(*} Ihcluded at 10074,

{**) Ihcludes 30 people assigned to discontinued operations [2012: 87 people).
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The gender breakdown of the Group's headcount and the parent company's directars at: 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as
follows:

Yearend 2013 Yearend 2012

Category Men Women Total (* *) Men Women Total (* *)
Members of the Board of Directors 12 2 14 {*111 2 13
Executives ) 112 54 488 343 73 416
University graduates, speciaists and
administrative staff 4,580 1,109 5,699 4,074 1,227 5,301
Semiskilled workers 11,187 1,941 13,068 B.640 1,915 10,555

16,141 3,106 19,247 13,068 3,217 16,285

{*1 One of the members of the Board of Directors is an executive director.
{**] Includes 11 people assigned to discontinued operations (2012: 58 people).

Share-hased payments
Autometal, S.A. - Brazil

The Group has two payment schemes based on the shares of its listed Brazilian subsidiary Autometal, 5.A, that can be settled
in shares or cash, at the Group's decision [currently to be settled in shares). The schemes were approved by the subsidiary's
shareholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting and executed by the Board of Directors, As resolved by the subsidiary's
shareholders, the potential beneficiaries include the directors, employees and service providers of the subsidiary itseff and of
other Group companies. Under the plans, the entity receives services from the beneficiaries in exchange for the Group's equity
instruments. The fair value of the services rendered by the beneficiaries, in exchange for future shares, is recognised as a cost
for the services rendered {employee benefit expense}. The total amaunt to be recorded is calculated by reference to the fair
value of the shares to be delivered and estimates regarding the beneficiaries’ continued association with the Group at the time
the plans are settled. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the balance sheet date, the entity reviews the basic assumptions underpinning the
estimated amount of compensation payable, essentially the expectation that each beneficiary will remain in the Group’s service
at the settlement date. It recagnises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The reference share price used to determine the consideration payable is BRL14, the price at which the shares of Autometal,
S.A. were listed on the stock market on 7 February 2011. The number of shares to be deliverad to each heneficiary (and
therefare the tatal number of shares covered by the plan} will be determined bearing in mind the number of rights atiributed to
each beneficiary, the average share price during the period between 1 April 2015 and 30 June 2015 and the share price an
29 June 2015 [on the Sao Paclo Bovespa or equivalent index]. The date for celculating the compensation and the delivery of
the equivalent shares {expiry date) is 30 June 2D15, both of which subject to the beneficiaries remaining with the Group at that
date,

The total number of rights granted is 2,884,460 (2012: 3.984.460), it is impossible to determine the number of shares to be
delivered when the plan is setted.

All of the rights granted expire on 30 June 20105.

The weighted average fair value of the rights (or implicit aptions) granted in 2012, determined using the Black-Schales valuation
model, was BRL 4.9544 per option (2011: BRL4.0461). The most significant inputs into the model were the share price on
the grant date, the exercise price shown above, volatility, the expected dividend yield, an expected option life of five years and an
annual risk-free annual interest rate.

Mahindra-CIE Automotive, Lid. (formerly Mahindra Forgings Ltd.) and Mahindra Composites Ltd. - India

The Graup, through the companies acquired in 2013 (Note 1), has a number of remuneration plans based on shares in its
subsidiaries Mahindra CIE Automotive, Ltd (farmerly Mahindra Forgings Ltd.} and Mahindra Compasites Ltd., autharised by the
subsidiaries’ management committees and complying with the general guidelines established in 2003 by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India {indian Stock Exchange]. In accordance with the various remuneration plans, beneficlaries can be
employees and management of the company itseff, its subsidiaries and,/or its parent company who are eligible and fulfil plan
eligibility criteria.
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The exercise price of the granted options by the company Mahindra Composites Ltd. is equal to the market price of the stock
less a discount of not more than 15% of the average share price on the grant date. The final exercise price will be determined
by the management committee based on factors prevailing at the grant date, on the trend followed by the company's shares in
the Bombay Stock Exchange and on other factors related to the employees' performance. The options are divided into three
equal tranches, each tranche being conditional on the employees completing ‘12 months, 24 months and 36 months of service
[vesting period}. The options may be exercised as from the vesting date for a maximum period of five years.

The granted options by the company Mahindra Forgings Ltd. are dividend into three tranches:

= Up to 400,000 options will be exercised at a fixed price of 83 rupees.
« Up to 750,000 options wilt be exercised at a fixed price of 187 rupees.

«  Cther options will be exercised at a price equal to the market price of the stock less a discount of not more than 15%
af the average share price on the grank date. The final exercise price wil be determined by the management
committee based on factors prevailing at the grant date, on the trend followed by the company's shares in the Bombay
Stock Exchange and on other factors related to the employees' performance. The options vest in tranches determined
by the company's remuneration commitbee, subject to completion of a oneyear vesting period. Once they are vested,
the options may be exercised as from the vesting date for a maximum period of five years.

Movements in the number of stock options issued and related fair values at the grant date, from 1 October 2013 to the year
end, are set out befow for the subsidiaries Mahindra Forgings Ltd. and Mahindra Cornposites Ltd.:

At 1 October 2013

Granted

Forfeited

Value of employee services
Exercised

Currency translation differences
At 31 December

Fair value at
grant date No. of options

{Thousand euro) (Thausand)
1,925 3,465
(307) {528)

100
{36} (B7)

9
4,673 2,850

Of the 2,843,283 options issued, 1,540,548 options could be exercised at yearend 2013. Exercised options during the
period from 1 October 2013 to 31 December 2013 totalled 87,143 option, valued at a weighted average price of 34.92

rupees.

Stock options outstanding at year-end have the following expiration dates and exercise prices:

Exerdise price
Grant, - vesting Expiration date per share (*) Options at year end

Plan October 20072011 20186 197 89,250
Plan February 20082012 2017 83 309,000
Plan February 20082012 2017 197 10,000
Plan May 20082012 2017 152 111,475
Plan July 20082012 2017 102 97,940
Plan August 20082012 2017 108 284,000
Plan May 20102014 2019 97 69,000
Plan April 20112015 2020 57 1,473,668
Plan January 2012-2016 2021 a4 341,957
Plan Composites 20082014 2018 47 52,983

2,849,283

*}

Figures presented in Indian rupees due to being more representative of the aption's value.
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2013 2012 .

Interest expense

_+ - Bank borrowings interests (72,039) {80,912}
- Impairment of heldtosale financial assets (Note 8] {6.599) (4,700}
Interest income:
- Other interest and finance income 18,639 41,004
Net gains,/(losses) on foreign currency transactions 11,8768 (4,179)
Net gains,/(losses] on financial instruments at fair valus:
- Interestrate swaps [Note B} (1,598} 4,338
Change in fair value of essets and liabilities taken to income statermnent (Note 1] {16,369}

(66,090) (44,449}
30. Income tax
2013 2012

Current tax 21,981 21,524
Net change in deferred tex (Note 23) (*](28,843) £*1(49,681)
Total income tax expense [income} [6,862) {28,157)
Tax expense of discontinued operations 3,444 12,469
Tax expense (income) of continuing operations (3,418) (15,688}

{*} Coes not mclude tax credit for R&DA&I, €5,435 thousand, that are registered, according to IAS1, as operating grents {€2,502 thousand at

31 December 2012).

The reconciliation of the Group's accounting profit and taxable profit is as follows:

2013 2012
Consaolidated accounting profit before tax for the year from continuing operations 84,088 96,762
Accounting profit before tax from discontinued operations {Note 13) (13.065) {48,951)
Consolidation adjustments 213.615 207,021
Aggregate profit before tax of consolidated companies 284,639 254,832
Incorne not subject to tax and nondeductible expenses [*) (207.892) {178,762)
Nst temporary differencas in individual companias [* *] (34,792} {22,115)
Offset of tax losses {6,105} {12,725]
Aggregate taxable profit 35,850 40,230

(*} Dividends distributed among Group companies, portfolic provisions eliminated and other permanent differences totafing €70.3 million,
€25.9 million and €111.7 million, respectively (2012: €75.74 milion, €33.61 million and €10.42 million, respectively)

(**] MNet tamporary differences in the individual compenies basically include adjustments for workforce restructuring and temporery
differences for accounting and tax purposes in the recognition of expenses and income and in the recognition and reversal of provisions.

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate

applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

2013 2012
Aggregate profit before tax of consdlidated companies 284,639 254,832
Tax calculated at domestic rates applicable to profits in the respective countries 85,180 83,532
Income not subject to tax [62,213] {58,800)
Utifisation of tax credits and tax losses {209) [(3,208)
Recovered aid expenses {777] -
Deferred tax expense/fincome} (Note 23] [P8,843) (49,681)
Tax charge (6,862) (28,157])
Transfer to discontinued operations 3,444 12,469

{3,418} (15,688)
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The theoreticat tax rates vary in accordance with the various tax domiciles, the most important of which ere as follows:

Statutory rate

2013 2012
8asque region 268% 28%
Rest of Spain 3% 30%
Mexico 3% 3%
Brazil 34% 31%
Rest of Europe (average rate} 15%-35% 15% - 35%
China 25% 25%
Americas 18,50%-30% 18.50%30%
ihdia 3e32% -

As mentioned in Note 2.20, the parent company, CIE Automotive, S.A., is authorised to file consofidated tax returns with
certain subsidiaries.

The other CIE Automotive Group companies file individual returns.

Generally speaking, the Group companies have their tax returns open to inspection for all years for which the statute applying
under the various bodies of tax legislation to each company has not lapsed. This statute ranges between 4 and 6 years from
when the tax obligation falls due and the deadline for filing tax returns passes.

The corporate income tax legislation applicable to the parent company in 2013 is that relating to Bizkaia Regional Regulation
3/1996 (26 June], which has been repealed for tax periods beginning on or after T January 2014, without prejudice to the
rights of the tax authorities with respect to tax obligations accrued during its term of application.

The parent company's directors have calculated the amounts associated with this tax for 2013 and those years open to
inspection in accordance with legislation in force at each year-end on the understanding that the final outcome of the various
legal proceedings and appeals that have been filed in this respect will not have a significant impact on the annual financial
statements taken as a whole.

During 2013 and 2012, noncurrent assets were sold for a gain of €660 thousand to which the tax exemption for
reinvestment has been applied, The total amount of the sale has already come to new norrcurrent assets, with the result of non
pending additional investments to cover the reinvestment.

Each of the companies that has applied this incentive will disclose the relevant information required by law in its individual annual
accounts.

31. Earnings per share

a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, excluding ordinary shares purchased and held as treasury shares {Note
14].

2013 2012
Profit attributable to owners of the parent fthousand euro) B0,125 61,028
Praofit/{loss} from discontinued operations attributable to owners of the parent (thousand euro) (*) [9,639) (35,243)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue fthousand) 106,973 106,403
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations (euro per share] 0,65 0.90
Basic earnings per share from discontinued operations {suro per share] {0.08) {0.33}

[*) Of the loss for the year from discontinued operations of CE Automotive Group, a loss of €(9,621} thousand [2012: a loss of €36,482
thousand) corresponds to the shareholders of the Group's parent company [Note 13},

b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The parent has no dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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32. Dividends per share

On 16 Oecember 2013, the Board of Directors approved the payment of an interim dividend from 2013 profit of
€0.09 per share carrying dividend rights, implying a dividend payment of €10,894 thousand. The payment was made
on 3 January 2014,

On 30 April 2013, the parent company’s shareholders in General Meeting approved the motion for the distribution of
2012 profit (individual) including the distribution of a final dividend against 2012 profit of €0.09 per share carrying
dividend rights, amounting to a total payment of €9,277 thousand. This dividend was paid on 3 July 2013,

On 18 December 2012, the Board of Directors approved the payment of an interim dividend from 2D12 profit of
€0.09 per share carrying dividend rights, amounting to a dividend payment of €9,345 thousand. The payment was
made on 3 January 2013.

At the Annual General Meeting of 25 April 2012, the parent company’s shareholders approved the dividend motion in
respect of 2011 profits, giving rise to a final dividend (in addition to the interim dividend detailed above) of €0.08 per
share, amounting to a total of €1D,260 thousand. An amount of €9,678 thousand was paid in this respect on 8 May
2012.

33. Cash generated from operations

2013 2012

Profit for the year 77,886 75,968
Adjustments for:
-  Tax[Note 30} : 21,981 21.624
—  Defarred tax Notes 23 and 30} {2B,843) (49,681)
—  Grants released o income {Note 19} (3.600) 5,977}
- UOspreciation of property, plant and eguipment {Note B) B0O,B30 77,945
-  Amortisation of intangible assets {Note 7} 9,060 9,680
—  Asset impairment charge [Note 13] 12,300 29,604
—  [Profit}/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

(see below) (B41) [B50)
—  Net change in provisions {Nota 25} [3,745) {3,765)
- Neat [gains)/losses on remeasurement. to fair value of

derivative financial instruments (Note B) 24,566 4,171)
- Interest income {Note 29) (18,639) {41,004)
—  Interest expense {Note 29) 72,039 85612
—  Bxhange differences [Note 29 (11,876) 4,179
—  Share of loss/{profit} of associates [Nate B} 257 166
Changes in warking capital (excluding the effects of acquisition and exchange differences on
consolidation):
-~ Ihventories 3,685 1,478
—  Trede and other receivables 6,453 1,195
—  Other assets 2,364 [4,659)
—  Trade and other payables [48,027) {27.875])
Cash generated from operations 197,860 169,569

In the cash flow staterment, proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment comprise;

2013 2012
Carrying amount {Notes 6 and 7) 6.428 4,126
Profit,/(foss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 641 650
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 7,069 4,776
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34. Commitments, guarantees and other information

a) Capital and lease commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred is as follows:

2013 2012
Property, plant and equipment 12,235 10,920
Obligations deriving from irrevocable lease agreements 65,469 35,833

b) Financing of capital commitments

These investments are financed through the cash generated by the Group's activities and structured via payment agreements
with suppliers and equipment vendors and, if necessary, bank borrowings.

¢) Operating lease commitments

The Group has been leasing various offices and warehousas under noncancellable operating lease agreements since 2008.
The lease terms ara between 5 and 10 years, and the majority of lease agreements are renewable at the end of the lease
period at market rates, The Group also leases various plant and items of machinery under cancefiable operating lease
agreamants. The Group is required to provide six months’ notice to terminate these agreements.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under noncancellable operating leases are as follows:

2013 2012
Less than one year 13,043 7,647
Between one and five years : 33,489 27.937
Later than five years 18,927 249
65,469 35,833

d) Other information

Tha Technological Services and Solutions & EPCs (TS5} segment has posted bonds to guarantee works and services randered
to customers and commercial guarantees totelling approximately €14.4 million [2012: approxmately €10.6 million)

35. Business combinations

2013

Automaotive segment

Consolidation scope changes are described in Note 1.

Within 12 months as from the acquisition, the liabilities of the company acquired on 18 September 2012, Nanjing Forging Co,
Ltd, were restated in the amount of €2,010 thousand, entailing an adjustment. to the business combination values published in
2012 and an increase of €1,005 thousand in goodwill (Note 7],

Set out below is a breakdown of net assets acquirad following the completion of the analysis of the business combination
performed in the first half of 2013 and resulting goodwilt:

Amaunt
Cost of the business combination 17,188
Fair value of net assets acquired (15,187)
Goodwill 2,001

Additionally, following completion of the analysis of tha business combination involving the company acquirad on 4 Octaber
2012, Century Plastics, LLC, the values allocated to each shareholder's net assets were adjusted, as reflected in movements in
equity for the period (€9.7 million).
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As part of the strategic agreement described in Note 1, the purpose being to integrate the automotive component
manufacturing business, on 4 October the Group, through subsidiaries of its Brazifan subsidiary Autometal, S.A., completed
phase one of the operation, acquiring controfling interests in Mahindra Forgings Ltd. {now Mahindra CIE Automative, Ltd),
Mahindra Composites, Ltd. and Mahindra Hinoday Industries, Ltd. The total price paid was INR 8,809 bilion {equivalent to
approximately Euros 110 mitiion).

Autometal, S.A.'s shareholdings in these companies through its subsidiaries currently stand at 78.16% of Mahindra CiE
Automotive, Ltd., 61.74% of Mahindra Composites, Ltd. and 64.96% of Mahindra Hinoday Industries, |td.

A breakdown of net assets acquired and goodwill is set out below:

Amount
Cost of the business combination 110,576
Fair value of net assets acquired f12,309])
Goodwill 98,267
Fair value
Mahindra Mahindra
Forgings Limited Hincday Composites Total
Fixed Assets 85,636 45,364 1,144 132,144
[nventories 41,549 8,859 702 51,110
Accounts receivable 14,771 7.596 2.315 24,682
(ther assets 4926 1,118 283 6,325
Deferred taxes 10,859 3.687 33 14,579
Other financiel assets 4,884 481 - 5,365
Cash and cash equivalents 1,697 573 51 2,321
Assets acquired 164,322 67,676 4,528 236,526
DOeferred income 600 282 - 8ee
Bank baorrawings 62,542 15,138 a83 78,663
Provisions 41,141 2,657 53 43,851
Accounts payable 48,257 14,456 1,640 864,353
Deferred taxes 3,497 8,233 75 11,805
Other liabilities 14,170 1,095 - 15,265
Liabilities assumed 170,207 41,861 2,751 214,819
Assets - Liabilities (5,885] 25,815 1,777 21,707
Stock options included in equity 1,114) - 22} (1,136}
Total net assets (6,999) 25,815 1,755 20.571
Total net assets acquired (5,544) 16,769 1,084 12,309

The fair values of non-current assets were determined in accordance with appraisals performed by independent experts with
knowledge of the Indian and European markets; their estimates are based on market purchase or construction prices, taking
into account the assets' residual useful lives, and are subject to no limitations or additional risks.

Pre-existing contingent liabilities in the businesses acquired and recognised in a document signed together with the former
shareholder have been recognised in the amount of €7.5 milion. These contingencies relate to certain lawsuits filed by
custemers, workers and other third perties on which rulings are expected to be unfavourable, The Group has estimated the
amount of all potential undiscounted future payments that the Group might bave to make if the rulings are unfavourable. No
change was made to this estimate at 31 December 2013.
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The cash flows deriving from the transaction are as follows:

Total consideration {*}
Cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiary acquired (*]
Outflow of cash on the acquisition [*)

CL7054931

Amount
110,576
(2,321}
108,255

£*} Data in Indian rupees, euros and sterling pounds converted to euros at the exchange rate on the transaction date.

This business combination contributed sales of approximately €S0 million and losses of €2.5 million; had the effective date been

1 January 2013, it would have contributed sales of approximately €380 million.

The business volume of the Mahindra Systech companies (Note 1) that will be included in CIE Automotive, 5.A.'s consolidation
scope during phase two of the operation total approximately €150 million, although the fransaction is expected to have effect in

the middle of the year, entailing an effect of approximately €75 million on the CIE Group's 2014 revenue. These companies

financial situation is sound and they will not contribute a significant amount of debt to CIE Automotive, 5.A,

r

The analysis of the business combination and allocation of the acquisition price to the net assets acquired is practically
completed, pending the analysis and valuation of certain contracts that are expected only to affect the values of certain

intangible assets for immaterial amounts.
2012
Automotive segment

On 10 April 2012, the Group acquired 15% of Russia's CIE-Avtocom, LLC through CIE Automotive Nuevos Mercados, S.L.,

thereby increasing its shareholding in this investee from 35% to 50%.

The breakdown of tha net assets acquired and rasulting goodwill was as follows:

Cost of the business combination
Fair value of the net assets acquired
Goodwill

The amounts of idantifiable asssts acquired and fabilities assumed:;

Fixed assets

Deferred taxes

[nventories

Accounts receivable

Cash and cash equivalents
Assets acquired

Translation differences
Nan-current provisians
Bank barrowings
Accounts payable
Current provisions
Liabilities assumed

Total net assets acquired
The cash flows deriving from the transaction were as follows:
Tatal consideration

Cash and cash equivalants in the subsidiary acquired
QOutflow of cash on the acquisition

{*] Data in Russian roubles translated to euro at the exchange rete on the transaction date (10 April 2012).

Amount

1,453
4

1,457

{*) Fair value of the
net assets acquired
(15%)

333
6
132
624
g

1,104

(2
21
535
546
8

1,108

4)

Amount

1.453
)]

1,444
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On that same date, through CIE Automotive Nuevos Mercados, S.L. and CEE~Avt0c-Dm, LLC, the Group subscribed for equity
issued by Russian company CIE-Avtocom Kaluga, LLC, thereby increasing its shareholding in this investee by 13% to 50%,.

The breakdown of the net assets acquired and resulting goodwill was as follows:

Amount
Cost of the business combination 171
Fair value of the net assets acquired {3)
Gooduwill 168

The amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed:
(*} Fair value of the
net assets acquired

{15%)
Fixed assets 361
Deferred taxes 10
[nventories 118
Accounts receivable 47
Cash and cash equivalents 13
Assets acquired 549
Transglation differences 1
Accounts payable 245
Liabilities assumed 546
Total net assets acquired 3
The cash flows deriving from the transaction were as follows:
Amount
Thousand euro

Total consideration 171
Cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiary acquired (13}
Outflow of cash on the acquisition 158

{*) Data in Russian roubles translated to euro at the exchange rate on the transaction date (10 April 2012).

On 18 September 2012, through Group subsidiary Autometal, 5.A. (Appendix], the Group signed a joint venture agreement
with Chinese group DOonghua Automotive Industrial Co. Ltd. Under the terms of the agreement, Autometel became a
sharehalder, having subscribed for new shares, in Chinese company Nanjing Automative Forging Co., Ltd. The size of the
aquity issue was CNY140 milion (equivalent to approximately €17 milion) and the equity injection gave Autometal, S.A.
control of Nanjing Automotive Forging Co. Ltd. by means of agreements giving it mare than 50% of vating rights on a
shareholding of 50%. The main purpose of the joint venture is to develop and maka automaotive parts using stamp forging
and complementary tachnalogias at Nanjing Automaotive Forging, Co. Ltd. and, particularly, to develop and manufacture
crankshafts. CIE Automotive Group has an extensive track record making this product at its European facilities.

This transaction was ratified by the shareholders of Autometal, S.A. in general meeting on 4 October 2012.

The breakdown of tha net assets acquired and resulting goodwill was as follows:

Amount
Cost of the business combination 17.188
Fair value of the net assets acquirad (16,152}
Goodwill 996
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The amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

(*) Fair value of the

net assets acquired
Fixed assets 11,588
Deferred taxes 853
Inventories 6,794
Accounts receivable 7,584
Cash and cash equivalents 19,227
Assets acquired 46,063
Non-current provisions 1,855
Bank borrowings 5,525
Accounts payable 6,289
Liabilities assumed 13,679
Total net assets 32,384
Total net assets acruired [flote 8) 16,192
The cash flows deriving from the transaction were as follows:

Amount

Total consideretion 17,188
Cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiary acquired (19,227)
Outflow of cash on the acquisition (2,039)

{*) Data in Chinese renminbis translatad to euro at the exchange rate on the transaction date (4 October 2012).

On 4 October 2012, through its US investee, CIE Autormotive USA, Inc. [an investment held by CIE Automoative, 5.A. through
its Braziian subsidiary, Autometal, S.Al], the Group acquired a controling shareholding (65%} in US company Century
Plastics, LLC.

The cost of the business combination was USD23.5 million {€18.2 million at the acquisition-date exchange rate}.

Century Plastics is located in Detroit {Michigan], the heart of the US automotive industry. It makes car parts using plastic
infection moulding technology.

in addition to the above cost, the Group awarded additional consideration by granting the selling shareholders a put option
over the remaining 35% of Century Plastics, LLC, exercisable in 2016. As a result, the Group has recognised a liability to
reflect the right granted to the non-controlling interests in this acquiree, which is valued at the present value of the estimated
price of settling the put, i.e., €23.6 million. This liabitity is included in "Other non-current; liabilities™ (Note 22).

In this business combination, the Group chose to recognise the noncontrolling interest in the acquiree at the fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

The breakdown of the net assets acquired and resulting goodwill, factoring in the option detailed above, was as follows:

Amount
Thousand euro
Cost, of the business combination for CIE Automotive Group [65%) 18,162
Fair value of the net assets acquired {7,8893)
Feir value of the non-controlling interests 9,780
Goodwill 20,049
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The amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

t*) Carrying amounts
of the net assets
(*) Fair value acquired
Fixed Assets 10,148 11.238
Inventaries 4,085 4,0B5
Accounts receivable 13,399 13,399
Assets acquired 27,632 28,722
Bank borrowings 7,898 7,898
Accounts payable 11.841 11,841
Liabilities assumed 19,739 19,739
Total net assets acquired 7,893 8,983
The cash flows deriving from the transaction are as follows:
Amount
Total consideration 18,162
Cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiary acquired -
Qutfiow of cash on the acquisition 18,162

(*] Data in US dollars translated to euro at the exchange rate on the transaction date {4 October 2012}

Biofuel segment

On 4 January 2012, the Group acquired 51% of Spain’s Recogida de Aceites y Grasas Maresme, S.L. (REMA] through its
subsidiary Bionor Transformacion, S.A.U.

The summary of the business combination is as follows:

Amount
Thousand euro
Cast of the business combination 100
Fair value of the net. assets acquired (7]
Goodwill 93

The amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed:;
Fair value of the net
assets actuired

Fixed Assets 16
Non-current financial investments 4
Accounts receivable 12
Cash and cash equivalents B
Assets acquired 38
Accounts payable 30
Current. tax kability 1
Liabilities assumed 31
Total net assets acquired 7
The cash flows deriving from the transaction were as follows:
Amount

Tota! consideration 100
Cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiary acquired (6]
Qutfiow of cash on the acquisition 94

These husiness combinations contributed in €1,126 thousand to profit in 2012.

As is indicated in the applicable accounting regulations, transaction costs are not included in the amount of consideration paid
for the businesses acquired. The business combinations do not entail contingent consideration,
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36. Related-party transactions

The direct shareholders of the Group {including noncontrolling interests), the directors and key management personnel and
these parties’ close relatives are considered related parties.

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

a) Key management compensation and loans

The total compensation paid to key management in 2013, excluding that included within the compensation paid to the
members of the Board of Directors, amounted to €4,808 thousand {2012; €1,393 thousand).

The parent company has not entered into any commitments relating to pensions or other types of complementary post-
employment benefits with key management personnel.

At yearend 2013 there is no balance relating to transactions with these related parties (2012: €5,069 thousand in current
assets).

b) Balances and transactions during the year with Group companies and related parties

2013 2012
Transactions effectad:
- Services received 1.567 610
- Services rendered 1,942 768
- Purchases 994 -
- Sales 17,227 -
- Change in fair value of assets 16,369 -
Year-end balances with Group companies and related parties are as follows:

2013 2012
Balances:
- Accounts receivable from related parties (Note 8) 50,575 46,836
- Accounts payable to related parties 7,116 122
- Dividend pending payment 10,694 9,345

Trade receivables of related —parties show the balance of financial transactions that accrue a market interest {Note 8).
c} Compensation of the directors of the parent company

Compensation paid to the members of the Board of Oirectors

Total compensation paid to the members of the Board of Directors has amounted to €1,093 thousand in 2013 (2012:
€4,300 thousand). The members of the Board of Oirectors received no compensation in respect of bonuses or profit sharing
arrangements. Nor did they receive shares, or sell or exercise stock opfions or ather rights refated to pension plans or
insurance policies of which they are beneficiaries.

At yearend 2013, there is a balance receivable (at present value) of €1,165 thousand arising from other transactions with
these related parties (2012; €D thousand), classified in current assets.
d) Article 229 of the Spanish Corporate Enterprises Act

Article 229 of Spain's Corporate Enterprises Act, enacted by means of Legislative Royal Decree 1/2010, of 2 July 2010,
obliges senior management to report to the Board of Directors and in the absence of them, to thelr fellow directors, or if they
are sole directors, the General Mesting, on any potential direct or indirect confiict of interest vis&-+is the entity whose interests
they uphold. A paotentiallyconflicted director must abstain from intervening in the resolutions or decisions concerning the
transaction giving rise to the conflict in question. In addition, directors must disclose any direct or indirect shareholdings they or
their refated parties hold in the capital of any other company with the same, similar or complementary corporate purpose as
that of the parent company, additionally disclosing the positions,/duties discharged at those companies.

The members of the parent company’s Board of Directors are not subject to any the conflicts of interest outlined in article 229
of the Corporate Entarprises Act,
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Mr Francisco José Riberas Mera and Mr Juan Maria Riberas Mera, members of the Board of Directors of CIE Automotive,
S.A., are shareholders and directors of Corporacion Gestamp, S.L., which is also a member of the parent company's Board of
Directors. Corporacion Gestamp, S.L. is the parent of an industrial group that largely carries on operations in the iron and steel
market through the manufacture and marketing of metal parts, the manufacture and marketing of parts for the automaotive
industry and the promation, construction and operation of solar energy, wind and biothermal energy plants. The manufacture
and marketing of parts for the automative industry is carried on through a subgroup of companies, the parent. of which is
Gestamp Automacion, S.A., which is B5%-owned by Corporacion Gestamp, S.L.

None of the remaining members of the Board of Directors or their individual representatives on the Board or their related
persons has a shareholding or holds positions or performs duties in any company that carries out activities in the sectors in
which CIE Automotive Group conducts its business activities.

The members of the Board of Directors have reported that the only positions held and duties discharged in 2013 at companies
with the same, similar or complementary core business thal constitutes the corporate purpose of the parent company are the
positions held and duties performed at other CEE Automotive Group companies (Note 1); given that the Group is managed as a
whole, no conflicks of interest were produced in the course thereof. Nevertheless, the parent company's shareholders are
aware of these situations and have similarly determined that they do not pose corflicts of interest.

37. Joint ventures

On 1 September 2009, together with the Dutch investment fund VEP Fund | Holding Cooperative W.A., which is administered
by Value Enhancement Partners, the Group incorporated RS Automotive B.V., a Outch joint venture in which both venturers
hold 50%. In September 2009 this joint venture carried out its first corporate transaction involving the acquisition of a group of
companies.

The amounts set out below represented the Group’s 0% share in the joint venture’s assets and liabilities, and incoma and
results. They ara inciuded in the consolidated balance sheet and income statement.:

2013 2012
Assets:
MNoncurrent assets 13,412 12,766
Current assets 10,397 10,410
23,808 23,176
Liabilities:
Non-current: iabilities 5,444 5,293
Current lisbilittas 10,254 8,553
15,698 13,846
Net assets 8,111 9,330
2013 2012
Income 35,528 34,764
Expense (36.666) (34.767)
Profit/(loss) after taxes {1,138) {3)
Proportionate interest in the joint venture's commitmants S0% 50%

There are no contingent liabilities refating to the Group’s interest in the joint venture, and no contingent labilities of the verture
itself,

Elsewhere, in 2010, together with the Russian companies Sam LTD LLC and JSC KZAE, the Group incorporated CIE Avtocom,
LLG and CIE Avtocom Kaluga, LLC, in which CIE Automative Nuevos Mercados, S.L. holds 35% and the Russian companies hold
the remaining 65%.

As detailed in Note 35, during the first half of 2012, CIE Automiotive Group acquired an additional 15% shareholding in these
companies.
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As explained in Note 1, on 4 Septernber 2013 the Spanish company CIE Autornaotive Nuevos Mercados, 5.L. sold all its shares
in the Russian company Doga Avtokom CIE LLC (DAC, LLC) for 8.2 million roubles (€187 thousand). This transaction generated
a loss of €57 thousand for the Group,

The following amounts represent the Group's 50% share at 31 December 2013 [50% at 31 December 2012) of the assets
and liabilities, and income and results of the joint. venture, They are included in the consolidated balance sheet and income
statement:;

2013 2012
Assets:
MNorncurrent assets 2,824 3.188
Current assets 1,673 2,512
4,497 5,700
Liabilities:
MNon-current lishilibes 1,467 1,094
Current fiabifities 2,251 3,284
3.718 4,378
Net assets 779 1,322
2013 2012
Income 16,872 B,105
Expense (17,100} {8,570)
Profit/(loss) after taxes (228) {465)
Proportionate interest in the joint venture's commitments 5% (*]) 50%

(*) Reflects 35% of the joint venture's results until the date of the business combination {Nate 35) and 50% thereafter.

There are no contingant liabilities relating to the Group's intarest in the joint venture, and no contingent: fiabilities of the venture
itself.

38. Joint arrangements (UTEs)

The Technological Segment. participates in several consortia or temporary joint arrangaments (UTEs for their acronym in
Spanish]. The following amounts represent the Group's percentaga interest in the assals and liabilities, and sales and results of
these joint arrangements. Thay are included in the balance sheet and income statament:

Current Non-current Current Non-current
Name as6ets assets linbilities liahilities Revenue Expense Resulis
2013 1,291 - 1,457 - 4 170 {166}
2012 2,134 - 2,116 - 1,961 9,943 18

39. DOther information

a) Auditor fees

The fees charged by PricawaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L. for audit services performed in 2013 total €1,879 thousand
(€1,706 thousand in 2012). This amount includes the audit of the financial statements of tha individual companies and the
consolidated financial statements for 2013, The amount relating to 2012 also includas the audit of the interim financial
statements.

Other services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L. and other firms associaled with the
PricewaterhouseCoopers trademark amounted to €317 thousand (2012: €187 thousand).
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The fees charged by other firms for financial staterment audit services in respect of other ivestees amounted to €507
thousand in 2013 (2012 €70 thousand]. This amount includes the services rendered for all the period of the companies joined
to the consdlidation scope of the period.

b) Environmental issues

i} The parent company and its subsidiaries have adapted their production facifities to meet the legislative environmental
requirements of the countries in which they are located.

ii) Investments in assets intended to make them more erwironmentallyfriendly and to minimise their impact on the
ervironment are capitalised in property, plant and equipment.

i) The expenses deriving from ervironmental action incurred during the year basically refata to waste removal expenses,

The Group's property, plant and equipment include facilities aimed at erwvironmental protection and improvement. This work is
carried out by inhouse employees and external specialist providers, as part of the strategic ervironmental plan implemeanted to
minimise the environmental risks associated with its operations and improve the Group's environmental management and
record. The combined amounts of investments and expenses accrued in 2013 in relation to environmental protection work
totalled euro 1.9 miflion {euro 2.7 miflion in 2012) and are recorded under the relevant headings of “Property, plant and
equipment” in the accompanying balance sheet and “Other operating expenses” in the accompanying income statamant,

40. Events after the balance sheet date

On 24 January 2014, CIE Automotive entered into an agreernent to acquire the remaining 50% of the French group Advanced
Comfort Systems — ACS {purchasing shares in RS Automotive B.V., the holding company of Advanced Comfort Systems — ACS)
for €10.7 million, plus an additional sum payable bases on the evolution of EBITDA for periods 2014 and 2015, and payable the
first semester of 2016. The acquisition has been completed on 17 February 2014 once alt procedures have been fulfdled. As
result of this acquisition, CIE Automotive wholly owns R.S. Automotive B.V.
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% effective shareholding

% shareholding of

% shareholding of

Regi | of CIE Au subgroup [Level 1} subgroup [Level 2)
Company B y office Direct Indirect Direct: Indirect: Direct Indirect

CiE Berriz, S.L. {*} {merged in 2012 with CIE Inversiones Holding company Vizcaya 100.00P% _ . . _ _

Inmuehles, §.L.U, and with CIE Automotive Bioenergia,

S.LUj

Antulin - CIE Czech Aepublic s.r.o. (1) Manufacture of eutormotive Caech Rep. J0.00% 30.00% -
cormnponerts

Belgium Forge, N.V. {in liquidation) Manufacture of automotive Belgium - 100.00% 10000 - - -
componants %

CiE Udalbide, 5.A.U. Manufacture of sutimotive Vizeaya - 100.00% 100.00 - - .
components a¢,

GE Mecautn, S.A L, Manufacture of autorotive Alava - 10000%  100.00 - - -
companents %

Mecanizaciones dal SurMecasur, S.A, Manufacture of automotive Alava - 100.00% 100,00 - - -
components %

Gamekeo Fabricacion de Componentes, 5.A, Manufaciure of automative Alava - 100.00% 100.00 - - -
companents %

Grupo Companentes \ilanava, S.L. Manufacture of sutnrmotive Barcelona - 100.00% 100.00 - - -
companents %

Alfa Deco, S.A.U. Manufacture of aulmmotive Guipizcoa - 100.00R6 100.00 - - -
companants %

Alurecy, S.ALL Manufacture of autnmotive Vizcaya - 100,004 100.00 - - -
companents %

Componentes de Autornocion Recytec, S.L.LU. Manufacture of sutnmotive Aleva - 100.00%  100.00 - - -
components %

Componentes de Direccion Recyan, 5.L.U. Manufacture of sutnmotive Neavarre - 100.00% 100.00 - - -
companants %

Nova Recyd, S5.A.U. Manufacture of automotive Alava - 100.00% 100,00 - - -
compenents %

Recyde, S.A.U. Manufacture of autormotive Guiplzcoa - 100.00%% 100.00 - - -
companents %

Recyde CZ, s.r.o. Manufacture of autbmobive Czech Rep. - 100.00% 100.00 - - -
COomponents %

CIE Zdanice, s.r.o. Manufacture of automolive Czech Rep. - 100.00% 100.00 - - -
components %

Alcasting Legutiano, S.L.U, (mergad in 2013 with Tarabusi, Manufacture of automotive Aeva - 100.00% 100.00 - - -

s.ALU) components o

Egafia 2, S.L. Manufacture of autormotive Vizcaya - 100.00% 100.00 - - -
campenents [

Inyectametal, S.A. Manufacture of sutornotive Vizcaya - 100.00% 100.00 - - -
camponents %

Orbelan Flasticos, S5.A. Manufacture of sutorotive Guiplroa - 100.00% 100,00 - - -
components %

Transformaciones Metaldrgicas Normma, S.A. Manufacture of aulnmokive Guiptizcoa - 100.00% 100.00 - - -
components %

Plasf Plasticos da Figueira, 5.4, [*} Manufacure of automokive Portugal - 100.00% 100.00 - - -
components %

ApnioBlie Tretamentas, Lda Manufacure of sutomokive Portugal - 55.00% - 55.008% 55.00%

components

CIE Matai GZ, s.ro. Manufacture of autormotive Czech Rep. - 100.00%46 100.00 - - -
components %

CIE Plasty CZ, s.r.0, Manufacture of autumotive Czech Rep. - 100.00% 100.00 - - -
components %h

CIE Unitools Press CZ, a.s, Manufacture of sutomotive Czech Rep. - 100.00% 100.00 - - -
components %

CIE Joamnar, s.r.o. Manufacture of automotive Czech Rep. - 100,00% 100.00 - - -
compenents %

CIE Automative Maroc, s.a.r.l. dau Manufacture of autornotive Morecea - 100.00% 100,00 - - -
components %

CIE Praga Louny, a.s. [*] Manufacture of autornotive Czech Rep. - 100.00% 100,00 - - -
components %

Praga Senics, s.no. Installstions Czech Aep. - 100.00% - 10000% 10000% -

=
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% effective shareholding

% shareholding of

% shareholding of

Regi ed of CIE A tive subgroup [Levet 1} subgroup {Levet 2)
Company Busi y affice Direct Indirect Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
GIE Deautschiand, GmbH Services and instaliations BGerrnany - 100.00% 100,00 - - -
%
Leaz Valarizacian, S.L.U. (dormant) Wasta management and Vizcaya - 100.00% 100.00 - - -
recovery %
GE Compiégne, S.AS. Manufacture of autbrmotive France - 100.00% 100,00 - - -
components 7,
CIE Automotive Hispamoldes, S.A. [*} Holding compeny Vizcaya - B0,00% 50,0086 - - -
CIE Hispamoiies Flashijues, s.a.rt. dau Manufacture of autormotive Morocco - 50,00% - 50,0 100,000 -
cormponents
CIE Autometal, S.A. {(*] Holding company Brazit - 100.00% 100,00 - - -
o,
%
Mbsturnd Combustiveis Rannvévers, 5.4, Biofuel production and sale Brazit - 100.00% - 100.00B: 100,008 -
Bioautn Participacdes, 5.A. [} Holding company Brazi - 75.00P% - 75,0086 66.00% -
Bioaun MT Agroindustrial, Lida. Agrohiotechnology Brazit - 75.00°% - 75.00% - 65.01%
Mutum Alcool Gombustiveis e Energia, Lida. (dormang] Biofuel production and sale Brazit - 75.00% - 75.00% - B9.0Ba
Biopn MG Agroindustrial, Ltds. (dorment) Agrobiotechnology Brazit - 75.00% - 75.00% - B5.0R4
Autometal, BA. %} Manufacture of automotive Brazit - 74.76% - 74.76% 74.76% -
componernts i
Nanjng Autormotive Forging Co., Lid. Manufacture of autorrotive China - 37.38% - 37.38% - 37.38%
componenks
Durametal, S.A. Manufacture of automotive Brezi - 37.98% - 37.38% - 37.38%
components
Auormetal SBC Injpcio, Pinura e Crormacan de Manufactura of automaotive Brazit - 74.76% - 74.76% - 74.76%
Plasticos, Lida. [*} components
Attnoreme Crormacac de Pasticos Lioa (1) Manufacture of autbmativa Brazit - 74.76% - 74.76% - 74.76%
components
Autormetol Investimentos e Imaveis, Lida. (*) Sarvices and installations Brazit - 74.76% - 74.76% - 74.76%
Gesorep - Autometal Cornercio de Sucatas Lida Sale of screp Brazit - 22.43% - 22.43% - 22,43%
Componentes Autbmotivos Taubatg, Lida. [*) Holding company Brazit B 74.76% - 74.76% - 74,76%
Autoforjgs, L, Manufacture of autometive Brazit - 74.76% - 74.76% - 74,76%
components
Jardim Sisternas Autnmotivos e Industriais, 5.A. Manufacture of automative Brazit - 74.76% 74.76% - 74,76%
comporents
Meatallrgica Nekayane, Lida. Manufachure of automotive Brazh B 74.76% - 74.76% - 74,76%
componants
Participaciones Intemacionafes Autormetal, S.L.U. [*] Helding company Spain - 74.76% - 74.76% - 74.76%
CIF Autornetal de Mexico, SAPL de CV () Helding company Meaxico - 74.76% - 74.76% - 74.76%
Pintura y Ensambles de México, 5.A. de Manufacture of automotive Mexico - 74.76% - 74.76% - 74.76%
CV. components
CiE Colaya, 5.AP.. de GV, Manufecture of sutormoative Meaxico - 74.76% - 74.76% - 74.76%
components
Gescrap Autnmetal de México, 3.A. de CV.  Manufactura of autnmotive Mexico - 22.43% - 22.43% - 22.43%
carmpohents
Pintura, Estormpado y Montaje, S.AP.l. da Manufacture of automotive Mexico - 74.78% - 74.76% - 74.76%
C.v. coimponants
Maquinadas Aulnmatrices y Talleres Menufacture of automotive Mexico - 74.76% - 74.76% - 74.76%
Industriales components
de Celaya, S.A. de CV.
ClE Bérrz Mexico Servicios Services and installations Mexico - 74.76% - 74.76% - 74,76%
Administrativos, S.A. de C.V.
Mugar, S.A de C.V. Manufacture of sutomative Mesxico - 74.76% - 74.76% - 74.76%
COMpOonents
Percaser de Mé&iico, S.A. de C.V. Senvices and installations Meico - 74.76% - 74.76% - 74.76%
Sarvicat 8, Cong., Adm. y Técnicos, S.A. de  Senvices and instailations Mexica - 74.76% - 74.76% - 74.76%
CVv.
inmobiliaria £ Puente, S.A. de C.V. Sendces Mexico - 74.76% - 74.76% - 74.76%
Forfas de Celaya, S.A. de CV. Manufacture of automotive Mexica - 74.76% - 74.76% - 74.76%

components
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% effective shareholding % sharehuolding of % shareholding of
Registered of CIE Automotive subgroup {Lavel 1) subgroup (Level 2)
Company Bugi ity oftice rect Indirect Hrect Indirect Diract Indirect
CiE Autormnotive, USA Inc [*) Services and installations us 74.76% - 74.76% - 74.768%
Century Plastics, Llc Manufacture of eutomotive us 48.5%% - 48.59% - 48.59%
cornponents
Participaciones lntermacionsies Automelal Dos S.L. (%] Haolding company Spain 81.82% 27.08% 53.83% - 53.83%
{1
SL090) Participadiones Intemacionales Autometal Tres Hokding compary Spain B1.82% 27.098% 53.83% - 53.83%
CIE Galfor, S.ALL {*) Manufacture of autormotive Spain B1.82% 27.98% 53.83% - 53.83%
COMponents
CIE Legazpi, 5.A. Manufacture of automotive Spain 81.82% 27.98% 53.83% - 53.83%
components
UAB CIELT Farge Manufacture of automotiva Lithuania B1.82% 27.98% 53.83% - 53.83%
components
Galfor Edlica, SL. Production and merketing of Spain 40.91% 13.99% 26.92% - 26.91%
electricity
Matindra CIE Autormotive, Lid. (before Mahindra  pManufacture of autormotive India 64.77% 22.15%  4261% - 42B1%
Forgings Limited; {*] (1) companents
Stokes Group Limitad [1) {*) Manufacture of aulomotive United 64.77% 22.15% 42.61% - 4261%
cormponents Kingdomn
Stokes Forgings Limitod [1) Manufacture of automotive United 64.77% 22.15% 42 61% - 42.61%
components Kingdorn
Stokes Forgings Dudley Limited (1) Manufacture of automotive United 64.77% 22.15% 42.61% - 42.61%
components Kingdomn
Mahindra Farging Glabal (1) Holding company Republic of BA.77% 22.15% 42.61% - 42.61%
Mauritius
Mahindra Forgings Intemational Limited (1] Halding company Republic of B84.77% 22.15% 42.61% - A2.61%
[*i Mauritius
Mahindra Forgings Europe AG (13(*) Holding cornpany Germany B64.77% 22.15% 4P61% - 42.61%
Gesenkschmiede Schneider GrmbH Manufacture of automotive Germany B64.77% 22.19% 42.61% - 42.81%
)] companents
Jeco Jelfinghaus GrmbH (1) Manufacture of automotive Germany 64.77% 228.15% 42.61% - 42.61%
cornponents
Falkenroth Umformtzchiik GrmbH Manufacture of automotive Germany G64.77% 22.15% 42.61% - 42.61%
[ components
Schanewsiss & Co. GrrbH [1) Manufacture of automative Germeny B4.77% 22.15% 42.61% - 42.61%
components
Mahindra Hinaday Industries Lirmsted [1] Manufacture of autornative India 53.15% 18.18% 34.97% - 34.97%
components
Mahindra Compasites Limited [1) Manufacture of automotive India 50.52% 17.27% 33.23% - 33.23%
components
Bicner Transformacion, S.AU, £*] Holding cornpany Vizcaya 100.00% 100.00 - - -
%
Bionor Berentewvilla, S.L.U. Biofuel production and sale ANava 100.0074 - 10000% 400.00% -
Blasur Transtormociin, 5.L.U. Biofue! preduction and sele Huehva 100.00% - 10000%  100.00% -
Comiube s.rl. [*] {in kguidation) Biofuel production and sale |taly BO.O%%s - BO.OD% BD.06 -
Glycoleo s.r. (dormant] Producton and marketing of lealy 40.80% - 40.80% - 40.805
ghycerine
Bincombustibles de Guaternala, S.A. Agrebiotechnology Guatemala 51.00% - 51.00% 51.005% -
Biocornbustides de Ziarbana, 5.A. Biofuel preduction and sale Vizcaya 20.00% - P0.00% 20.00%% -
Biocombustibles La Seda, 5.1. Production and marketing of Bercelona AD.00% - 40,00% 40,0056 -
giycerine
Vi Operador Petrofifera S.L.LL Riofuel production end sele Vizcaya 100.00% - 10000% 100.00%% -
Gestion de Aceites Vegetales, S.L. [GAVE] *] Sala of fatty oils Madnd 88.73% - 88.73% 88.73% -
Reciclado de Residuos Grasos, S.L.U, [Resigras], Sele of fotty oils Madrid 88.73% - 88.73% - BA.73%
Reciciados Ecolbgicos de Residuos, S.L.L. Sale of fatty oils Alicantz 100005 - 10000% 100.00% -
FAecogida de Acaites y Grasas Maresma, S.L. (Rermnaf Sals of fatty oils Barcelons 51.00% - 51,009 51.00% -
Biodiesel Mediterranag, S.L. Biofuef production and sale Alicanta 100.00% - 100.00% 100.00% -
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% eHectve shareholding

% sharcholding of

% shareholding of

Regi i of CIE Aul subgroup (Level 1) subgroup (Level 2}
Company B y office Direct Indirect Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
RS Automotive B.V. {*} Haolding company Netherlands 50,00% - - - - -
Advanced Comfort Systems International BV, [*] Holding company Netherlands - 50.0066 100.00 - - -
%
Advanced Comfort Systerns ibérica, S.L.U. Manufacture of automotive Orensa - 50.0%% - 1000ms  100.006 -
components
Advanced Comibrt Systems France, SA.G. (*] Manufacture of autpmaotive France - 50.00%4% - 110006 100.00% -
COMpONEnts
Advanced Comfort Systerns Rormania, S.H.L. Manufacture of autorotive Rurnania - 50.0% - 100.00% - 10004
components
Advanced Cormfort Systems México, S.A. de C.V. Manufacture of sutomotive Maxico - 50.0% - 100.00% - 100.00%
components
Advanced Comfort Systerns Shanghai Ca, Lid Manufacture of autnmative China - 50.00% - 100.06 - 100.00%
components
CIE A jve Muevos Mercados, S.L. (*) [2} Holding cornpany Vizcaya 75,00% - - - -
ClE-Avncom Kalugs, LLC Asset halding company Russia - 37.50% 43.10% B.890% 13.80% -
CIE-Avocorn, LLG [*) Haiding cormpany Russia - 37 50% 50.00% - - -
Kinslagropiast, L1 C {merged in 2072 with Plastk, LLG} Manufacture of automotive Russia - 37.8084 - 50.0% 100.00% -
componants
SC GE Matricon, S.A, Manufacture of automotive Romania - 75.00% 100.00 - - -
components %
CIE Automotive Parts [(Shanghai) Ca., Lid. Manufachore of eutornotive China - 75.00% 100.00 - - -
components %
GIE Automotive Rus, LLG (1) Manufacbure of automative Hussia - 75.00% 100.00 - 100.00% -
components %o
Halding company/TT Solutions Bibao 94,43% - - - - -
Global Dominion Access, S.A. (*) and Services
Oominion Instalaciones y Montakes, S.ALL £4) 1T Solutions and Services Zamudio - 94.43% 103.?2 - - -
Dorrinion Networks, S.L. [T Solutions and Senices Meadrid - 94.43% - 00.00% 50,000 -
Dorminian Centro de Gestion  Personalizada, S.L. IT Solutions and Sarvices Madrid - 94.43% - 10006 100.00% -
E.C.I Telecom bénica, 5.A. IT Solutions and Sonvices Madrid - 76.45% 81.00% 81.00% -
Dorninion Investigacion y Desarrolio S.LU, IT Solutions and Services Bibao - 94.43% ‘ICO.D; - -
Prosat Camunicacoes, Ltda. IT Solutions and Sorvices Brazil - 854.43% 100.00 - - -
%
Glabal Dorinion Bresi Participagoes, Lida,(*) Hoiding company Brazi - 94.43% 1‘33"::'/3 - - -
4
Halogica Tecnologia, S.A. IT Solutions end Services Brazil - 94.43% - 10006 5500 -
Dorninion Instalacoss & Montsgnes do Grasi Lirka, IT Solutians and Sarvices Hrazil - 84.43% - 10000%  100.00% -
Mezicana de Electronica Industrial, S.A. de C.V. [*] IT Solutions and Services Mexico - 94.43% 1031:::/3 - - -
b
Dominion T Méwco, S.A, de CV IT Solutions and Services Mexico - 94.43% - 10000 100.00% -
Dorminion Baires, S.A. IT Solutions and Services Argentina - B89.71% 95 0% - - -
Dorrinion Limitada Ltda, IT Soluticns and Services Chila - 93.49% 99.0%% - - -
Diorminion Peri Saluciones y Servicios 5.A.C. IT Salutions and Services Perii - 9A4.43% 103-':5 - - -
4
Visual Line, S.L. (1) 1T Solutizns and Services Bilbaa - 51.94% 55.00% - B55.00% -
Beroa Tharmal Energy, S.L. (3) Puortfolio cormpany Vizcaya - 21.45% 22.72% - - -
Autokomp Ingenieria, 5.A.U. Services and instailations \izcaya 100,00% - - _ _

(1 Comipanies added to the scope of consolidation in 2013.

=) The shares of CIE Automaotive Nuevos Marcados, S.L. are owned 26.896% by CIE Automotive, 5.A. and 48.04% by CIE Barriz, S.L.,
giving tha Group a total ownership interest of 75%.
3) Parent company of the Beroa Group {Note 1).

[*] Parent of all investees listed subsequently in the tahle,
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

CIE Automotive Group's business hes developed as follows during 201.3:

OL7054343

CONSOLIDATED GROUP
{Thousand euro) 2013 2012

Consolidated revenue 1,760,253 1,645,705
Adjusted consuolidated revenue [*) 1,695,971 1,562,468
Gross operating profit/(loss)]-EBITOA 240,126 224,060
MNet operating profit/floss)EBIT 150,436 141,377
Profit/(loss] before taxes cont. act. -EBT 84,089 96,762
Praofit /{ioss) for the year cont. act. 87,507 112,450
Prafit/(loss)] on discontinued operations (9,621) (36.482)
Prafit/{loss] attributable to non-controlling interests (17,761) (14,940)
Profit /{loss) attributable to parent company 60,125 61.028

(*) Pro-forma figure eliminating sales of diesel for mixture
Business performance:

O Operating mergins on similar levels, ettaining 14.2% of EBITDA end B.8% of EBIT
O Good performence by margins in all lines of business

O [ncrease in financiel expenses which partly offsets the improvement in operating income, mainty due to:
higher debt in Autometal as a result of acquisitions in 4T2012 and 4T2013; increase in financial
expenses in Brazil due to the higher differential in asset/liability remuneration and payment for
investments in reals to reduce exposure due to currency risk and so for non recurrent effacts.

O In 2013 there have been offset positive and negetive non recurrent net effects in the income
statement. two negative effects 1] impeirment of held for sale assets related to the activity of
manufecturing biofuel and 2) effect of covenants settied as consequence of the reverse merge carried
out in 2011. The positive effect-mainly corresponds to an activation of tax credits.

The financial information of the CIE Automotive Group is segmented into Automotive, Biofuels and Technological
Services and Solutions & EPCs (TSS). The development of business in each of these three activities is analysed
below.

AUTOMOTIVE:
Recovery of European business and strength of emerging economies.
AUTOMOTIVE
(Thousand euro) 2013 2012

Consolidated revenue 1,483,258 1,308,459
Gross operating profit/ (loss)}-EBITOA 223,221 206,998
% EBITOA / consolidated revenue 15,0% 15,8%
Net operating profit/(loss}HEBIT 142,026 132,087
% EBIT / consolidated turnover 9.6% 10.1%

Market evolution;

0O EBIT close to double digit at 8.6%

O Margins are maintained in Europe with improvements in management and productivity, despite
declining sales

Q Good performance of sales in Brazil and inclusion in conscolidation scope of new companies offsets the
lower volume in Europe and the effect of the Brazilian real exchange rate mentioned above

1.-
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BIOFUELS:
BIOFUELS
[Thousand euro) 2013 2012

Consolidated revenue 120,706 198,821
Adjusted consolidated revenue {*] 56,423 115,684
Gross operating profit/(loss}HEBITDA 3.743 3,981
Net operating profit /{foss} — EBIT 245 272
[*} Pro-farma figura eliminating sales of diesel for mixture

Business performance:

O Focus on recycling segment seeking efficiency and profitability through biodiesel salas, production
through recycled oils and ol collection.

O The complex regulatory situation in the industry and commercial uncertainty will result in a low profile
for business activity.

TECHNOLOGICAL SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS & EPCS [TSS):

DOMINION
(Thousand euro} 2013 2012
Consolidated revenue 156,289 138,325
Gross operating profit/{loss}-HEBITDA 13,162 13,0B1
Net operating profit/(loss}HEBIT 8,165 9,018

Business performance:

O 13% improvement in sales based mainly on growth in Latin America. Growth in Brazil and the opening
of the services market in Peru are particularly significant.

0O Latin America retains is position as the business driver, accounting for 83% of the Contribution
Margin; being company of reference in the Latin American market.

QUALITY AND ENVIRONMENT ACTIVITY IN 2013

Business model

After being if force for 11 years and being revised six times during that period, the management model is still a
cohesive force for the group and an identifying factor for its plants.

Sustainability
CiE Automative views sustainability as a key factor in its management mode.

An essential component of sustainability is transparency. In this respect, CIE Automotive has made a new effort
and in its annual CDP declaration it has been recognised as the company showing the greatest improvament,
with a rating of B5%.

Carbon Disclosure Project [(CDP) international notfor-profit organisation offering the only global system for
companies and cities to measure, publish, manage and share environmental information.
The main matters the Group reports are;

« Management

» Corporate governance

e Strategy
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e (bjectives and initiatives

»  Communication

» Risks and opportunities

e (Greenhouse gas emissions

All issues relating to climate change.
Certificates

This model is being evaluated permanently and continues to receive the highest ratings from baoth agencies and -
customers of the group.

This is summarised in the following table.

Automaotive

Certificates CIE plants Certified plants %
150 TS 16949 54 54 100
iSO 14000 54 43 a0
OHSAS 18000 54 23 43
Biofuels

Certificates CIE plants Certified plants %
IS0 9000 1 100 100
ISCC 1 100 100

Continugus improvement

Continuous improvermnent remains a key factor in CIE Automotive’s success,
It cavers all activities and each year the management plan studies and monitors its evolution.

Basic tools Ttke 5'S, daily production management or industrialisation project management remain absolutely
valid and bring to light a multitude of small improvements which contribute to the final objective.

A key factar in this improvement process is the customer's perception of CIE Automotive as a supplier, For this
reason, a new tool has been implemented which enables to monitor this perception on a global basis and orient
our actions towards its improvement.

Customer recognition
CIE Automotive has again obtained the recognition of its customers,

The following should be noted:

« Ford
We received the Q@1 award for the San Bernardo injection plant.
s+ Nexteer

For the best launch of the Opel Adam project. This case is particularly interesting since it invalved
various CIE plants and they were all excellent in the launch.

«  Magna

We were named "strategic world supplier". It should be noted that only 28 suppliers world-wide have
received this acknowledgement.

» Nissan

PEMSA Celaya recognised for fourth consecutive year as "Quality origin”, praising the excellent level of
quality and service, and the swift response to any situation.

3.
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e GM

Nominating Autometal Diadema as “Supplier of the year” in recognition of its quality, service,
technology and price.

Awarded the "Platinum Certificate of Excellence” to CIE Celaya for its excellent level of deliveries.
+ Continental

in its "North American supplier Day’ Continental acknowledged CIE Celaya for its successful
impternentation in Mexico.

*  Marut-Suzuki
Nominated Mahindra forgings for “Best quality and delivery performance”
= Automotive Axels
Nominated our Mahindra Hinoday plant as “Best supplier”
+ Denso
Nominated our Mahindra Hinoday plant as “Best dslivery performance supplier”

Recycling of raw materials

The use of recycled matarials as raw materials for production processes remains key, particularly in aluminium
and biofuals divisions.

e The aluminium division has recycied 32,186 tonnes

« The biofuels division has reprocessed 31,000 tonnes of vegetable o, oleints and fatby acids

R&D ACTIVITIES

2012 was a transitional stage for CIE Automotive in the European R&D strategy since the change took place
from the VIl Framework Programme FP7 to Horizon 2020 (H2020), while 2013 has been characterised by
clear commitment with the European as the priority area in which to share and develop ideas in the field of
innovation,

The priority R&D market for CIE Automoctive are reflected in the European programmes:

- Mobility for Growth (MfG)

- Green VYehiclas (GV]

- Factorias of the Future [FoF)

- Sustainable Process industry [SPIRE]

In each of these European research areas, CIE Automotive is focusing its efforts on the creation and
development of international collaboration consortia, In these consortia, in which CIE Automotive may
participate both as a laader and as a member responsible for a specific development area, projects are
included that address topics related to the products and processes defined as priorities in our strategic pfan
for the coming years, including:

- Supercharger

- New concepts for heat exchangers

- New energy storage systems

- New fuel management systems in dualfual engines

- Hybrid systems

- Monitoring, management and reuse of different energy sources
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And which are mainly focused on:

- Weight reduction

- Consumption and emission reduction
- increase in active and passive safety
- Increase in user comfort

The activities in the A&D area were not only focused on developing ideas in the European environment of FP VI
and now H2020, but many of the projects have been developed both on a regional level, mainly in Galicia and
the Basque Country, and on a national and international leve! involving Latin America, Canada, China and !ndia.

Despite this diversification in the approach to R&D projects around the world, its important to highlight as an
example one of the European projects that have been developing during 2013, namely the ODIN project in FP
Vil

e “,-w"»'f?mm%

WW%W
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Optimized alectric Delvatrain by integration

These companies are involved:
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TECHNOLOGY

And results from the continuous demand in the automotive market for electric car driving systems which are
functionally maore efficient and have better cost levels. These requirements open up a path for research in the
development of highly integrated driving systems using high-speed electrical motors. The main objective of the
project is to combine a new generation gearbox, high-speed electric motor and electronics with embedded
capacity in a single block common to all Gomponents.

CIE Automotive continues increasing its presence in regional, national and international R&D events. On a
Spanish level, CIE Automative is an active participant in the SPRI and CDTI forums and on a European scale it
participates actively in various technological platforms such as ERTRAC, as active member of CLEPA and its
R&D forum, and recently as part of EGVIA.

Participation in international consortia involving different OEMs, Centres and Universities with the common goal
or developing research projects such as the one described above enables to broaden areas of knowledge and
helps to situate CIE Automative on the top technological rank in relation to products and strategic processes.

In 2012 part of new projects have been channelled towards:
- ECODESIGN

- ENERGY EFFICIENCY

- THE SMART FACTORY

in 2013 a product/process strategy has been developed aimed at managing risks and opportunities refated to
climate change.
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This strategy has been managed through the reduction of emissions on the leve! of production facilities and
that of third parties on a corperate scale, This work is reflected in the Carbon Reporting CDP Climate Change.

To be able to perform this work, CIE Automotive allocates 2.2% of sales revenue to research and development
projects.

TRADING IN TREASURY SHARES

During the year and up to 4 October 2013, the Company has acquired a total of 1,058,043 shares {0.926% of total
voting rights existing prior to the capital increase carried out with effect from 4 October 2013) and has sold all the
11,220,660 shares (9.843% of said total voting rights] which it owned at that date to the Mahindra Group. As a
result, at 4 October 2013 CEE Automotive, S.A. holds no treesury sheres.

At 31 December 2013 the Compeny did not hold any treesury shares.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Note 3 to the accompanying annual accounts contains a deteiled description of all areas of risk management
carried out by the Group's management. There have been no chenges in risk management policy at the date of
preparation of the annual accounts.
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ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT OF LISTED COMPANIES

CLOSING DATE PERIOD OF REFERENCE: 12/31/2013
C.ikF. A-20014452
BUSINESS NAME

CIE AUTOMOTIVE, S.A.

REGISTERED OFFICE

CL Alameda Mazaredo N° 69, 8° Piso BILBAO (BIZKAIA)
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ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR LISTED COMPANIES

- STRUCTURE OF OWNERSHIP

A1 Complets the following table on the company's capital:

Date of fatest modification

Share capital (€)

Number of shares

Numbear of voting rights

10/04/2013

29,705,011,50

118,820,046

118,820,

046

Siate whether there are different classes of shares with different associated rights:

ves [ wo

A2 Give defails on the direct and indirect holders of significant interest in your company at the year-end,

excluding Directars:
Number of
Number of divect % total
Name of shareholder voting rights ]"m':i;;_:““g votiag rights
MR. JOSE {GNACIO COMENGE SANCHEZ-REAL g 5,850,000 5.01%
QMG I IBERIAN CAPITAL FUND, FIL 4,518,669 0 3.80%
MAHINDRA MAMINDRA 13 18,040,708 13.50%
INVERSIONES, ESTRATEGIA Y CONOCHMENTO GLOBAL CYP, S.L. 8,734,850 [i] 8.18%
NMAS1T ASSET MANAGEMENT, SGHC, S.A, o 8,339,708 7.02%
RISTEEL CORPORATION, B.V. 16,900,002 [}) 14.22%
Through: Nama of the direct holder | Number of direct voting
Name of the indlrect holder of the Interest of the interast rights
MR, JOSE IGNACIO COMENGE SANCHEZ-REAL LA FUENTE SALADA, S.L. 5,850,000
MAHINDRA MAHINDRA MAHINDRA OVERSEAS INVESTMENT 16,040,706
COMPANY (MAURITIUS) LTD.
NMAS1 ASSET MANAGEMENT, SGIIC, 5.A, OTHER SHAREHOLDERS 8,339,208

List the most significant changes in the sharsholder struchure during the yvear:

Date of the o
Name of shareholder \ransaction Description of the ransaction
MAHINDRA MAHINDRA 10104/2013Exceed 10%: of share capilal

MR. JOSE IGNACIO GOMENGE SANCHEZ-REAL

10118/2013{Excend 5% of share capital

AUSTRAL, B.V. -

08/62/2013]| Decreasea a 5% of share capital

NMAS1 ASSET MANAGEMENT, SGIIC, S5.A.

08/02/2013 | Excaed 5% of share capltat
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A3 Complete the following tables on members of the Boand Directors” voting rights at the company;

Ad

A5

A6

AT

Number of direct |Number of Indirect] % total voting
Name of the Director voting rights voting rights rights
MR. FERMIN DEL RIC SANZ DE ACERO 25 000 0 0.02%
MR, ANTONIO MARIA PRADERA JAUREGL - 5,700,000 9,734,650 12.08%
MR. HEMANT EUTHRA 5 0 0.00%
ADDVALIA CARITAL, 5.A, 5,942,009 0 5.00% |
CORPORACION GESTAMP, 5.1, 12852 182 16,900,021 24.87%
ELIDOZA PROMOCION DE EMPRESAS, S.L. 12,306,138 1] 10.42%
AUSTRAL, B.V. 5,851,063 0 5.00%
MR, VANKIPURAM PARTHASARATHY & 1] 0.00%
MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN 450,000 1] 0.37%
HName of the indirect holder of the imeorest Through: Name of the direct holder of] NMumberof woting
the § rights .
MR ANTONIO MARIA PRADERA JAUREGUI INVERSIONES, ESTRATEGIA Y 9,734,650
CONCCIMIENTO GLOBAL CYP, S.L.
CORPORACION GESTAMP, S.L. RISTEEL CORPQRATION, B.v, 16,800,021
% tatat of voting rights held by the Board of Directors 58.66 %

Complete the following tablas an members of the Board of Directors who hold rights about shares in the
Company.

Indicate famity, commerctal, contractual or corporate relationships among significant sharehoiders known

lo the company, if any, excepl any that are insignificant and those deriving from ordinary commercial
business: .

indicate commercial, contractual or corporate relationships between significant sharehotders and the

company andfor its group, i any, except any that are insignificant and those deriving from ordinary
commercial business:

indicale any shareholders' agreemsnts of which the Company has been nolified in pursuance of

Articles 530 and 531 of the Spanish Companies Law. Describe briefly, if any, indicating the shareholders
bound by the agreement:

vws [ 1 wo [x]

Indicate any concerted actions among Company shareholders of which the Company is aware. Describe
briefly, if any:

vs ] w [}

Expressly indicate any change or break-up of those agreements or concerted actions, if any, that have
taken place during the vear:

Indicate any individuals or entifies that exercise or may exercise control over the Company in pursuance
of Article 4 of the Stock Market Act. Identify any that exist:

e ] owe [x]
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AB

Complete the foliowing tables on the Company's treasury stock:

At the close of the financial year:

Number of direct shares Number of indirect shares {%) % total of share capital

AD

A0

A

A2

0 0 0.00%
(*) Through:

Give details on any significant varietions during the year, according to the established in Royal Decree
1362/2007:

Indicata the terms and conditions of the authorization grantad by the General Mesting to the Board of
Direclors 1o issue, repurchase or seft treasury shares.

ftis valld unl] Aprit 30, 2018, inclusive, the mandate given by the General Mesting of Sharehaiders held on April 30, 2013, whereby
the Beard of Dirsctors of the Company is authorlzed to acquire, at any Ume and as often as deemed H1, shares of CIE Automolive,
SA, by any lawlul means, Including from benefits of exergisa and / of unrestricted raserves, as weall ag that they can subzequently
sefl or nedeem therecf, all in accordance with Anticle 146 and related provisiana of the Spanish Gompanies Law.

indicate whether there ara any restrictions on the fransfer of securitles and / or any restrictions on voling
rights. In particutar, the existence of any restrictions that may impede the acquisiion of cantol of the
company through the purchasa of shares in the market wili be communicated.,

v [ ] s [x]

indicate whether the General Shareholders’ Meeting has resulted in measures to heutralize a takeover
bid under Law 6/2007,
vee [x] w []

i so, explain the measures approved and the terms under which the restictions would become
ineffective.

At the General Shareholders' Mesting of CIE Automolive, S.A held on 23 April 2008, the following arrangement was edopled as a
reault of point thres of the aganda:

SIX- Appraval of tha exclusion of limilations on the aclion to be laken by the Company’s goveming and management bodles, and

those within ils group, in Ihs ferms establishad by Article 60.bls.2 of Law 2471 988, of 28 July, on the Stock Markel and Article 28.5
of Royat Dacree 1066/2007, of 27 July.

In accordance with the provisions of Aricle 80.bis2 of Law 241 988, of 28 July, on the Stotk Merket and Article 28,5 of Royal
Decree 1066/2007, of 27 Jduly, on the public bidding system o aoquire shares, sipulale that the limiations referrad to by Anicls
60.648.2 and Article 28.5 of Royal Decrea 106612007, of 27 July, will net he appficable to the goveming bodies =1 the Company and
the Group In the event that the Company is the darget of e public share coffering presented by 2 Company that is not domiced in
Spaln and is not subject to these regulations or thelr equivalen, Incuding those referring to the rulss necassary for (he General
Meeting to adopt resolullons or, by an enlity directly or indirectly controlied by such e company, in accordance with the provisions of
Articla 4 of Law 24/1988, of 28 July, on the Stock Mariat,

Indicate whether the company has issued securities that are not traded on an EU regulated market.

vee [ w [X]

if so, indicate the different alasses of shares and, for each one, the rights and cbllgations conferred.
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« SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

81

B.2 Indicate and explain, if appropriate, if there are any differences between the system used for adopting

B3

B.4

Indicate whether there are any differences between the guorums for General Meetings and the
minimums stipulated in the Spanish Companies Law and, if appropriate, explain.
ves [x] w []
N % quorum different than that
% quarum different than that
established under Articis 193 Sci |#5teblished undey A’:""n::‘ SeL
for generat cases for special cases defined by
g Article 194 SCL
Quorum required for 18t cali 50.00% 0.00%
Quorum required for 2nd call 000% 0.00%

Description of the differeaces

Artice 13 of the Artictes of Assoclation establishes that an ordinary or extracrdinary General Meeting wiil be validly called to
order on first call when lhe sharehpiders p ¢ or rep d-own &t least 50% of voling share capilal, At second cali the
Meeting shall be validly convened regardiess of the percentage of capiial In attendance. However, when an ordinary of
extragrdinary Genesal Meeting is to adopt any of the pesahulions refarred to by Ariicle 194 of the Spanish Companies Law, at
least 26% of vating share caplal must be presant or represented on second cal.

As a resull, a reinforced quorum js established with respect to Article 183 of the Spanish Companies Law to hold a meeting on

first call (nat the case with Article 194 of the Sparish Companies Law).

corporate resolutions In the system stipulated in the Spanish Companies Law {SCL):

ves [ ] wo [x}

Describe how it differs from the system contemplated in the Spanish Companies Law.

State the rules applicable to the amendment of the Articles of Asseciation. In particular, the majorities
provided for amending the Arlicles to will be communicated and, where appropriete, the rules faid down

for the protaction of the rights of the partners in the amendment of the Articles.

Regulations applicable 1o the amendment of the articles of sssoclation is capiured by the Spanish Compantas Law not exisiing In
tha Articles of Association different majorities of appiicable 1aw o¢ nyles lakd down for the protection of members ofhers than thase

set outin the rules of general netura.

Detall the figures of attendance at the Sharehoiders Meetings held during the reporting year and the

previous year:

Attendance figures

Date of the % physically | % represented % distance voters Total
Gengral Meetin, presant by proxy

Electronic Other
voting

0413072013 75.38% 2483% 0.00% 0.00% 77.81%
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2

State whether any restrictions are established in the Articles of Associalion requiring 2 minimum number

of shares to attend Ganeral Meatings:
[

Indicate if it Is agreed that certain decislons involving 2 structural change In the company {“affiliation”,
sale of key operating assets, equivalent operations to the liquidation of the company ) must be
submifted to the approval of the General Sharsholder's Meeting, although not expressly required under

company law.
vo ]

indicate the address and means of access to the company website to information on carporate
govermance and other information on General Meetings to be made avaiable to shareholders via the
wabsite of the Company,

YES

YES

The Hems that must be published In secordance with Law 26/2003, of 17 July, on the transparency of listed public imisd labifity
companies, enahiing Order ECO/3722/2003, of 26 Dacember, and these raquired by CNMV Circular 12004, of 17 March, on the
Annual Corporate Govemance Reports for listed public companias ars directly accassibte at

www, cleaUtomative.comiimvarsorea/index, phpTeng=_osp.

[[C.] - STRUCTURE OF GOVERNANCE AT THE COMPANY

Maximurh number of Directors 1%
Minimwmn number of Directors [
C.1.2. Complete the following table with the hames of the Board members:
Position on the Date of first | Date of last Electlon
Name of the Director Represeniative Board appointment | appointment|  procudure

MR. ANTONIC MARIA CHAIRMAN 06/2412G62  {1027/12010  [GENERAL

FPRADERAJAUREGU| SHAREHOLDERS'
MEETING
AGREEMENT

ELIDOZA PROMOGION 1st VICE CHAIR 0512412602 1042772010 |GEMERAL

DE EMPRESAS, 8.1 SHAREHOLDERS
MEETING
AGREEMENT

AUSTRAL, B.V. BOARD MEMBER 002702010 (1042712010  |GENERAL
SHAREHOLDERS
MEETING
AGREEMENT

MR JUAN MARIA BOARD MEMBER 101272010 [10/27/2010 |GENERAL

RIBERAS MERA, SHAREHOLDERS'
MEETING
AGREEMENT

MR, FERMIN DEL RIO BOARD MEMBER 12/21/2005 | 102712010 |GENERAL

SANZ DE ACEDO SHAREHOLDERS'
MEETING
AGREEMENT

MR. CARLOS SOLCHAGA BOARD MEMBER  [0/27/2040 | 10/27/2040 |GENERAL

CATALAN SHAREHOL DERS'
MEETING
AGREEMENT

Board of Directors

C.1.1 State the maximum and minimum number of Directors stipulated in the Articles of Association:
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Name of the Director | Representatve | POSfiononthe E&“P’ first '32'”.";“":’,; ;::m
MR ANGEL MAMUEL BOARD MEMBER  {10/27/2010 |10/27/201C  |GENERAL
OCHOA CRESPO SHAREHOLDERS'

MEETING
AGREEMENT
MR. FRANCISCO JOSE BOARD MEMBER 102712040 {10/27/2010  |GENERAL
RIBERAS MERA SHAREHDLDERS'
MEETING .
AGREEMENT
ADDVALIA CAPITAL, 5.A. |[MRS. MARIA BOARD MEMBER 0472612007 {10/27/2010  |GENERAL
©  |TERESA $aLEGUS SHAREHOLDERS’
ARBIZL MEETING
AGREEMENT
CORPORACION MR. FRANCISCO  [BOARD MEMBER 1GFAT20610 | {0427/20t0 |GEMNERAL
GESTAMP, S.L. LOPEZ PENA SHAREHOLDERS!
MEETING
AGREEMENT
GMC DIRECTORSHIPS, BDARD MEMBER, OBF22005  |30/27R01¢  |GENERAL
Sl SHAREHOLDERS'
MEETING
, AGREEMENT
MR JESUS MARIA CHIEF EXECUTIVE  |01/21/2013  |04/30/2013 | GENERAL
HERRERA DEFICER SHAREHDLDERS'
BARANDIARAN MEETING
AGREEMENT
MR, HEMANT LUTHRA BOARD MEMBER 10/04/2013  |10/04/2013 |CO-OPTATION
MR. VANKIPURAM BDARD MEMBER 10/04/2013  110/04/2013 |CO.OPTATION
PARTHASARATHY
{Totnl numbar of Directors. i 14
Indicate the ceases that have occurrad in the Board of Directors during the year;
Status of the Director at the
Namae of the Director
am @ Director fime of exit Exit date
COMPARIIA ANDALUZA DE RENTAS E INVERSIONES, S.A. Institullonal Ouiside Director 0712272013
MS. SUSANA MOLINUEVO APELLANIZ Executive Director 10/04/2013
C.1.3. Complete the following tabfes about Board members and thelr classification:
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
L]
Name of the Director Nominating Committee Position in Gompany's
organization
MR. ANTONIO MARIA PRADERA JAUREGUI NOMINATIONS AND CHAIR
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANIIARAN NOMINATIONS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
COMPENSATION COMMITYEE OFFICER
Total number of executive Directors 2
Total porcent of the Board 14.29%
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INSTITUTIONAL OUTSIDE DIRECTORS

Mame of the significant
Hame of the Director Nominating Committee sharehotder represented or that
proposed the appointment
ELIDOZA PROMOCION DE EMPRESAS, S.L. [NOMINATIONS AND ELIDDZA PROMOCION DE
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE _ |[EMPRESAS, S.t.
MR. JUAN MARIA RIBERAS MERA NOMINATIONS AND CORFPORACION GESTAMP, 5.L.
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
MR. FERMIN DEL RIO SANZ DE AGEDO NOMINATIONS AND INVERSIONES, ESTRATEGIA Y
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE  CONOCIMIENTO GLOBAL CYP, $.L.
MR. FRANCISCO JOSE RIBERAS MERA NOMINATIONS AND CORPORACION GESTAMP, S.L.
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
ADDVALIA CAFITAL, S.A. NOMINATIONS AND ADDVALIA CAPITAL, S.A.
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
GORPORACION GESTAMP, S1. NOMINATIONS AND CORPORACION GESTAMP, S.L.
GOMPENSATION COMMITTEE
QMC DIRECTORSHIPS, $.L., NOMINATIONS AND NMAS1 ASSET MANAGEMENT,
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE  {3GHC, S.A.
AUSTRAL, B.V. NOMINATIONS AND AUSTRAL, B.V.
COUMPENSATION COMMITTEE
MR, HEMANT LUTHRA NOMINATIONS AND MAHINDRA MAKHINDRA,
L COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
Eﬁ. VANKIPURAM PARTHASARATHY NOMINATIONS AND MAHINDRA MAHINDRA
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Total number of Insfitutional Directors

30

Total percent of the Board

71.43%

INDEPENDENT QUTSIDE DIRECTYTORS

Name of the Director

MR. CARLOS SCLCHAGA CATALAN

Profile

Degres in Economics and Business from Universidad Complutense de Madsk. Post-graduate studies at Alired P. Sloan
Schoal at the Massachusaits Instilute of Technolegy (M.I.T.). In 1980 he was eleclad Member of Parlament as &
repragentativa of the PSOE and sucsessively re-electad in 1882, 1888, 1985 and 1993 and was the Ghalr of the Sociaiist

Group in 1993-1904. Member of the Basque Government prior lo the approval of the Euskadi Autgnomy Stalule

{1978-80), Chair of the Interm Commitlee at the Internstenal Monetary Fund (1961-1993) and Minister of industry and

Enerpy in Spain (1882-85) and Minister of Finance {1865-1803). He is currently an Intetnationat Gonsultant and

Pariner-Direcior of Svichaga Recio Asociados (Consultancy), Chair of Fundacion Evrpamerica, Vice-Chalr of Real
Paltorato def Museo Nacienal Centro de Arte Reina Soffa, Chalr of Fundacion Arquitectura ¥ Seocledad, Chair of the
Advisoty Councll of the Law Firm Roca Junyent, Member of the Sclentifc Coundil of Real tnsthuto Eicano and Member of

other Advisory Boards and Boards of Directors,
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Name of the Director

MR ANGEL MANUEL OCHOA CRESPO

Profile

Depree in Ec ics and Busi fram Unfversidad del Pais Vasca and Master of intemetional Business
Administration (M.L.B_A.) from United Staies international University {L1.5.).\4,) San Diego, Ga. USA, currantly EAF)
(Emp da A Wenta FH lara) and a Direstor of Istopan, 5.A.. With more then 16 years* experience in tha

financial field, ha has hetd, among olhers, the post of Directar for the: Basque Country and Canlabda at Baneo Sabadel!
Atiantico; Senfor Vice-Presidant of Benque Privea Edmond de Rothschild Europe, Sucursal sn Espana, and parficipated
In the implementation and development of the bank siné it cpened In Spaln and f d part of ta M.

Committea; Account Manager and Depuly Directar of Carporate Banking af Lioyds Bank; and an Account Executive and
Manager in the Mulinationat Depertment at Barclays Bank. Ho has also baen a member of the Board of Direclots of

several SICAV funds.
Total number of independent Directors 2
Tota! percent of the Board 14.29%

Indicate whether any Board member qualified as an Independent perceives from the company or its
group, any amouint or benefit for a cancept other than of remuneration, or maintains or has maintained :
during the last year, a business relationship with the soclety or any group company, ejther on their own :

behalf or as a significant shareholder, director or senior manager of a compeny that has or had such &
rejationship.

Not applicable

If a0, a reasoned statement of the board on the reasons why it considers that the Director ¢an perform its
functions as an independent Director should be included.

a1 (o] DE DIRECTORS

State the reasons why they cannot be considered institutional or independent directors and their
assoclation with either the Company, executives or shareholdars.

Indicate any variations during tha year in the type of each Director:

C.1.4 Complete the following table with information an the number of female Directors for the past 4 years, and
the naturs of such female Diractors:

Number of fomate dicectors % over pach Xind of directors

Year ended | Year ended | Year ended | Yoar ended | Year endad | Year ended | Year ended | Year ended

2013 202 2011 2010 2013 2012 2011 2010
Executive 0 a 4] o 0.00% 6.00% 0.0076 0.00%
Fnastitutional 2 2 2 2 20.00% 22.22% 22.22% 22.22%
Independent ¢ Q 0 0 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Other Ouisiders 0 1] 0 1] 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.0a%
Total: 2 2 2 2 14.20% 15.86% 156.38% 15.38%
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C.1.5 Explain the measures, if any, have been taken to seek to include in the board a number of women that
would achieve a balanced representation of women and men;

t Explanation of the maasures |

In the ex¢rcise of its functions, the Neminaticns and Compensation Commitlee must submit their proposals ta ensure thal is laken
inta consideration peapla wha possess the quallfications and skills required for the positlon, and thal the process of salection of
candidates does not suffer from implicit biases that hinder the sefection of persons of either sax.

C-1.6 Expiain the measures, if any, had agraed the Nominalions Committee for that selaction procedures do
not suffer from impliclt biases that hinder the selection of female directors and the company deliberately
search and inciude among the potential candidates, women who meet the professional profile searched
for:

l Explanation of the measures I

ns and Comp tion Commities must ensure that peopie of bath sexes who possess the qualifications and abliity
requirgd for the position are taken into consideration.

When, despite the measures, if any, have been taken, the number of femals directors are few or no,
explain the reasons justifying:

| Explanation of the messutes ]

The nomination of new directors depends in large measure on the appearance of vacancies within the Board, which does nat
heppen often. At this iime the people who are part of the Board meet e required conditions, ensuring 5o that in future
appointments, there are no bias whatsoever in the selecton of directons,

C.1.7 Explain how is the representation on the board of the controlling sharehalders:

Controlling sharehoiders {sea heading A.2 of this Report) have appointed institullonal oulside directurs on the Boatd of Direclors.
Detail of Institutional outside diractors is provided fn the praceding heading C.1.3.

C.1.8 Explain why insfitutional directors have been appointed at the instance of shareholders with less than 5%
interest in the Company, if appropriate:

Indicate whether any formal requests for a presence on the Board have not been met from shareholders

with an interest equal to or greater than that of others at whose request institutional directors have been
appointed. If appropriate, explain why such requests were denied.

veo [ ] w [X]

C.1.9 Stale whether or not any Director has left the position befare the end of the term, if the Director provided
an explanation, and how, to the Board and, in the event this was done in writing to the entire Board,
explained at teasl the reasons provided:

Name of the Director
MS. SUSANA MOLINUEVO APELLANIZ
Reason for exht

The outgoing Director has assumed olhar executiva duties In the Company.

10

OL 7054958




GLA
G

SE 5

e

Name of the Director

COMPARIA ANDALUZA DE RENTAS E INVERSIONES, S A.

Reason for exit

The Directer has disposed its share,

Name of the Director

C.1.10 State lhe powers, if any, delegated to the managing director(s):

MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN

Brisf description

The Chilef Executive Qfficer has afl tha funclions of the Board except those that cannot be delegated.

group as the listed company:

C.1.11 Name the Board members, I any, who are alse directors or executives of other companties in the same

Name of the Director Name of the Group pany Position
MR, ANTONIO MARIA PRADERA JAUREGUI GLOBAL DOMINIOM AGCESS, S.A. CHAIR
MR, ANTONIO MARIA PRADERA JAUREGUI AUTOMETAL, 5.A, BOARD
MEMBER
MR. ANTONIO MARIA FRADERA JAUREGUI CIEBERRIZ, 5.0. CHAIR
MR, ANTONIQ MARIA PRADERA JAUREGUI GIE AUTOMETAL, S.A BOARD
MEMBER
MR, ANTONIOQ MARIA PRADERA JAUREGUI CIE AVTOCOM, LLC BOARD
MEMBER
MR. ANTONIO MARIA FRADERA JAUREGU| CIE AVTOGOM KALUGA, LLC B0OARD
MEMBER
MR, ANTONIQ MARIA PRADERA JAUREGLI MAHINDRA CIE AUTOMOTIVE, LTD BOARI:)R
MEMBE]
MR. ANTONIO MARIA PRADERA JAUREGU MAHINDRA COMPOSITES, LTD g!OARD
EMBER
MR, ANTONIC MARIA PRADERA JALIREGLI MAHINDRA FORGINGS EUROPE, AG BOARD
MEMBER
MR, ANTONIO MARIA PRADERA JAUREGUI MAHINDRA HINODAY INDUSTRIES, LTD BOARD
MEMBER
MR. HEMANT LUTHRA MAHINDRA CIE AUTOMOTIVE, LTD CHAIR
MR. HEMANT LUTHRA MAHINDRA COMPOSITES, LTD CHAIR
MR. HEMANT LUTHRA MAHINDRA HINODAY INDUSTRIES, LTD CHAIR
MR. HEMANT LUTHRA MAHINDRA, FORGINGS FUROPE, AG BOARD
MEMBER
MR, JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  [AUTOMETAL, S.A, 80ARD
MEMBER
MR, JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  [MAHINDRA CIE AUTOMOTIVE, LTD BOARD
MEMBER
MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  [MAHINDRA COMPOSITES, LTD BDARD
MEMBER
MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  [MAHINDRA FORGINGS EURDPE, AG CHAIR
MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  [MAHINDRA HINODAY INDUSTRIES, LTD BOARD
MEMBER
MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN | CIE AUTOMOTIVE NUEVOS MERCADOS, S.1. BOARD
MEMBER
MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  [ALCASTING LEGUTIAND, S.1.U. BOARD
MEMBER
MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  [ALFA DECO, S.AU. BOARD
MEMBER
MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  JALURECY, SA.U, BQARD
MEMBER
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MName of the Director Name of the Group company Position
MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  {BIODIESEL MEDITERRANED, S.L.U. E‘I%?A%%R
MR, JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  [BIONOR BERANTEVILLA, S.L1U. E‘gt:é?m
MR, JESUIS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  [BIOSUR TRANSFORMACION, S.LU. E‘Cé.:ulggn
WR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  [RECICLADO DE RESIDUOS GRASOS, S1.U. Bg.:‘l;%R
M
MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  JRECICLADOS ECOYLOGICOS DE RESIDUOS, S.L.U. B{éAM!;I'éR
M
MR, JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  IViA DPERADOR PETROLIFERD, S.LU I\Eﬁ%?ﬂl;?zR
MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  {CIE MECAUTD, S.ALL Eﬁ(é:g)
ER
MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  [GAMEKO FABRICACION DE COMPOMENTES, S.A4. agﬁi;% R
MR. JEGUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  [GRUPO COMPONENTES VILANOVA, S.L. E‘Oﬂ'\;g
E R
{MR. JESUS MARTA HERRERA BARANDIARAN INVECTAMETAL, 8.A. BOARD
MEMBER
MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  [LEAZ VALORIZACION, S.L.U. !ao..:d!;lé
ME| R
MR, JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  [CIE UDALBIDE, S.A L. BOARD
MEMBER
MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  [COMPONENTES DE AUTOMOGION RECYTEG, S.L.U. |BEOARD
MEMBER
MR, JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  |COMPONENTES DE DIRECCION REGYLAN, S.L.U. BOARD
MEMBER
MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN [EGARA 2 S1. BOARD
. |MEMBER
MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  [MECANIZACIGNES DEL SUR, MECASUR, S.A BOARE
MEMBER
MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  |NOVA RECYD, S.A.U. BOARD
MEMBER
MR. JESUS MARIA MERRERA BARANDIARAN | ORBELAN PLASTICOS, S.A. BOARD
MEMBER
MR, JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  |PLASFIL PLASTICOS DA FIGUEIRA, S.A. BOARD
MEMBER
MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN |RECYDE, S.A4J, BOARD
MEMBER
MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  |[TRANSFORMACIONES METALURGIGAS NORMA, S.A. |[BOARD
MEMBER
MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  [CIE AUTOMETAL DE MEXICO, SAFJ, DEG.V. CHAIR

MR, JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN

CIE BERRIZ MEXICO SERVICIOS AOMINISTRATIVOS  [CHAIR
S.A.DECV.

[mR. JESUS MARIAHERRERA BARANDIARAN  |CIE CELAYAS.AP.L DECV. CHAIR

|Mi. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN INMOBILIARIA EL PUENTE S.A. DE C.Y. CHAIR

MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  {FORJAS DE CELAYA SA. DE .V, CHAIR

MR, JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  |MAQUINADOS AUTOMOTRICES Y TALLERES CHAIR
INDUSTRIALES CELAYAS.A.DECV.

MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  [PERCASER DE MEXKCO SA, DE C.V. CHAIR

MR, JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN

PINTURA ESTAMPADO Y MONTAJE SAPLDECY. |CHAIR

MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN

PINTURA ¥ ENSAMBLES DE MEXICO, S.A. DEC.V. CHAIR

MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN  [SERVICAT SERVICIOS CONTABLES CHAIR
ADMINISTRATIVOS Y TECNICDS S.A DECV,
MR. FERMIN DEL RiO SANZ DE ACEDOD GESCRAP AUTOMETAL MEXICO, SA . DECV. BOARD
MEMBER
MR. FERMIN DEL RiO SANZ DE ACEDD GESCRAP AUTOMETAL MEXICO SERVICIOS, S.A.OF |BOARD
C.V, MEMBER
MR. FERMIN DEL RO SANZ DE ACEDD GESCRAP-AUTOMETAL COMERCIO DE SUCATAS, 5.4, BDARD
MEMBER
MR. FERMIN PEL RIO SANZ DE ACEDD AUTOMETAL, 5.A. CHAIR
MR, FERMIN DEL RID SANZ DE ACEDO CIE AUTOMETAL, S.A. BOARD
MEMBER
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SR

C.1.12 Name company directors, if any, on the Boards of non-group compsenies listed an sfock exchanges,

insofar as the company has been notified:

Name of the Diractor Name of the listed company Position
MR, CARLOS SOLCHAGA CATALAN  |DURO FELGUERA. S.A, BOARD MEMBER
MR. CARLOS SOECHAGA CATALAN  |ZELTIA, SA. BOARD MEMBER.
ADDVALIA CAPITAL, S.A. VIDRALA, S.A. BOARD MEMBER
OMC DIRECTORSHIPS, S.L, UNIPAPEL, S.A. BOARD MEMBER
QMG DIRECTORSHIPS, S.L. AZKOYEN, S5.A. BODARD MEMBER
QMC DIRECTORSHIPS, S.L. ADVED GROUP INTERNATIONAL, $.A. BOARD MEMBER
AUSTRAL BV, COMPARIA VINIGOLA DEL NORTE DE ESPARA, 5.4.]BOARD MEMBER

C€.1.13 Indicate and, If appropriate, explain whether the company has established rules on the number of

boards on which Its Directors may sit:

vws 1 w [x]

C.1.14 Indicate the general policies and strategies at the Company which must be approved by the full Board:

b

NOT

invesiment and financing poticy

Definiiion of the structure of the group of companies

Corporate govermance policy

Comporate social respansibility policy

The strateghc or business plan, management Largets and annual budgets

Compensalion and evaluation of senior management

{Risk confrol and management, and perlodic monitoring of intemal information end control systems

The policy for dividends, as weli as tressury stock and, in particular, their limits,

b A S S B S - O 4

C.1.15 indicats the totai remuneration of ithe Board of Directors:

Remuneration of the Board of Directors (thousand GHros)

1,094

\pensions (thousand euros)

Amount of the global ramuneration corresponding 1o the benefiis accrued by the directors on 4]

Global remuneration of the Baard of Diractors {thousand auros)

1,094

C.1.18 List the members of senior management who are not executive directors and show the total

compensation eamed by them during the year:

Name

Position

MR. MIKEL FELDX BARANDIARAN LANDIN GENERAL DIRECTOR OF TEGHNOLOGICAL
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS & EPCs

!Tofal senior management compensation (thousand suros)

I 298]
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C.1.17 Name any Board Members who are also directors of companies holding significant interest in the

company and/or companies pertaining to its Group;

Namie of the Director Name of the significant aharehoider Position
MR. ANTONIO MARIA PRADERA JAUREGUI  |INVERSIONES, ESTRATEGIA Y CHAIR
CONOCIMIENTO GLOBAL, CYP, 5.1,
MR, FRANCISCO JOSE RIBERAS MERA INVERSIONES, ESTRATEGIA Y BOARD MEMBER
CONOGIMIENTO GLOBAL CYP, 5.1

Dascribe any significant refationships other than these contempiated in the previous section_ betwean
Board of Directors” Members and significant shareholders andfor companies pertaining to their Group:

C.1.18 Indicate whether any modifications have been made during the year to the Board of Direclors’

Ragulations:

vws || wo m

C.1.19 Indicate the procedures for selecting, appeinting, re-electing, evaluating and ramoving Directors.

Describe the competent bodies, procedures to be followed and the criteria applied in each of the
procedures,

The appointment of the members of the Boand of Directors is the responsibility of the General Shareholders’ Meeting, without
prajudioa fo the power of the Board to designets members by co-optation n the event of vacancles.

Tothis effect, Arllcie 23 of the Arlicles of Assoclalion lays down that;
"2, In order to be appained a member of the adiministrative bady, Kt s not taquired Lo be a shareholder,

3. The members of the administrative body shafl hold office for five years and may ba re-alacled ence oF more times for
equivalent periods.

4. The members of the administrative body daslgnated by co-optation shall hold el posfilon untit the first General Sharehalders'
Meaeting,

5. The members of the atdministrative body shall cesse (o hold offics when so decided by the General Sharehalders’ Meeiing,
when they report theis resignation to the Company and when the perlod of their appainiment alapses. I this katter case, their
resignefion shall be take effect on the day on which the following General Shareholders’ Meeling is held or once the legal term for
heiding the Meeting to approve the previous year's annuef accounts elapses.”

Similarty, Arlicie 18 of the regulations of the Board of Diractors lays down the following:
Article 48, Appalntment of Directors.

1.~ The Direclors shall be designated by the Ganerel Shareholders' Meeting or by the Board of Directors in accordance with the
Spanich Companles Law,

2.- The propagal for the appointment of Dirgctors submitted by the Board of Direclors to the General Sharehalders” Meeting for
corwlderation and the résolutions concefning appoiniments adopted by thet body by virtue of lhe powers of co-optaBion legally
attribiriad to it shall be preceded by the relevant raport from the Nominations ang Compensation Cemmitive. When the Board
dlsagrees with sald repart, it shall set oul the reasans for s declsion and placa them on record.

G.1.20 Indicate whether the Board of Directors has proceeded during the year ta make an assessment of thefr

activities.

ves [x] wo []

if o, explain to what extent the self assessment has led to major ghanges in its internal organization
and the procedures applicable to its aclivities

|_ Description of modHications _i

Not applicable
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C.1.21 Indicate cases in which Directors are obliged to resign.

Articla 22 of the Regulations. of the Beard of Direetors CIE AUTOMOTIVE, 5A indicates thet
Article 22. Removal of Direciors
1.- The resignatfon of one of moie of e Directars shali take place in the tamns of applicabiz legistation,

2. Diractors hotd their posilons at the pleesure of the Board of Dirastars and, If deemed appropriate, must present their
rasignatians in the following cases:

a} in the case of Inttitutional Dulside Directors, when he or the shareholder that he represerits transfers his shareholding In the
coaTipany.

b} Inthe case of exacutive directors, provided thet the Board conskiers it appropriate and in any event, when ha no longer holds
his executive posilion In the company and/ of companies of Lhe group,

£} When thay are Involvad In a legal conflict of interast.

d}When Lhey are tried for an alleged offence or are subjecl o discipinary procaedings owing 10 a serious or very serlous
Infringemenl of legislatlon, instigated by the supervisory authorities.

€] In the case of CEQs, they shall resign at 55 but may continue as Direclors without prejudica (o the provislons of parageaph b)
above, !

) When lhay are seriously sprimanded by fhe Board of Directors prior a reporl from the Audit and Comphance Commitiee
owing to the breach of thelr obligations as Direclors. -

C.1.22 Indicate whether the CEQ is also Chair of the Board of Directors. If so, state what measures have been
adopted 1o limit e risks of one single person accumulating powers:

YESI:'NG'I_’

Indicate and, if appropriate, explain whether rules have been established to enable one of the
independent directors to request the calling of the Board for the inclusion of new items on the agenda, ‘
to coordinate and echo the concems of outside Directors and to direct evaluation by the Board of ‘
Directors. ;

YES :I Ho [z]

C.1.23. Is a reinforced majority, other than those fegally stiputated, required for any kind of decision?:

we 1 w [X]

If so, axplain differences

C.1.24 State whether there are spacific requirements, other than those relating to directors, for appointment as
Chair.

ws 1 w [x] )

C.1.25 State whether the Chalr has a casting vote:

e [ ] s [x]

C.1.26 State whether the Articles of Association or the Board Regulations set any age limit for Directors:

ves [2] s []

Age limit for CEQ: 65 years ald.
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C.1.27 State whether the Arlicles of Associallon or the Board Regulations set a limited term of office for
independent directors other than defined in the normative

YESDNOIII

€.1.28, Indicate whether the Articles of Assoclation or rules of the Board of Directors establish specific rules far
dslegate voting at the board, how to do it and, in particular, the maximum number of delegations that

may have a diractor, and if it has established mandatory delegate to a director of the same type. if
applicable, briefly detall these niles

Heading 2 of Article 17 of the Board Regulations of CIE Autometive, S_A_ reads as follows:

"2~ Ditectors wil make every effor to aftend meetings of the board and, if they cannot da it personally, may delegate their proxy
to anuther Diractor, not limited the number of representations held by each member lo the assistance (o the Board. Without
grejudice ¥ the faregoing, the Directors shal seek to confar represeniation o & fallow board member of thve same group to which
it belongs and where possible incude appropriate Ingtruc¥ons, Rapresentalion mey be conferred by any wiitlan means.

€129 Indicate the numbar of meetings held by the Board of Directors over the year. Also Indicate any
meetings that were held in tha absence of the Chair. In computing, the representations made with
spacific instructions will be considered assistances,

Nutaber of Board meetings 9

Number of Board meetings without the Chair 4]

Indicate the number of maetings held during the year by the various Board Commitiees:

Delegate Committee 2]
Audit Commiitee §
Eiominations and Compensation Committeg 5

C.1.30 State the number of meetings held by the Board of Directors during the year with all members being in
atiendancge. In computing, the representations made with spacific instructions will be considered

assistances,
Number of Ditector assistancas during the year 112
% Number of assistances compared with the total votes cast during the year 91.80%

€.1.31 indicate whether the individuai and consalidated annuat accounts presented {o the Board for approval
were previously certified:

vs [ ] w [X]

If appropriate, name the person(s) who cartify the Company's individual or consclidated annual
eccounts before they are approved by the Board:
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C.1.32 Explain the mechanisms, if any, established by the Board to avoid a qualified audit report on the
individual and consofidated annual accounts from belng presented fo shareholders at-a General
Meeting.

Adticle 3 of the Audit and Compllanca Commitice Regutatlons stiputmes the following, among other things:

{il)Propose the appointment of the exteraal auditors referred w by Anticle 204 of the Spanlsh Commpanles Law 1o {he Board of
Directors for sithmission 1o the Generat Shareholders’ Meeting, as well as the compansation, tem and other larms of the
agreement with tha auditses.

{i)Suparvisa ine intemal audit sarvices.

(iv)Recalve information reganting the financial information process and Intemal control aystama at the Gompany end the group of
companies

{v)Malntain retations with axiemal auditors to recelve information regarding issues that may put their independence into question
In any siher issues retating to the audii of the accounts, as well as any other communications astablished under audit legistallon
and lechnical regulations.

{vi)Review the annual accounts before prescniation to the Bosrd of Ditectars, &s well as ary G-month and quarterly financial
slatements that must be filed with regulalory biodies or markel supervisors.

C.1.33 Is the Secretary of the Board a Director?:

ves { ] wo  [x]

C.1.34 Explain the procedures for appointing and remaving the Secretary of the Board, indicating whether or

not the appoiniment and removal have bean reported by fhe Nominations Gommittee and approved by
the full Board of Directors,

Procedure for appointment and removal

Arficle 25.2 of the Arlicles of Association stipulate thet the Board of Directors will appalml a Secretary and, If
appropriate, a Vice Secretary, and the appointment may involve persons that are not Directors, in which case
they will have the right t0 be heard but not to vote. The Vice Secretary will substitute the Secretary In the event
of any absence, lness, disability or vacancy.

Similarly, Article 10 of the regulations of the Board of Directors lays down the following:

1.- The Secretary of the Board of Directors may or may not be a Director, as determined at any given
moment by the Board,

2.- The Secrelary esslsts the Board with its duttes end musi ensure the proper operation of the Board,
espacially providing the advisory services requested, duly reflecting the meetings in the minutes and
certifying the Resolutions edopted.

3.- The Secretary will handle the material and formal legaliies concarning Board action and compliance with g
pracedures and rules of governanca,

4.- The Secralary will perom the office of Expert Legat Adviser of the Board, provided that hoids the condition

of attorney.
YES NOT
Does the Nominations Commitiee report the nemination? x
|Does the Nominations Committee report remavals? X
|Does the fuli Board approve the nomination? X
|£Ioas the full Board approva the removal? X
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S

Does the Secratary of the Board have the responsibility of specifically monitering Good Govemnance
recommendetions? :

YESIZINOII'

C.1.35 Describe the mechanisms, if any, established by the company to safeguard the independence of

external auditors, financiat analysts, investment banks and rating agencies:

Auiicle 41 of the Regulations of the Board of Direttors govems the relationships with external auditors:
"Article 41. Redafions with the Audiiors”

1.- The relafionships batween the Board of Direclors and the Compeny's extemal awditors will be channefled through the Audit
and Compllance Commifiee, in ihe terms established by tho Arlicies of Association and the Audit and Complianca Commltiee
Raguiations.

2.- The Board of Directars will report in the notes o the annual aceourts the fees that have baen paid by the Company each year
for the audll firm for services olher than audit,

3.- Also, the Board of Directors shell endeavour & prepare the financial atatemants in such a way B3 not to give rise to
qualifications by the audtors. However, if the Board considers that & should stand by its judgment, it must publicly explain the
content and scope of the discrapancy.

By virue of this mandate, the Audit and Compkance Committea will maintain mlations with exiema) audilors to receive
information regarding issues that may put thelr Independence inlo quastion in any other issues relating to the audit of the
accounts, as well Ba any other communications estabifehed under audit leglstation and technical regulations.

C.1.36 Indicate whether or not the Company has changed its extemat auditor during the year. If so, name the

outgoing and incoming auditor:

ves [ ] wo [x]

If the Company had any disagreements with the outgoing auditor, indicate their content:

C.1.37 State whether or not the audit firm does any work for the Company andfor its Group other than standard

audit work and, if so, indicate the amount of the fees received for such work and the percentage it
represents of the total fees invoiced 1o the Company and/or its group:

VESII'NDI—__I

: Company Group Total
Sum of services other than auditing
(thousand eurc) 169 317 486
Amount of work other than standard
audit work/Total amount inveiced by the 34.00% 14.00% 18.00%
audit firm in %)

C.1.28 Stale whether the audit report for the financial statements for the preceding year contain any

resesvalions or qualifications. If so, indicate the reasons given by the Chair of the Audit Committee to
explain the content and scope of those qualifications or reservations,

vs [ | wo [ x]
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.1.32 State the number of periods that the current audit firm has perfarmed the audit of the company’s andfor
its group's financial statements without Interruption. Indicate the number of perods audited by the
current audiing firm as a percantage of the perlods in which the annual accounts have been audited:

Company Group
Number of consecutive years 12 12
Number of years audited by the present audit firm / 40.00% 40.00%
Number of ysars the company has been audited (%)

C.1.40 indicate, and provide details, if there is an established procedurs for Direclors to recelve extemal

advice:
ves [x] w []
Procedure details
Arlicle 25 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors expressly establishes the procedure applicable 1o
obtaining expert advice:

Arlicle 25. Expert advice.

.- n order 1o obiain assistance when carrying eut their dutles, cumide Direclors may request the hiring, at the
Company's request, of legal, accounting, financial or other experts if considered necessary to adeguately
perform their duties. The request must necessarily Involve specific issues of particular compléxity.

2.- The request must be made through the Chair of the Board of Directars and may be vetoed by the Board of
Directors it il is considered that: a) such assistance is not required for the adequate performance of the dutles
with which Directors are charged; b) 1he related cost is not reasonable in light of the Imporance of the issue
toneemed and the Company’s assets and revenues; ¢) the assistance being requested may be adequately
provided by experts end technicians already employed by the Company or others that are already working for
the Company; or d) may give rise fe a risk to the confidentiatity of the information that must be disclosed.

C.1.41 Indicate, providing details as necessary, if there is an established pracedure for Directors ko obtain any
information they may need to prepare for the Meetings of lhe governing bodies sufficiently in advance:

resizluo[:l

Procadure details
Articla 24 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors govems the procedurs for Members of the Board of
Directors to obtain informetion regarding the issues 1o be deliberated:

Articla 24. Diaclosure procedure.

t.- A Director may request the information reasonably needed regarding the Company, provided that it is
required by the duties being fulfilled. The right to information extends to domestic and foreign subsidiaties. -

2 -In arder to not disturb the ordinary managemem of the Company, information requests will be made

through the Chalr, who will attend 1o Directors® raquasts by either providing the information directly,

Identifying the appropriate contacts within the Company, or providing the measures so that the requested
Information may be examined and inspected,

3 - The Board of Directors may deny the request for information ¥, in Hs judgment, the request might barm
vorparate interests, notwilthstanding any provisions of the Spanish Companies Law.
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C.1.42 Indicate, providing details if appropriate, i the Company has established rules requiring Directors o
report and, if necessary, resigned in any cases that could be detrimeantal to the Company’s raputation:

ves [] wo []

Explain the rules
In accordance with the established in Article 22 2 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors, Directors serve at
the pleasure of the Board of Directors and must present, # deemed advisable, their resignation when subject 1o
any criminal proceedings or disciplinary proceedings due to any serious ar very sarious malter being
investiyatad by regulatory authosities.

C.1.43 Indicate whether the Company has been notified by any Board Member that he/she has been charged

with, or is being tried for, any of the crimes contemplated under Article 213 of the Spanish Gompanies
Law:

ves [ 1 wo  [x]

Indicate whether or not the Board of Directors has analysed the case. If the answer is affirmnative,
provide a reasoned explanation of the dacision laken as fo whather or not the Director should continue
in the post or, if s, indicate the actions taken by the Board until the date of this reporl ar it intends to
make.

C.1.44 Detait significant agreemnents enterad into by the company and which come into force, are amended or
terminated in the event of change of controt of the company following a takeover bid, and iis effects.

Nol apphcable.

C.1.45 Identify in aggregate and specify, in detail, the agreements between the company and its directors and
executives or employees praviding for compensation, indemnity or shield, when they resign or are
made redundant without valid reason or if the contractual relationship is to an end during & takeover bid
or other operations.

Number of beneflciaries: 0
Type of heneficiary
Mot applicable

Description of the amangemeant

Mot applicabla

Indicate whether these contracts must be reported and / or approved by the bodies of the company or

its group:
Board of Direct G t Shareholders
Meating
{Board authorizing clauses YES NO
YES NO
Is the General Mesting reporied about tha clausas? x
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C.2  Commitiges of the Board of Directors

C.2.1 List afl the Board of Directors’ Committees, Its members and the ratio of Institutional and independent

Outside Directors that fomm it:

NOMINATIONS AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Name Pozition Tvpe
MRt CARLOS SOLCHAGA CATALAN CHAIRMAN INDEPENDENT
MR, FRANGISCO JOSE RIBERAS MERA BOARD MEMBER IiNSTITU'I’!DNAL
|MR. FERMIN DEL RYO SANZ Diz ACEDO BOARD MEMBER INSTITUTIONAL
% of axecutive members. 0.00%
% of (nstitutional members 66.66%)
% of independent members 33.33%
% of ather outsiders 0.00%

AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

Nawmie Pasiti Type
MR- ANGEL MANUEL OCHOA CRESPO CHAIRMAN INREFENDENT
ADCVALIA CAPITAL, 5.4, BOARD MEMBER INSTITUTIONAL
AUSTRAL, B.V. BOARD MEMBER INSTITUTIONAL
% of execufive membears 0.60%
% of institutional members 66.85%
% of irdepandent members 33.33%
% of other oulsidarg 0.08%

DELEGATED EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Natne Position Type
MR ANTONIO MARIA PRADERA JAUREGUI CHAIRMAN EXECHITIVE
MR. FRANCISCO JOSE RIBERAS MERA BOARD MEMBER INSTITUTIONAL
ELIBOZA PROMOCION DE EMPRESAS, S.1. BOARD MEMBER INSTITUTIONAL
MR. FERMIN DEL RIO SANZ DE AGEDO BOARD MEMBER INSTITUTIONAL
MR, HEMANT LUTHRA BOARD MEMBER INSTITUTIONAL
MR, JESUS MARIA HERRERA BARANDIARAN IBOARD MEMBER EXECUTVE
% of execulive members 33.33%
% ¢f instilutional mambers €5.68%
% of independent members. 0.60%
% of cther 2.00%
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C22 Complete the following table with information en the number of female directors comprising the

committees of the Board of Directors during the last four years.

Number of female directors
Year ended 2013 Year eruded 2012 Year ended 2014 Year ended 2010
Number % Number % Number % Number )
NOMINATIONS AND i} 0.00% Q 0.00% [} 0.00% 0 0.00%
COMPENSATION
COMMITTEE
AUDIT AND 1 33.33% 1 3.33% 1 32.33% 1 33.33%
COMPLIANCE
COMMITTEE
DELEGATED EXECUTIVE 1 16.66% 1 20.00% 1 26.00% 1 25,00%
COMMITTEE
C.2.3 State whether ar not the foliowing dulies fall to the Audit Committes.
YES jNOT

Monitor the preparation and the integrity of the financial information prepared on the company
and, where appropsiate, the group, checking for compliance with legal provisions, the accurata X
demarcation of the consolidation perimeter, and the correct application of accoynting principles.

Ravlew internal control and risk management systems on a regufar basis, 80 main risks are X
properly identified, managed and disclosed.

Monitor the independence and efficacy of the Internal audit function; prapose the selection,
appointmant, reappointment and remaval of the head of intarnal audit; propose the department's X
budget; recelve regular report-hacks on its activities; and verify that senfor management are

acting on the findings and recommendations of its reports.

Establish and supervise a mechanism whereby staff can report confidertially and, if necessary,
anonymously, any Irregularities they detect in the coursa of their dutles, in particutar financtal or{ X
accounting irregularities, with potentiatly serious implications for the firm.

Make recommendations to the Board for the selection, appeintment, reappointment and removal

of the external auditor, and the terms and conditions of the engagement. X
Regularly receive information from the external auditors on the audit plan and resuits of their X
work, and check that senior management takes thelr recommendations into account.

Ensure the Independence of the external auditors

C.24. Describe the rules of organization and operation and the responsibifities of each of the Board
committees.

NOMINATIONS AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Nominations and Compensation Committee s gaverned by Articla 15 of the Reguiations of the Board of Direclors end is
formed by a mintmum of three {3) Directors. Execulive Diraclors of Members of the Audit and Complianca Commities cannot be

Members of this Commtiaa, Notwithstanding other dutles assigned by the Boand of Direcloes, the Nomlnations and
Compensation Committea wiit have the following basic duties:

1) Prapare and review the critaria that must ba folowed when appointing the Board of Directors and the selection of candidates;

1y Inform about Diractor nomination proposals as well as examine or arganize, in the manner it deems appropriate, the

succession of the Chalrman and the Chief Executive so that the handover 1akas place in an ordesly and well-giarmed fom.

1ii) Proposa the marmbers of each Committes to the Board.

Iv} Propose tha ennual compansallon system and amount for Birectors and, in partkeular, for the Chair of the Audit and

Compliance Commitiee due to the special dedication, to fhe Board of Directors.

v} Propose the compensation syslem and amount for senier management.
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vi) Review regularly  ihe compensalion programmes, welghting thelr adequacy end performenca.
vil) Ensure the transparency of the compensation process,

vill} Report on the appointment of the persons that will represent the Company at Board of Diractors’ Meetings at the mosl,
relavant subsidiaries and Investee companies, as datermined by the Board of Direclors.

it} Repart on the appointment or removal of execulives that report directly to the Board, the Chalr, the Delegated Commiltea or
the CEQ.

The Nomination and Remunemton Commitiae will meat whenever it is convenient far the pedormance of their duties and will
appoint among [ts membera a Chalrman and & Secretary who will not have fo be e director, Regarding spedfic performance
standards, will apply with (he necessary modificatlons established for the Board of Directors,

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee Regufations (by remission ta Articke 44 of the Reguiations of the Board of Directors) establishes the dulles
and rules for organising and opesating of the Audit and Complianca Commties,

The Audit ang Gomplance Commitiee wiil constst of a minimum of thrae mambars and a maximum of five, which will be
dasignatad by the Company's Board of Directors, The Mambers of the Commitiee wilt be aF of them external direcinrs and wili be
appolntsd for terms of four yours, notwithstanding posalble re-electan. The ranewal, re-election and removal of Members will fall
to the Board of Directors.

The Audit Committee will alsb designate a Chair from among its members. The Chatr must be replaced every four yaars and may
be ne-alectad again efter one year elap3ses after lesving the posttion. in addition, the Audit end Complinnca Commitlee witt
designate the Sacretary o the Committes, which should notba a Direclor.

The duties of the Audil and Compliance Committee are!

1) inform the General Meeting of issuss ralsed by sharaholdars with respec] to matters within the Committee’s sphere of
competefice.

i} Propase to the Board of Diractors the appointment of the external auditors for submission to the General Shareholders'
Maeting, as well ga the compensaetion, term and olher tenms of the agreemert with the auditors.

i) Supervise internal audit servicas,
Iv) Be eware of the financial information process and intematl control syetems,

¥) Maintain retations with externat auditors to recelve informatlon regerding issues that may pit thaie indapendence into
question and any other issues retaling to the audit of the accoums.

vi) Review the annual, biannuat and quartedy financlat accounts before presentation to the Board of Directors,

vH) Supervise compliance with the internal Conduet Regulations with respect to the Stock Market and the Internal Coda of
Profassionatl Conduct of Group axecutlves and employaes,

Vi) Report about transactions that mean or cowuld mean there is a conflict of interest,

b} Prepara an arnual repor an the Committee's activilles.

X} Any olher duties that may be assigned by the Gompany's Board of Diractors,

DELEGATED EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

According fo Articks 13 of the Regulations of the Roard of Dkecturs, as representation of Board of Direclors, and with a nature of
standing body, the Delegated Exacutive Committea wil have - unless the Boand of Directors detarmines otherwise - alf the

powars inherent to the: Board of Directors, except for thosa that canmet be delegalod by law and statutordy and those specifically
reserved to the Board.

The Delegated Executive Committee will meet at foast once {1) per month and few olhers deemed appropriate by the Chair, who
may also suspend one of more of the ordinary meefings when deemed appropriate in ils sole judgment. it will also maet whan
requested by two {2) of the Direclors of he Commiltee. The Delegated Executive Commifies will deal with alt matiers conscerming
to the Board, which in the opinion of the Committee itself, should be resvived without furthar delay, with the only exceptions of
accountabllity, presentation of financial statemenls ta the General Maoeting, Lhe powars which are glven to the Board without
authorizlng its delegation and the powers of the Board of Directors that ane not delegable by law and statutorily.
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C.2.5 Indicate, where applicable, If there are any rules and regulations for the Board Commiittees, \_mhere thay
are available for consultation and any changes or amendments made during the year. Likewise indh:fate
whether an annual report on the activities of each Connnitiee has been prepared on a voluntary basis.

The Regulalion of the Audit and Compliance Committes is avallable for consullation on the webslte of CIE AUTOMOTIVE. This
Commiitee prepares an annval report of Its activities. The operation of other commitiees I3 regulated by the rules of the Boand of
Directors

C.2.6 State whether the compasition of the Executive Committee reflects the parficipation in the Board of
Directors of the varlous directors depanding on their category:

ves wo [_]

- RELATED PARTY AND INTRAGROUP TRANSACTIONS

D.t  Identity the competent body and explair, where appropriate, the procedure for approval of transactions with
related parties and intragroup.

I Competent body !

Board of Directora

[ Procedure for approval of transactions with related parties i

Operations that the company or its subsidiaries conducted with directors, sianiflcant sharehalders or shareholders reprasented an
the board or peraons related 1o them must be submitted, prior to the epproval of the Board of Direclors. in any casa, thass
oparatione are performed undar market condions.,

Explain whether the approval of tranzactions with velated parties has been delegated, indicating, where
appropriate, the body or persons to whom the authority has been delegated,

Not applicable

D2 Provide a breakdown of the relevant transactions made during the year because of their nature or the sums
involved between companies or entlfies of the Group and the Company’s significant shareholders.:

Nature of the Amount
Name of Significant Shareholder Group Company Relationship Tyne of Transaction (thousand €)
MAHINDRA MAHINDRA MAHINDRA CIE Comerctal Sale of poods 8,500
L AUTOMOTIVE LTD
EMAHINDRA MAHINDRA MAHINDRA HINODAY LTD Comercial Sala of guods 4,600

D.3 Provide a breakdawn of the relevant transactions because of their nature or the sums involved between the
Company or entities of its Group, and tha Directors or Senior Managers of the Company:

Name of Directors Neme of Related Party Link Type of transactlon Amount
ithousand €)
MR. FERMIN DEL RID SANZDE | CIE AUTOMOTIVE AND Conlractval Sarvices 872
ACEDRQ SUBSINIARIES (CIE
AUTOMOTIVE GROUP)
MR. JESUS MARIA HERRERA CIE AUTOMOTIVE, 5.A Gontractual Financing agreemanta: 1,185
BARANDIARAN {ioans
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Provide a breakdown of the relevant transactions made by the Company with other companies belonging
to its same Group provided they are not eliminated in the process of consolidation and are not part of the
Company’s routine business.

In any case, any group fransaction caried out with antifies established in countries or territories
considered tax haven wilt be informed.

Provide the amount of transactions with other rolated parties.
€65,154 Tthousand

List the mechanisms established fo identify, datermine and ssitle possible conflicls of interests between
the Company andfar its Group and its Directors, Executive Managers or significant sharehclders.

Adticle 30 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors faya down the folowing:

Arifcle 30- Confitels of Inwerast.

f.+ A conflict of interast Is deemed 1o exdst in thosa cages in which there I8 a direct or indirect colfision between the Company's

interests and the Director’s parsonal nterests. The Director hias a personal interest when the matier affects him/her ot a related
person.

For the purpeses of thesa Regulations, persons related to a Directar are considered W be:
1.- The Diractor's spouse or persons with a similar relationship.
2. Ascendanis, descendants and siblings of the Director or histher apouss.
3.~ The spousas of the Diractor's escendants, descendants and siblings.

4.- Companies in which the Direclor, elther persanally or through an intermediaty, is in one of the sitraons defined by Article 4 of
Law 24/1988, of 28 July, on the Stock Market.

Related persons are considered {o be the following whh reapect to e lagal person Director.

1.- Sharsholders wha, with respect to The lagal person Director, is in one of the situaticns defined by Aticle 4 of Law 24/1988, of
28 July, on the Stock Market,

2.-De facto or aciual Directors, liguidators and legal representaiives hoiding generat powers-of-altorney granted by the legal
person Director.

3.- The companies that farm part of the same group, as defined by Article 4 of Law 2411068, of 28 July, on the Stock Market, and
thelr sharehalders,

4.- Persons who, with respect to the fegal person Direclor, are considersd (o be related to tha Direclors In accordance: with this
sechion.

2.~ The following ruies will be applicable to conflict of Interest stustions:

a} Gemmunication; the Direcior must report 1o the Board of Dinzctors and the Audit and Compliance GCommitlee, through the
Chalr or the Secratary, any confiist of inlerest that arses,

b} Abstention: the Director must abstain frem atlending and Intervening in the defiberations and voles thet relate 1o those
matlers concerming tha conflict of intarest. Institutional Quiside Directors must abstain from participating in votes regarding
metiere thal may reprasant a conflict of interest balween shareholders that proposed thelr appoiniment and the Company.

¢} Frangparaney; the Compeny wi! include in the Armual Corparste Governance Report information regarding any confict of
interest involving Directors that has been reporied by the affecied party or by any oiher means,

D.7 Are more than one of the Groups companies listed in Spain?

ves [ we [&]

Identify the subsidiaries listed in Spain:
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E. ] - RISK CONTROL AND MANAGING SYSTEMS

EA

E2

E.3

E4

ES5

ES

Explain the scope of the Rigk Management System of the Company.

GIE AUTOMOTIVE is subject to several risks Inherent to the various countries, markeis and businessas in which it operales and
the activities carred out in each one. Aware of the importance of the adequate management of those risks, the Board of Directors,
through management, has davaloped and implemenled a general policy of identifying and managing risks sugerviged by the Audit
ard Compfiance Gommittes. The overall procesas far managing corporate tisks at CIE Automative i based on the COSO 1l method,
the het practica in this area. The risk management process is based on a cantinuous cycle, broken down into five phases:

1. Identify tha key risks that may affect attaining the Organisation’s objectives, Including all Financlal information contol cbjectives;

Il Evaluate them based on probabiiity of occurrence and their impact on the organisation as well as based on the exlstence of
controfs;

lIi. Establish a response {o each one;
(V.MonHor tha acton taken; and
V. Report the results of the enalysls performad.

Identify the bodies within the Company responsible for the development and implementation of the Risk
Management System:

Audit and Compliance Committea

Describe the main risks that may affect the achievement of business objectives.

The main tisks to which GIE Automotiva is exposad to are as follows:
a) Market rsk
i} Forelgn exchange risk
f} Price Risk
il) Interest Rates
b} Liquidily Risk
¢} Credil Rlsk
d} Market risk and commaodilies price risk

Identify whether the entity has a fevel of risk tolarance.

See heading E.3. about the different levels of aralysis of business risks and {olerance

Indicate quo risks have materialized during the year. Indicate whether any of the different types of risks
has been maferialized during the year.

During the year 2013 and despite having maintained the situation of global crisis in the financial markets, thanks 1o this poficy
detection and risk management there has not been a subslaniive neallzation of the above harards, which have bean successfully

mionitored by different graup companles, having the control systems worked adequately ami not having produced slgnlficant
Impacts on the consolidalad finanelal slatements 2013.

Explain the response and supervision plans held for tha company's major risks.

See heading E.3. about svary risk identifled.
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CESCRIPTION OF THE MAIN CHARACTERISTICS OF THE INTERNAL CONTROL AND
RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS IN RELATION TO THE PROCESS FOR THE -
REPORTING OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION.

Describe mechanisms that make contro! systems and risk management in relation to the procass of financial
reporting {ICFR} in your company

F.

Company control environment.

Report, noting the main featuras of at lsast:

F.1.1

F.1.2

The bodles and/or functions which are responsible for: (i) the existence and maintaining of an adequate
ard effective SICFR; (i} ifs implementation; and (jii} its supervision.

The Board of Directors of CIE Automotive, S.A., is the body responsible, ameng other matiess, for the updating and on-going
improvemen! of the Company’s Corporate Governanca Sysiam - in accordance with currently-applicable legislation and
generally-recognised corporale governance racommiendatlons -, through he resolutions if considers necessary or advisable for
Ihis purpose, which are elther passed by the Board tself, when they fall within the scope of 19 competenss, or proposed to the
General Meeting. Thesa functions are understoed to include Its respnnsibiﬂty as regards the existence and maflaining of the
SICFR.

On the other hand, the Management of CIE Is raspensibia for defining and implementing the SICFR and, in gensral, for the entire
Intemat Contro! Syatem of the Group, oversesing the definition and design of the Tnternat conlrol procedures which need o be
implemented in the Group's operations, a5 well as compliance with legal rules, internal polies, and esiabished pracedures.

Tha CIE Audit and Compliance Commilttes {herainaRer the ACC) is The body responsibie for the supervision of the efficacy of the
Company's internai control system, the internal audit function, and the comorale risks management process, and for discussing
with the eccounting auditors or audit firms any significant weaknesses in the intemal control system which have been detected
during the course of the audiL. In refallon ta financial informaticn, this Committes must be familiar with the process for its
preparation, and wilh the cantrols In piace for iis approval. The suparvision of tha SICFR s therefors the responsibitity of the
ACC,

Whether there exist — particularly in relation to the process for the preparation of financial infarmation —
the foltowing: '

» Departments and/or mechanisms entrusled with:
(T} the design and review of the organisalionat stmuclure, The Bcard of Directors ks the body ultimately responsible for
defining and periodically raviewing the organisetional struciure of CIE. The Board delegatas to the Company's
Manegement the tack of ensuring that subordinate sbruciures are equipped with adequate human and material resourtes.

With regiard 10 the process for the preparation of inancial information, them exisls an inferretated globat financial
dapariment which reports to the CIE Corporate Finarce Management team.

{i) clearly defining tings of responsibiity and autharlty, and a suitabks distribution of tasks and functions. The
Tespongibilities and functions of all persons directly involved In the prepatation and review of fnancial mformation are
defined and adequately communicated within the framework of CIE’s intemnal policies and procedures.

{ili} ensusing that there are sufficient procedures in place far this information - particularly thal retating to tha procass for the
preparaiion of inanciy information —to be commecily disseminates within the Company. There ara internal protocols which
guarantee that informatian on any change taking place in relation 1o the preparation of firancial information is distributad to
the approprlate personnel in good time and in the correct form. There ae &iso controls in place for the dentification of any
irregularity In this connection,

. A coda of conduct, including the body responsible for its approval, level of dissemination and Insteuction, principles end
values included (indicate whether any specific mentions are made of the recording of operations and preparalion of
financial information}, end the body responsible for analysing breaches of such code and proposing corrective action and
penalies,
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CIE currengy has an “Internaf Code of Conduct” and “Internal Regutations on Conduct in refation to Securilies Marketa®,
Both these documents are published on the CIE web site and ame dislibuled 1o all personne! effectad through the
commurnication channels established for this purpose,

in edther case, the body responsible for thelr definilion and approval is the CIE Boand of Directors.

Tha Code lays down basio ndes and principles whose purpese is 1o ensure that there fs cammitment and taneparency in
rajatians and operations with customers, suppliers and employees, thel the shareholders’ imvestmente are protectad and
oplimised, and ihat there ls adequate surveilance of health, safety and environmental fasues. The Code also establishes
the nead for controls over payment operations and over any sliuztion of conflict of interasts involving employees.

ftwantains a specific section on the reliabliity of inancial informaton, which lays down a seriea of specific rufes applicable
io al parsons velved in the process for the preparation of fnancial information.

The functions of the ACC Include the montoring of compli with the aft Boned codesfregiiations.

. A whislle-blowing channel for communication 1o the audit commitiee of any fnancial and accounting imegulerities, plus
possitte braaches of the code of conduct and iregular aclivitles taking place within the organisation, indicating, where
appropriate, the confidentiol nature of such information,

CIE has a whislle-blowing channef for the receipt of nollficationsireparts refating to iregular conduct or activities implying
any breach of the principlas and elhical rules regarding the refiability of financlal information faid down in the “internel Code
of Conduct” or in the *Intamal Regulations on Conduct in relation W Securiies Markets’,

There are Regulations sstting out the process for tha funclipning of the whislla-blowing channel, which guaranteas that
f2parls £an ba submitted by either named stafl members o anonymously, the wishes of the whisile-blower with respect fo
confidentiality being respected at all imes.

The Regulations goveming tha CIE whistie-blowlng channal appoint a Management Commiltes and establish a protocol
indicating the steps 1o be laken for the analysis of reports recelved, and for their communication to the ACC for superdsion
purposes.

] Training and periodie refresher programs akmed a1 te personnel Involved in the preparation end review of financial

information and assessment of tha SICFR which cover, 65 a minimum, accounting standards, audiling, intemat controd and
risks managemaent.

As well as a variaty of slsff trainkng programmies, CIE has the following additional resources of which use is made for the
training and support of personne involved in the preparation and review of financal information:

- Therelsa CIE Accouriting Policies Maruss, which is updated on an on-going basis,

- Yhere Is an Accounting Policies Funclion, whosa tasks is 1o Tesolve any deubia regarding the nterpretation of the
Accounting Policies Manual, and provide advite regarding tha freatment of complex fransactions,

- There are divisionaliregional controllers who are invalved i the support provided 1o all persons forming part of the
financial funclion e\ &l the Group's planis and companies, through on-golng intams! assessment and tralning.

= Whena new company joins the Group, suppon simtagies are devefoped to traln lte employees In accordance with
the Group's standerds and ariteria.

- Advice is neceived from external advisars in refation to changes In accauniing, legal and tex rules which may

affact tha Company.
F.2 Risk assessment of financia! information.
Report at least:
F.21 What are the main characteristics of tha process of identifying risks, including risks of error or fraud, as
to:
. Whethar there exists such a p and whether it is dc rited

The procass of identification and assessment of financial information risks forms part of CIE’s global Corporate Risks i
Management process. It is based on tha COSO Nl methodology, which constilbles best practice tn this area, and takes the
form of a procedure with which all personnel involved ara famikar.
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The rlak management process fs based on a continuous cydie comprsing five phases:

1.+ the identificalion of key risks which may affect the fuifilment of the Organisalien's objectives, including all financial
Information control chfectives;

IL.-the avaluation of such risks based on the probabiily of occurrence and their impacl on the organisation, and based
on the existence of controls;

i ~determination of the raquired response for each such sisk;

IV.-monttoring of the agreed courses of acfion; and

V.reporling of the results of the analysis mada,

Tha process of ldentification and assessment of riske are tashs for which the Management and the heads of the various
divlsions and of other business arean are all meponsible. They seif-assess tha risks Wentified, with Internal Audit acling as
coardinator in this process.

The resuit obtained is a Risks Map, and a list of steps to be takan for the propar managemnent of rigks.

Thez abova is complamantet] by ectivitles for the monitorng of the management of certain risks, which ane carried out by the
{ntemal Awdit department.

Whethar tha process covers ali financlal raporting objectives, {exislence and ocoumenca; integrty; measurement;
presentation, breakdown and comparabiifty; and rights and oblipations), whether it is updated, and how frequantly.

As is indicaiad in the procedure, tha identificalion and analysis of risks cover afl agpects of financial infoymatton which may
hava a material impact on ifs relfiabllity, The Risks Map 1s raquired to be updatad annually as & minimum. However, In the
event of droumstances arising during the year which requirg spedific steps ta be laken for the management of a polentiat
risk, the appropriate measuras are adopled.

The existence of a process for the identificallon of tha consolidation scopa taking Into aceount, among other aspects, the
potaible existenca of complex corponate structures, and inslrumenial or speclal-purposa companies.

Tha procass for the identification and assessment of risks takes inlo consfderation all procasses, group companies and
thelr various structures, and spedfie characterlslies of each couniry and business line, with particular attention being paid
o risks derlving from transactions which, owing to thaii foreseen level of compiexity or significance, require specialised
management.

Whether the process fakes inte account e effects of other risk types {operational, technolagical, financial, legat,
reputational, environmental, and =o on) insofar as hesa affect the financlal statements.

Az haa been mentioned abo\fe, the moded ks based on the COSQO | methodolegy and therefore, laking as Hs starling point
the Organisation's ohjectives, It sesks to idenlfy and manage all risks which may have an impact an the achievement af
resulis.

Risks are dassed speclfically as Strateplc Risks, Operationat Riske, Reporting Rlsks and Comptlance Risks.

The main rigks K which GIE is axpased and the m Inplemented for their correct management are detalled in

saction D. entitted Risk Control Systems, in the Annual Cemporate Governante Report of CIE Autemotive, S.A. for the year
ended 3t Dacember 2013,

The goverhing body which superviges the process.

This entire prosess (8 reviawed and approvad by the ACC, which is the body which uitimately determines whether the
process of identllcation, assessment and monitoring of the Company’s risks end, specifically, the measures almed at
identying material risks in relation to financial information, are appropriata and suficient..
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8

Contral activity,

Report, nofing their main features, if you have at least:

F.3.1 Documentation desciibing the flows of activitles and controls (including those related to the risk of fraud)

far the different types of transactions which may have a material impact on the financial statements,
including the closure-of-accounts procedurs and the speclfic raview of significant judgements, estimates,
measurements and projactions.

tn addltion lo the actual clasure-of-accounts pracedune, and prior 1o the process for-the praparation and review of financlat
Informstion, CIE has conitrol procadures and activites taking plece In other key areas of the company {purchases, inventary
managemant, sales, and go on), the purpase af wivch is 1o ensure thal transactions are propary recorded, measured, presented
and broken down, and to prevent and detect fraud,

For this purpnse CIE Ias, at process level (Includfing the tlosure-of-accownts process), descriptions {in the form of narratives), and
risk and control matricas.

For the review of judg ts, estimates, emems ard projections, the Accounling Poflcles Manual defines the appltcation
crlleria prevaiiing in CIE, and spacific cantrols in tha aferementionad risk snd control matrices,

The atorermentioned significant imnsactions are reviewed by the CIE Board of Directors through variaus processes {review,
approval and monitoring of the Stratagic Plan and Budget, and the review of the most significant accounting estimates and
judgements used in the preperation of financial infarmation), once the ACC has gonfiemed that the information is adequate,

F.3.2 Intemal control policies and procedures relaling to information systems (including, among others,
access securlly, conirol over changes, operation of such systems, operating continuity and segregation
of duties) which support the antity's sigrilficant processes in relation to the preparation and publication of
financial information.

CIE has interna] control policles and procadures in placa in respect of informetlon systems which support its skirificant procasses,
including the pracess for the preparalion and review of financial information.

CIE upes information systems for the correct recording and canirof of ils operations: it is (herefore highly dependem on their gomrect
funclioning.

As part of the process far the identification of riska of misstalemant in financial nformation, CIE identifies the systems and
applications which are relevent in each of the aras of processes considered significarit. The syslems and applications identificd
include both those which are used directly in the preparation of financial Infarmation, and 1hase which ere relevant o the efficacy of
cordrals which reduce the risk of misstetement in such informeation.

GIE has “Systems Security Policles”, defined at corporate level, which are designed to meet its defined general security objectives.

The objactive is to edopt the perlnent measuses of an organieational, technical and documentary natuse necessery o guarantee
the dssirad leval of sacunkty. The work performad in this connaction relates to the following areas:

= Access coptrol and user adminisiation.

- Management of changes

- Back-up and recovery

- Physical secuity

-~ Gontrol of subcontraciors

= Allacation of means, alimination of risks end Malntenance of Business.

F.3.3 intemat control potictes and procedures for supenvising the management of activities outsourced 1o third

parties, as well as aspects of assessment, calculation or measurement entrusted to independent experts
which may have a materiat impact on the financial statements,

GIE has a management proceduse i piace in resped] of activities ouisatrced o third partles, tha purpose of which is t define the

cantrols to be applied to actlvillss outsourced to thind parties which have 2 significant fmpact on the financial infarmation preparact
by CIE.
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Fd.1

GLASE 8.2

Basad on the analysis underiaken, the view has been formed that during 2013 the only area oulsourced with a posslble materal
impacl on the financial information of CIE iz the Information Systams area, in this respect, CIE has verified that the suppller
company has the oblainad apprapriale certifcalions as to the adequacy of its contrel environmant, and that such certifications are
peariodically validated by an independant party.

In addition, there are controt activities taking place periodically in GIE finciuded in the aforemenlioned risk and control matrices)
which also play a part in validating the control environment in this area,

Responsibiity with respeci to other activities in refation 1o significant fransactions which are entrusted (0 independent experts (e.g.
tax advisory garvices) remains within the Company, specific monitoring work being required to guarantee their reliability.

Comrmunication and information.
Report, noting their main features, if you have at least:

A specific function responsible for defining and updating accounting policies (area or department of
accounting policles) and resolve questions or dispules ragarding its Intarpretation, maintaining fluid
communication with those responsible for fransaclions at the organization, as well as en updated
accounting policias guide communicated to fhe units through which the enfity operates.

The Role of CIE Accounting Poficles Is assumed by the Corporata Controlling department, which depends directly from the Financa
Department of CIE.

In perfarming this funclion, the Corporate Controliing depariment assumes the following responaibifities:
¢ Meintenance the CIE Accounting Policy Manual {Gantinuous Update) and dissemination to ather companies group.
*  Update any changes in accounting rutes applicable to el membars of the finance function of CIE.

»  Resolution of disputes that may arise (individusl or consolideted levei) In tha intespretation of tha rules to be applied.

F.4.2 Mechanisms for financial information gathering and preparation In standard format, application and use

F.5

F.5.1

by all units of the entily or the group, supporting key financial statements and notes, as well as
information conceming FCFR.

CIE has a spedific aystem for financlal reporting and consolfidation, which 13 used in &) unile group, allowing the capture of
financial Information eveniy.

This system is usad, in twrn, to the deveiopment of aggregaion and consdlidation of te data raporied.

Additionally, for Lhe preparation of the financiel statements and notes thatrequire a delailed breakdown, CIE has defined repuarting
format, which allows the units to disclosurs finanaial data reporied through the reporting system. These fonme ane requested twice
& year, and are raporiad ko Corporate Contraling depariment for enalysls, being as well validated by financial audior,

System performance monitory,
Report, nofing its main features, at least:

Monitoring activifies conducted by the ICFR audit committee and whether the antity has an internal audit
function whese competencies include the support to the committee in its oversight of the Intemal confraf
system, including ICFR. Also infarming of the scope of the assessment of ICFR in the exerclse and the
process by which the responsible for implemenling the evaiuation reports its results, Iif the entity has an

action plan detailing any comrective measures, and whether H has considered its impact on financiat
reporting.

CIE has a Corporate intemai Audit Dapartmant, which reparts to the CAC, and cacrdinates the Internal Auwdiling teams in Ewope,
Mexico and Brazi. The members of the interna! audit department are exclusively dedicated to these funclions,

Among the funcilons of memal Audit, aspects concarning identificatian and risk assessment are Included, as woli as the review of
controls oriented ta rellabliity of financlaj reporting and actions refated 1o fraud risk managemeant.

K} |
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GLASE 87

F.5.2 Hyou have a discussion process by which the auditor {in accordance with the provisions of the NTA), the

F.6

F7

F.7.1

inftemal audit function and other experts can communicate 1o senlor management and the audit
cammittes or board of the entity significant intermal control weaknesses identified during the review
process of the annual accounts or those that have bean entrusted to them. It shouid also report on
whether an action plan to cotrect or mitigate the weaknesses observed exists,

Tha audltor participates actively in the mestings of the ACC. Furthermore, the auditor Issues annually a report of Tnternal control
wesakneases, which Is submitied o the ACC for the adoption of measures deemed approprials,

Additionally, CIE has a procedure allowing any oulside advisers, in the exerclse of lts activity, 1o delect the existence of intamal
control waak, and -ate through | Audfl department to the: ACG's detectad Issues for discusaton, analysis and
evaluation.

Other relevant information.

GIE ralies on the ACC, as Indicated above, as responsible for oversight of ICFR.

In this sense, during the year tha ACC has been responsible for overseeing the activities carrled outin CIE for adequacy to ICFR.
In partlcular, there have been two meetings for manitaring the ¢verall inlemal control model of CIE and the measutes implamentsd
specifically related o the raliability of inanctal information,

In these special sesslons, In additbon to the CAG, Financial Managament, inemal Audit and exlarnal auditors have baen involvad,
approving and planning measures to implement regarding ICFR, as well 2 monitoring the implementation of praviously agreed
measures. These include the review of  CIE Risk Mapresulis , the process of identification and asaessment of risks {including risks
of financiat information), the review and approval of key procasses and risks tobe audited as well as thereview and approval of the
definition of Risk and Control Matricas deamed refovant fo the processes .

Besides, the ACC has developad, within its ordinary acvity, sessions almed at continuous review of the Group's control
anviropment. In this regard,

*  Audit plans have been appraved for 2043 and 2014.

*  Ttheresulls of internal Audit work and suggestions for Improvements made during 2013 have been analysed.
External auditor report.
Report of:

If ICFR information supplied to markets has been reviewad by the externat auditer, in which case the
entity should include the report as an altachment. Otherwise, it shouid report its reasons.

CIE Autornolive has submilled for review by the extemal auditor the Company's ICFR operiting description, whareno significant
impact have bean delscted. Audit opinion report and PricewalerhauseCoapers report are included as appendix.

[G.] - COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RECOMMENDATIONS

Indicate the degree of conformance of the company to the recommendations of the Unified Code of Goud
Govarnance.

in the event that any recommendation fs not followed ar partially followed, inciude a detailed axplanation of its
remsons 3o that shereholders, investors and the market in general, have sufficient information to eveluate the
behaviour of the Company. General explanation wor't be aceeptable.

1.

The Articles of Association of listed companles should not place an upper limit on the vates that can be

cast by a single shareholder, or impose other obslacies to the takeover of the company by means of
share purchases on the market.

See headings: 4,10, B.4,B.2, C.1.2%and C 4.24,

compy [ x ] Expam ]
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CLASE 8

When a dominant and a subsidiary company are stock market listed, the twa should provide detailed
disclosure on:

a)  The type of activity they engage in and any business dealings between them, as well as between
the subsidiary and other group companias;

b) The mechanisms in place o resolve possible confiicts of interest.

See heaings: D.4 and D.7
Comply D Partiafly comply |:| Explain I::I Not applicabla

Even when not expressly required under company law, any decisions involving a fundamental corporate
change should be submitted fo the General Sharehoiders' Meeting for approval or ratification. in
paritcutar:

a) The fransformation of listed companies into hoiding companies through the process of
subsidtarizalion, i.e., reallocating core activies to subsidiaries that were previously carried out by
the originating firm, even though the latter retains fult contral of the former:;

b)  Any acquisifion or disposal of key operating assets that would effectively alter the company's
corporate purpose; '

c) Operations that effectively add up to the company's fiquidation.

See headings: B.6

Comply Izl Pariially camply :I Expiain :l

Detailed proposals of the resolutions to be adopted at the General Shareholders’ Meeling, including the
information stated ih Recommendation 2, should be made available at the same time as the publication
of the Meeting nofice,

compy [ | expan

The documents relaling to the General Shareholders” Meaeting, including the delatied propasals for resciutions 1o be adopted are
made avaifable 1o shareholders at the tme the relevanl General Meeting is called and on the webshe mainlained by CIE
Astometiva, S.A. and in the Sharehaider forum for the Ume: between tha cat and the date of the Ganeral Meeting.

As Io the cortent of Infarmation an fhe directors refeired to in Recom ion 27, wa undarstand that the infarmaiion contained in

this report (which is accessible at all imes via Weab Fage) s more than sufficient for the purposes that proposed and in connection
with the profiles of the members of the Board of Directors,

Separate votes should be taken at the Genersa! Shareholders’ Meeting on materially separate items, so
shareholders can express their preferences in each case. This rule shall apply in particular to:

a)  The appointiment or ratification of directors, with separate vofing on each candidate:

b}  Amendmenits to the Articles of Association, with voles taken on all articles or groups of articles that
are materially different.

Comply Patlally commply l:l Explaln I:l

Compantes should aliow spiit votes, so financial intermediaries acting as nominees on behalf of different
cllents can Issua thalr votes according to instructions.

compy [ x 1 epon []

a3




CLASE a°

The Beard of Directors should perform its duties with unity of purpose and indapendent judgment,
according all shareholders the same treatment. #f should be guided et all times by the company's best
interest and, as such, strive to maximize its value over fime.

It should fikewise ansure that the company abldes by the jaws and regulatlons in its dealings with stakeholders; fulfils its ohfigations
and coniracts in good faith; respects the customs and good praclices of the sectors and territories where it does business; and
upholds any additlupal soclal responsibility princlples it has subscribed to voluntarly.,

compy  [%7] pariswycompy [ ] e [__]

The Board shouid see, as core components of its mission, to approve the company's stralegy and
authorize the organizational resources lo carry it forward, and to ensure that management meets the
objectives sef while pursuing the company's Interests and corporate purpose. As such, the Board in full
should reserve the right to approve:

a} The Company's general pollcies and strategies and, in particular:

i} The strategic or business plan, managemant targets and annual budgets

i) Investment and finaneing policy

ifi) Design of the siructure of the corporate group;

Iv) Corporate govemance policy

v} Corporate social responsibility policy:

vi) Compensation and evaluaticn of senior officers;

vif} Risk contro! and management, and periadic monitoring of intemat information and control systems
viii) The policy for dividends, as well as treasury stock and, in particular, their fimits.

See headings: C.1.14. C.1.16and E2

b} The following decisions:

{) Upon recommendation by the CEQ, the appointment and possible removal of senior management
and any indemnity clauses.

iy Directors' compensation and, in the case of Executive Direclors, additional compensation for their
management duties and other contractual conditions.

ifi) The financial Information listed companies must periodicaily disclosa.

iv} Investments or operations considered strategic by virlue of their amount or special characteristics,
unless their approval correspands to the General Shareholders’ Meeting;

v) The creation or acquisition of shares in special purpose enfifies resident in jurisdictions
considered tax havens, and any other fransactions or operations of a comparable nafure whose
complexity might impair the transparency of the group.

¢) Transactions which the company conducts with directors, significant shareholders,

shareholders with Board representation or other persons related thereto {“related-party
transactions”).

However, Board authorization js not required for related-party fransactions that simultaneously meet
the following three conditions:

1. They are governed by standard fomn agreements applied on an across-the-board basis 1o a large
number of clients;

2. They go through at market rates, generally set by the person supplying the goods or services;

3, Their amount is no more than 1% of the company's anfual revenuss.
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11.

12
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CLASE g

It is advisable that related-party transaclions should only be approved on tha basis of a favourable
report from tha Audit Committee or committee handling the aame funclion; and that the direciors
involved should neither exercise nor delegate their voles, and should withdraw from the meeting
room while the Board deliberates and votes,

Ideally, the above powers should not be delegated with the exception of those mentioned in b} and t),
which may be dalegated to the Delegate Committee in urgent cases and fater rafifiad by the full Board.

Sae headings: D1 and D.6
Comply Partially comply E:] Explain [:l

In the interests of meximum effectiveness and participation, the Board of Directors should ideally
comprige no fewer than five and no more than fifteen members,

See heading: C.1.2

Comply |I| Bobin ||

Externz! diractors, Institutional and independent, should cccupy an ample majority of Board placas, while
the number of executive diractors should be the minimum practical, bearing in trind the complexity of the
corporate group and the ownership interests they conirol.

See headings: A.3 and C.1.3.

Comply ]E Fartially comply |___—| Explaln [:l

That among external directors, the relation between proprietary members and independants shoutd

match the proportion between the capilal represented on the Board by institutional directors and the
remainder of the campany’s capital.

This proportional criterion can be relaxed so the welght of institutional directors Is greater than
would strictly correspond to the total percentage of the capital they represent:

1. in large-cap companies whera few or no equily stakes attain the legal threshoid for
significant shareholdings, despite the considerable sums actually invested.

2. In companies with a plurality of shareheiders represented on the Board but not atherwise
related,

See headings: A.2 and A3 ard C.3.3

Comply Explain [:I

The number of independent directors shoutd represent at least one third of al Board members,

Ses heading: G.1.3

Comply D Explain |I|

CIE Aulomotive considers that the number of independent Dirsctors correctly reflects the company's shareholder composition and,
in particular, the proporiion of the free float capital that cumantly exdsts. The Board haa the intention of making a proposal af the
Qenaral Mesting for the appoiniment of new independent Directors In the event fhat these proporiions vary significantty.
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13,

4.

15,

16.

17.

CLASE 8°

Such determination should subsequently be explained by the Board to the General Meeling and be
confirmed or reviewad in each year's Annual Corporate Govemnance Report, after verification by the
Nomination Commiftee. The said Report should also disclose the reasons for the appointment of
institutional direclors at the urging of sharsholders controifing less than 5% of capital; and explain any
rejection of a farmal request for a Board place from sharsholders whose equity stake is equal to or
greatar than thet of others applying successfully for an inslitutionat diractarship.

See headings: C.1.3 and C.1.8

Comply E] Partially comply I:I Explain [::l

When female directors are few or non-existent, the Nomination Committes should take steps to ensure
that

a) The process of filling Board vacancies has no Impticit bias against famale candidates;

b) The company makes a conscious effort to inclutte women with the target profiie among the
camtidates for Board piaces,

Bee headings: C.1.2, C.1.4,C.1.5,C.1.6, C.22 and C.24

Comphy E Pailally comply :I Explain m Mot applcable I:I

The Chair, as the person responsible for the proper operation of the Board of Dirsctors, should ensure
that directors are supplied with sufficient information in advance of Board meetings, and work to procure
a good level of debate and active involvement of alt members, safeguarding thelr rights to freely express
and adopt positions; he or she should organize and coordinate regular evaluations of the Board and,
where appropriate, the company's chief executive, slong with the chairmen of the relevant Board
commiltees.

See heading: C.1.19 and C.1.41

Comply LT_I Partially comply |:l Exphain :l

When a company's Chalr is also its chief executive, an independent director should be empowered to
request the calling of Board meetings or the inclusion of new business on the agenda; to coordinate and
give voice to the concerns of external directors; and to (ead the Board's evaluation of the Chair.

See heading: C.1.22

Camply C:l Partially comply | I Explain I { Met

The Secretary should take care to ensure that the Board's actions:

a) Adhere to the spirit and tetter of laws and their implementing regulations, including those
issued by regulatory agencies;

b) Comply with the company Articles of Aseoclation and the regulations of the General
Shareholders’ Meeting, the Board of Directors and others;

¢} Are informed by those goud governance recommendations of the Unified Code that the
company has subscribed to.
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18,

19,

20.

21,

CLASE &7

e

In order to safeguard the independsance, impartiality and professionalism of the Secretary, his or her
appointment and remova! should be proposed by the Nomination Committes and approved by a full
Board mesting, the relevant appointment and removal procedures being speiled out In the Board's
ragulations.

See heading: C.1,34

Comply Patlally comply D Explan D

The Board should meet with the necessary frequency io properly perform its functions, in accordance
with a calendar and agendas set at the beginning of the year, to which each director may propose the
addition of other itams,

San heading: C.129

Comply Partialty comply :I Exptain :I

Director absences shouid be kept to the bare minimum and quantified in the Apnual Corporate
Governance Report. When directors have no choice but to delegate their vote, they should do so with
instructions.

Sae headlngs: C.1.28, C.1.29 and C.1.30

Cemply Partially comply |:| Explala l:l

When directors or the secretary express concerns about some proposal or, in the case of directors, about
the company's performance, and such concemns are not resolved at the board, at the request of tha
person who is expressing them, they should be recorded on the minutes.

Comply Fartally comply | ] Eaplain | | Nol spplicable 1:'

The Board in Tull shoutd evatuate ths following paints on a yearly basis:

a) The quality and efficlency of the Board's operation;

b) Starting from a report submitted by the Nomination Committee, how well the Chair and chief
executive have carried out their duties;

¢) The performance of its commiltaes on the basis of the reports furnished by the same.

See heading: C.1.19 and £.1.20

Gomply E Partiaty comply :l Explain I:I
Ali directors should be able to exercise their right to receive any additiona! information they require on
matters within the Board's competence. Unless the Articlas of Association or Board regulations indicale
otherwise, such requests should be addressed to the Chair or Secretary.

Sea heading: C.1.41

Comply |I| Explaln D

a7
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23,

A,

26.

26.

27,

CLASE

B

All directors shoufd be entiled to call on the company for the advice and guidance they need fo carry out
their dulles. The company should provide suilable channels for the exercise of this right, extending in
special dircumstances to external assistance at the company's expense.

See heading: G.1.40

Comgly Izl Explgin |____—|

Companies should organize induction programmers for new directors to acquaint them rapidiy with the
workings of the company and its corporate govemance rules. Directors should also be offered refresher
programmes when circumstances so advise.

Camply E Partlatiy comply :l Euplain I:l

Companies should require their directars to devote sufficient ima and effort to perform their duties
eflectively, and, as such:

a} Directors shouid apprise the Nomination Committee of any other professional abligations, in
case they might detract from the necessary dedication;

b} Companies should lay down rufes about the number of directorships their Board members
can hold.

Seé hoadings: ©.1.12, C.1.13 and C.1.17

Comply ‘___I Partially comply I:l Expialn

As & rasuilt of the composiiion of the Company's Board of Directors, which |s a Giract réflection of the make-up of ils sharehoiders,
the aforementioned sbligatlons for its Members are not necassary.

The proposat for the appointment or renewal of directors that the Board submiis to the General
Shareholders' Meeting, as well as provisional appointments by the method of co-optation, should be
approved by the Board:

a} On the proposal of tha Nomination Commitiee, in the case of independant dirsctors.
b} Subject to a report from the Nomination Committee in all other cases.

See heading: C.1.3

Comply m Pariially compty D Explain :I

Companies should post the folfowing directorship particulars on their websites end keop them
permanently Gpdated:

a) Professional experlence and background;
b) Directorships held in other companies, listed or otherwise;

c) An Indication of the director's classification as appropriate, stating, in the case of
institutional directors, the shareholder they represent or are associated with,

d} The date of their first and subsequent appaintments as a company director, and;
e} Shares held in the company and any options on the same.

comty | paatyoomoy [ x ] expun [

Qur understanding ig that the Information sel out in this repart {which s accessible at all times (hrough the website) already
malntaing up-to-date the necessary informallon regarding Direstors, in fine with the iterns requesied in Recommendation 27.

38

0L7054986




28.

29,

30,

31,

CLASE &

institutional diractora should resign when the shareholders they represent dispose of lhe:ir ownership
interest in its entirety. If such shareholders reduce their stakes, thereby losing some of their entittement
to instilutional direciors, the latter's number should be reduced accordingly.

Soo headings: A2, A.3 and C.1.2

Comgly r_x__] Partiafly comply l:l Exgplabn D

‘The Board of Directors should nat propose the removal of independent directors before the expiry of their
tenure as mandated by the Anlicles of Association, except where just cause is found by the Board, based
on a proposal from the Nomination Committee. In particular, it is understood that there is just cause when
the director has breached the duties inherent in hijs position or comes under any of the circumstances
making it lose Hs independent siatus in accordance with the provieions of the Order ECC/461/2013.

The removat of independents may aiso be proposed when a takeover bid, merger or similar
corporate operation produces changes In the company's capital structure, in order to meet the
proportionality criterion set out in Recommendation 11.

See headings: C.1.2, C.1.6, C.1.1¢ and C.1.27

Comply E] Explain I:]

Companies should establish rules ohiliging directors to inform the Board of any circumstance that might
harm the organization's name or reputation, tendering their resignation as the case may be, with

particufar mention of any ceiminal charges brought against them and the progress of any subsequent
trial.

The moment a Director is indicted or tried for any of the crimes stated in articte 213 of the
Spanish Companies Law, the Board should examine the matter and, in view of the particular
circumstances and potential harm to the company’s name and reputation, decide whether or not
he or she should be calied on to resign. The Board should also disclose all such determinations
in the Annual Corporate Governance Report.

See headings: C.1.42 ard C.1.43

Comply E Partially comply |:| Exptain :

All directors should express clear opposition when they feel a proposatl submitted for the Board's
approval might damage the corporate interest. In particuler, independents and other directors unaffected
by the conflict of interest should chaellenge any decision that could go against the interests of
shareholders lacking Board reprasentation,

When the Board makes material or reiterated decisions about which a director has expressed
serious reaervations, then he or sha must draw the pertinent conclusions. Directors resigning for
such causes should set out their reasons in the letter referred fo in the next Racommendation.

The terms of this Recommendation should also apply to the Secrotary to the Board, whether a
Director or not.

Comply E Partialy comply I:l Explain | Not apps I I
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35.

36,

7.

a8,

cL

AR

SE

Directors who give up their place befora their fenure expires, through resignation or otherwise, should
state thelr reasons in a letter to be sent to all members of the Board. Imespective of whether such
resignation is filed as a significant event, the motive for the same must be explained in the Annual
Corporate Govemance Report.

See heading: C.1.9

Gamply II‘ Partfafly comply D Explain D Not applicable I:l

Compensaltion comprising the delivery of shares in the company or other compantes in the group, shere
options or other share-based instruments, payments linked to the company’s perfarmance or
membership of pension schemes should be confined to executive direclors.

The delivery of shares is exciuded from this limitation when directors are obliged to retain them
until the end of their tenure.

Comply Partalycompty || mowin [ | Noteppreabe [ |

Exfernal directors’ compensation shouid sufficiently compensate them for the dedication, abilities and
responsibilities that the post entails, buf should not be so high as to compromise their independence.

Gompy [ x| opam | Inoteplcavel |

In the case of compensation linked to company earings, deductions should be computed for any
quaiifications siated in the external avditor's repott.

Comply Explein l:INo! appliwauem

In the case of variable awards, compensation policies shouid include technical safeguards to ensure they
reflect the professional performance of the beneficieries and not simply the genera) progress of the
markets or the company’s seclor, atypical or exceptional transactions or cirgumstances of this kind.

Gomply m Explain I INﬂl iceabd I

When the company has a Delegate Committee, the breakdown of its members by director category
should be similar to that of the Board iseif. The Secretary of the Board should also act as secretary to the
Delegate Commiittee.

Sea headings: C,2.1 and C.28

Comply izl Pantislly compey l Explain I | Kot applicable [:l

The Board should be kept fully informed of the business transacted and decisions made by the Delegate
Committee. To this end, alt Board members should recaive a copy of the Commitiee’s minutes.

Comply Explain ]Nnt pplicable) |
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40.

41,

42.

43
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[

in addiion to the Audit Committee mandatory under the Securities Market Law, the Board of Directors
should form a commitles, or two separate committees, of Nomination and Compensation.

The rules governing the make-up and operation of the Aadit Committee and the commiftee or
commiftees of Nomination and Compensation should be set forth in the Board regulations, and
inciude the following:

a) The Board of Directors should appuoint the members of such committees with regard to the
knowledge, aptitudes and experience of its directors and the terms of reference of each
committee; discuss their proposals and reports; and he responsihle for oversecing and
evaiuating their work, which should be reported to the first Board plenary following each
meeting;

b) These committees should be farmed exclusively of external directors and have a minimum of
three members. Executive directoys or sanior officers may also attend meetings, for
Information purposaes, at the Committees’ invitation.

¢} Committees shoutd be chaired by an independent director.

d) They may engage external advisors, when. they feel this is necassary for the discharge of
their duties. :

8) Bbeeting proceedings should be minuted and a copy sent to all Board members.

See headings: C.2.1 and C.2.4

Comply Parttally comply I: Explain !:

The job of supervising compliance with internal codes of conduct and corporate governance rules should
be enirusted lo the Audit Committee, the Nomination Commilee or, as the case may be, separate
Compliance or Corporate Govemance commitieas.

Sep headings: C.2.3 and C2.4

Eomply LZI Expiain l:l

All members of the Audit Committes, particularly its Chair, should be appointed with regard to their

-knowtedge and background in accounting, auditing and risk management mattars.

Comply L_T__l Explaln [:1

Listed companies should have an internat audit function, under the supervision of the Audit Committee,
to ensure tha proper operation of intemal reporting and control systems.

Seg hoadings: C.2.3

Comply IZ] Explain |:_]

Tha head of internal audit should present an annual work program to the Audit Committee; report o it

diregﬂy on any incidents arising during its implementation; and submit an activities report at the end of
each year,

Comply Partlally comply 1: Explain :I

Controf and risk management policy should specify at leasat:

a) The differant types of risk {operational, technological, financial, legat, reputational...) the

company is exposed to, with the Inctusion under financiat ot economic risks of contingent
liabitities and other off-balance-shest risks;
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47.
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153,

b) The establishment of the risk level that the Company considers acceptable;
¢} Mensurss in place to mitigate the impact of risk events should they occur;

d) The internal reporting and control systems to be used to control and manage the above
risks, including contingent liabilitles and off-balance-sheet risks.

Sae headings: E

Gomply Pattycomay [ | Bopln [
The Audit Committee's role should be:

1. With respeact to internal control and reporting systems:

a) That the main risks identified as a result of monitoring the effectiveness of internal conlral of the
company and the intemal audit function, if any, are managed and properly disclosed.

b) Monitor the independence and efficacy of the internal audit function; propose the selection,
appoiniment, reappointment and removat of the head of intemat audit; propose the dapartment's
budget; receive regular report-backs on ifs activities; and verify that senior management are acting
on the findings and racommendations of its reports.

c} Establish and supervise a mechanism whereby siaff can reporl confidentialty and, if necessary,
anonymously, any ireguiarities they detect in the course of their duties, In particular financial or
accounting Iregularities, with potendaky serious imptications for the firm.

2. With respect to the external auditor:

a) Regularly receive information from the external auditors an the audit plan and results of their work,
and check that senior management takes their recommendations inta account.

b} Monitor the independence of the external auditor, to which end:

§ The company should notfy any change of auditor to the CNMV as a significant event,

accompanied by a statement of any disagreements arising with the oulgoing auditor and the
reasons for the same.

i} The Commitiee should investigate the issues giving rise to the resignation of any extemal
auditor. '

See headings: C.1.36, C.2.3, C24 and E2

Compy Parsay comply || Expan ||

The Audit Commiitee should be empowered to meet with any company employee or manager, even
ordering their appearance without the presence of another senior officer,

Comply Expiain D

The Audit Committee should prepare information on the following points from Recommendation 8 for
input to Board declsion-making:

@) The financial Information Hsted companies must perlodicaily disclose. The Committee
should ensure that interim statements are drawn up under the same accounting princlples as
thei annuai statements and, to this end, may ask the external auditor to cenduct a Umited
review,

b} The creation or acquisition of shares in special purpase entities resident in jurisdictions
considered tax havens, and any other transactions or operations of a comparahle nature
whosa complexity might impair the transparency of the group,

42

0L 7054930




40,

§0.

51.

CLASE g7

¢} Related-party transactions, except where thelr scrutiny has heen entrusted to some other
supervision and control committee. '

See hoadings: C.2.3 and C.2.4

Comply IZI Partially comply |:’ Explain |:|

The Board of Directors should seek fo present the annual accounts o the General Shareholders'
Meating without reservations or qualifications in the audit report. Should such reservations or
qualifications exlst, both the Chair of the Audit Committee and the auditors should give & clear account to
shareholders of their scope and conlent.

See heading: C.1.38

compy [ x | poiycoroy [ | Exmn [ |

The majority of Nemination Committee members — or Mominations and Compensation Commitiee
members as the case may be ~ should be independent directors.

Sew heading: C.2.4

Comply I: Enplgin Nm appl!mbleE:]

Due ta the composition and typa of the Board of Diractors, which refects the composition of the Company's sherehoklars, the
umdersianding is that 1 is not nacessary to comply with the tontent of Recommendation 49.

The Nomination Committes should have the following functions in addition to those stated in earlier
recommendations:

a) Evaluate the halance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board, define the roles and
capabilities required of the candidates to fili each vacancy, and decide the time and
dedication hecessary for them to properly perform thelr duties.

b) Examine or organize, in appropriate form, the succession of the Chair and the chief

executive, making recommendations to the Board go the handover proceeds in a planned
and orderly manner.

¢) Report on the senior officer appointments and removals which the chief executive proposes
to the Board.

d) Report to the Board on the gender diversity issues discussed in Recommendation 14 of this
Code,

See heading: C.2.4
Comply Partially comply [:l Explain |:| Not spplicable D

The Nomination Committes should consult with the company’s Chair and chief executive, especially on
matters relating to executive directors,

Any Board member may suggest directorship candldates to the Nomination Committee for its
consideration.

Comply |I] Partially somply |:| Explain l:l Mok epplicable D
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53,
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The Compansation Committee shouid have the following functions in addition to those stated in earlier
recommandations: :

a} Make proposals to the Board of Directors regarding:

iy The compensation policy for Directors and senior management;
i} The individual compensation and other contractual conditions of executive directors.
i} The standard conditions for senior management empfoyment contracts.

b) Ovarsea compllance with the compensation policy set by the company.

See headings: C 2.4
Comply Partially comply I: Explain I:] Not appiicable i:l

The Compensation Commitiee should consult with the Chair and chief sxecutive, espacially on matters
relating to execulive directars and senior officers,

Comply E Partially comply |:] Explain I:]

[H.] - OTHER INFORMATION OF INTEREST

1.

If there is a relevant aspect of corporate governance in the soclety or group entities that have not been
picked up in other sectlons of this report, but it is necessary fo include coliecting more comiplete and
reasoned information on the structure and govermnance practices in the company or its group, describe
briefly.

This section may as well include any other information, clarification or related to previous sections of the
report to the extent that they are relevant and not repetitive.

Specifically, state whether the company is subject to any faws ofher than the faws of Spain on corporate
governance and, if this is the case, Include whatever Information the Company may be required to
provide when different from the information included in this report.

The company may also indicate whether voluntarily acceded fo other ethical principles or codes of good
practice, intemational, seclorial or other clauses. In your case, the code in question and the date of
accession will be identified.

D5 OTHER RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Gompany and certain of ita subskdiaries mahiain contraciual relationships with INSTITUTO SECTORIALDE PROMOCION ¥
GESTION DE EMPRESAS DOS, S.A, {INSSEC 2) and varlous subsidiaries of this company, with which sigrificant shareholders
cammon Ehares, being the amounts and the following concepts:

Company of GIE Aulomative Group/Related PartyMlature/Operation/Thousand Euro

* CIEAUTOMOTIVE 8A - INSSEC 2 - Conlractual ~ Charyje in fair value of agsels: 16,360 €
+  CIE AUTOMOTIVE and Subskiiaries- INSSEG 2 and Subsidiaries — Financing Agresments — Trade Raceivables
{Non-Current); 8,400 €

»  CIE AUTOMOTIVE and Subshdiasies - INSSEC 2 and Subsidiaries - Financing Agreemenls - Trade Racelvables {Cutrent):
202198 €

*  GLOBAL DOMINION ACCESS —BERQA GROUP- Financing Agreements: 11,167 €
Also, at December 20, 2013 AGGESS GLOBAL DOMINION, SA signied an option agreement for the purchase of 50% the share

cayital of Group BEROA to INSSEG 2. Finally, certain subsidiaries of Mahindra Forging Europe had made supgiies 1o Geslamp
group companies amounting €2.000 thousand,

0L7054892
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This annual corporate govemance repert was approved by the Board of Direstors of the Company at its
meeting heki on 02/28/2014

Indicate whether any Directors have voted against or abstained in connection with the approval of this Report.

ves [ ] wo  [x]
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(Free translation of the awditor’s vepart originafly issned in Spanish relating to the internal
financial reporting control Eystem, In the event ofs; discrepancy, the Spanich language version
prevalls]

REPORT OF THE AUDSTOR RELATING TO THE
INTERNAL FINANCIAL REPORTING CONTROL SYSTEM (IFRCS)

To the Directors of CIE Automotive, S.A.

Al the request of the Board of Directors of CIE Antomotive, SA. Cthe Entity™) and pursuant to gur
letter of proposal dated 14 November 2013, we have applied certain procedures to the accompanying
information concerning the TPRCS included in the "Appendix to the Annaal Corporate Governance
Report” of CIE Antomotive, S.A. for 2013, which swmmarises the Entity'sinternal control procedures
with respect to its annual financial information,

The Board of Directors is responsibile for taking the measures that are necessary to reasonably assure !
the implementation, maimenance and supervision of an appropriate internal conirel systemn, and for ’
developing improvements to said systemn and preparing and eatahlishing the content of the

accompanying Information relating to the IFRCS. .

In this connection, it must be borne in wind that, itrespective of the design quality and efficiency of
the internal financial reporting control system used by the Entity, it can only allow a reasonable, but
ot absolute, degree of assurance in relation to the objestives it sesks to achieve due to the limitations
inherent to any internal control systern.

In the course of our audit work on the annual-accounts in accordance with Technical Andit Standards,
the sole purpose of ouxr evaluation of the Entity's internal control systim is to enahle s to establish the
scope, nature and timing of the andit procedures performed on the Entity's annnel acconnts,
Accordingly, the intemnal control evaluation carried out for the purposes of our sudit is not sufficient in
scope to enable us to issue a specific opinion on the efficiency of the internsl control on the regulated
annugl financial fnformation,

For the purposes of the present report, we have only applied the specific procedures deseribed below
and indicated in the Gnidelines concerning the auditor's report referring to the information eonceming
the Financial Reporting Tnternal Control System for listed entities published by the National Securities
Murket Comuuission on its web alte, which lays down the work to be performed, the minimum seope of
the work and the content of this report. In view of the fact that, in any event, the seape of the work
resulting from these procedures is reduced and substantially leas than the stope of an audit or an
internal control system review, we do not expross an opinion on the effectiveness theveof, its design or
operational efficiency, in relation to the Entity's annual financial veporting for 2013 described in the
accompanying IFRCS information, Therefore, had we applied procedures in addition o those
determined by said Guidelines or had we performed an audit or internal control system review in
relation to the regulated financial information, other matters cozld have come to light of which you
‘wonld have been informed.

As this special work does not constitute an audit and is not subject to the revised Audit Law enacted by
Rayal Deeree 1/2011 of 1.July, we do not express an andit opinion in the terms envisaged in said Law.

e
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The pracedures applied axe as follows:

1.

5.

Reading and understanding of the information prepared by the Entity in relation to the YFRCS ~
breakdown included in the Directors' Report — and evaluation of whether said information :
covers all the data yequired as per the minimum content described in Seetion F, regarding the !
IFRCS description of the model of Annual Corporate Governance Report, aceording to the !
National Securities Market Commission Circular 5/2013 dated 12 June 2013.

Making enquirfes with personnel in charge of preparing the information mentioned in 1, gbove !
in order to: (1) obtain an understanding of the proeess fallowed in its preparation; (if) obtain
information that enables us to assese whether the terminology used is in line with the

framework of reference; (jii) obtain information as to whether the conirol procedures deseribed

are implemented and functioning in the Entity,

Review of supporting documentation explaining the infoxmation deseribed in 1. above which
will mainly eomprise the information made directly available to the persons responsible for .
preparing the information on the TFRCS. In this respect, said documentation ineludes reports |
prepared by the internal audit fanciion, senior management snd otherinternal and external
specialists in their support duties for the audit committee,

Comparjson of the information described in 1, above with the Entity's knowledge of the IFRCS
obtained from the application of'the procedurss performed within the framework of the andit
work on the annual acconnts.

Reading of the minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors, Audit Committee and other
conmittees of the Entity for the purpoge of evaluating congistency hetween the matters dealt
with therein in relation to the IFRCS and the information described in 1, above,

Obtainment of the letter of representation concerping the work performed, duly signed by the
persons responeible for the preparation and drafting of the information mentioned in 1. above.

As a result of the procedures applied to the Information concerning e IFRCS included in the
Appendix to the Annnal Corporate Governance Report of CIE Automotive, S.A, for FY 2013, ho
inconsistencies or incidents have come ta light by which it could be affected.

This report hus been drawn up exclusively within the framework of the requirements Jaid down by Law
24/2003 of 28 July on the Securities Market, amendsd by Law z /2011 of 4 March on the Sustainable
Eeonomy and the Cincular 5/2013 issued by the National Securities Market Commission dated 12 June
2013 for the: purposes of the JFRCS description in Annval Corporate Governance Reports.

PricevaterhouseCoopers Auditores, 8.1,

Original in Spanish signed by Francisco Javier Dontingo
Audit Partney

28 February2014
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CIE AUTOMOTIVE, $.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

AUTHORISATION FOR THE ISSUANCE OF THE 2013 CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
AND DIRECTORS’ REPORT

In keeping with the provisions of article 253 of the prevailing Corporate Enterprises Act, the
directors comprising the full Board of Directors of CIE AUTOMOTIVE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
as of this date have authorised the consolidated annual accounts and directors’ report of CIE
AUTOMOTIVE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES for 2013, made up of the documents itemised and
identified below, for issue:

+ The table of contents, printed on class 8 state-stamped paper, sheet numbers 0L7054846 to
0L7054847.

¢ The balance sheet, printed on class 8 state-stamped paper, sheet numbers OL7054848 to
0L7054849.

¢ The income statement, printed on class B state-stamped paper, sheet number OL7054850.

» The statement of comprehensive income, printed on class 8 state-stamped paper, sheet
number OL7054851.

*» The statement of changes in equity, printed on class 8 state-stamped paper, sheet number
0L7054852.

*» The statement of cash flows, printed on class 8 state-stamped paper, sheet number
0OL7054853.

» The notes to the annual financial statements, printed on class 8 state-stamped paper, sheet
numbers OL7054854 to OL7054942.

» The Directors’ Report (appended to which are the Annual Corporate Governance Report and
Audit Report regarding the required disclosures on the Internal Control over Financial Reporting
System), printed on class 8 state-stamped paper, sheet numbers OL7054943 to OL7054995.

* In compliance with the provisions of the abovementioned article 253, the directors declare that
they have signed each and every one of the abovelisted documents in their own hand by
withessing these class 8 state-stamped sheets, specifically sheet numbers 0L7054996,
0OL7054997 and OL7054998.

The directors of the parent company also declare that, to the best of their knowledge, the annual
financial statements prepared under prevailing accounting principles provide a true and fair view of
the equity, financial position and financial performance of the issuer and the consolidated companies
taken as a whole, and that the Directors’ Report includes a true and fair analysis of the business
performance and results and financial situation of the issuer and the consolidated companies taken
as a whole, together with the description of the main risks and uncertainties they face.

In Bilbao, on 28" February 2014
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CIE AUTOMOTIVE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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AUTHORISATION FOR THE ISSUANCE OF THE 2013 CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL

ACCOUNTS AND DIRECTORS’ REPORT

UNDERSIGNED

Antonio Maria Pradera Jauregui
[Chairman)

ELIDOZA PROMOCION DE EMPRESAS, S.L.,
represented by Goizalde Egaiia Garitagoitia (1/ce-
Chairwoman)}

Jesius Maria Herrera Barandiaran
{Chief Executive Officer}

Angel Ochoa Crespo
Member}

Carlos Solchaga Catalan
Member}

Francisco J. Riberas Mera
Member)]

Juan M. Riberas Mera
Member]

Fermin del Rio Sanz de Acedo
[Member]
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CIE AUTOMOTIVE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

AUTHORISATION FOR THE 1SSUANCE OF THE 2013 CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL
ACCOUNTS AND DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Hemant Luthra
[Member/]

Vankipuram Parthasarathy
[Member]

ADDVALIA CAPITAL, S.A., represented by
Maria Teresa Salegui Arbizu {Member]

AUSTRAL, B.V., represented by
Bernardino Diaz-Andreu Garcia (Member]

CORPORACION GESTAMP, S.L., represented by
Francisca Lopez Pefia /AMember)

GMC DIRECTORSHIPS, S.L., represented by
Jacobo Llanza Figueroa (Mernber/




